
December 19, 2008

CEN[yJçyTEL

personal touch - advanced communications

Florida Public Service Commission

Division of the Commission Clerk and

2540 Shumard Oak Blvd.

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850

Administrative Services

RE: CenturyTel Fiber Company II, LLC Application for Competitive Local Exchange Certificaii

Commission Staff:

Enclosed please find an Application for Authority to Provide Competitive Local Exchange

Telecommunications Company Service within the State of Florida for CenturyTel Fiber Company

II, LLC dlb/a LightCore, a CenturyTel Company "LightCore". This packet includes the $400.00

application fee as well as an original and two copies of the application. Please note that only the

original application includes a complete spiral-bound copy of CenturyTel Inc.'s Form 10-K filing

with the SEC for 2007.

If you have any questions regarding this application or require additional information, please

contact me at 636 887-4785 or via email at pamela.raklightcore.net

Respectfully,
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FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

DIVISION OF COMPETITIVE MARKETS AND ENFORCEMENT

APPLICATION FORM

for

AUTHORITY TO PROVIDE COMPETITIVE LOCAL EXCHANGE

TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY SERVICE

WITHIN THE STATE OF FLORIDA

Instructions

A. This form is used as an application for an original certificate and for approval of sale,

assignment or transfer of an existing certificate. In the case of a sale, assignment or

transfer, the information provided shall be for the purchaser, assignee or transferee

See Page 8.

B. Print or type all responses to each item requested in the application. If an item is not

applicable, please explain.

C. Use a separate sheet for each answer which will not fit the allotted space.

D. Once completed, submit the original and two 2 copies of this form along with a non-

refundable application fee of $400.00 to:

Florida Public Service Commission

Division of the Commission Clerk and Administrative Services

2540 Shumard Oak Blvd.

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850

850 413-6770

E. A filing fee of $400.00 is required for the sale, assignment or transfer of an existing

certificate to another company Chapter 25-24.815, F.A.C..

F. If you have questions about completing the form, contact:

Florida Public Service Commission

Division of Competitive Markets and Enforcement

2540 Shumard Oak Blvd.

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850

850 413-6600

FORM PSC/CMP-8 01106 Note: To complete this interactive form

Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.810, using your computer, use the tab key

and 25-24.815 to navigate between data entry fields.
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1. This is an application for check one:

Original certificate new company.

fl Approval of transfer of existing certificate: Example, a non-certificated

company purchases an existing company and desires to retain the original

certificate of authority rather that apply for a new certificate.

fl Approval of assignment of existing Certificate: Example, a certificated

company purchases an existing company and desires to retain the existing

certificate of authority and tariff.

2. Name of company: CenturyTel Fiber Company II, LLC

3. Name under which applicant will do business fictitious name, etc.:

d/b/a LightCore, a CenturyTel Company

4. Official mailing address:

Street/Post Office Box: 11111 Dorsett Road

City: Maryland Heights

State: Missouri

Zip: 63043

5. Florida address:

Street/Post Office Box: for CT Corporation 1203 Governors Square Blvd.

City: Tallahassee

State: Florida

Zip: 32301-2960

6. Structure of organization:

fl Individual LII Corporation

fl Foreign Corporation LI Foreign Partnership

fl General Partnership fl Limited Partnership

Other, Foreign Limited Liability Company

FORM PSC/CMP-8 01/06 Note: To complete this interactive form

Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.810, using your computer, use the tab key

and 25-24.815 to navigate between data entry fields.
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7. If individual, provide:

Name:

Title:

Street/Post Office Box:

City:

State:

Zip:

Telephone No.:

Fax No.:

E-Mail Address:

Website Address:

8. If incorporated in Florida. provide proof of authority to operate in Florida. The
Florida Secretary of State corporate registration number is:

9. If foreign corporation, provide proof of authority to operate in Florida. The Florida

Secretary of State corporate registration number is:

10. If using fictitious name dlbla, provide proof of compliance with fictitious name

statute Chapter 865.09, FS to operate in Florida. The Florida Secretary of State

fictitious name registration number is: M06000000205

11. If a limited liability partnership, please proof of registration to operate in Florida.

The Florida Secretary of State registration number is:

12. If a partnership, provide name, title and address of all partners and a copy of the

partnership agreement.

Name:

Title:

Street/Post Office Box:

City:

State:

Zip:

Telephone No.:

Fax No.:

E-Mail Address:

Website Address:

13. If a foreign limited partnership, provide proof of compliance with the foreign limited

partnership statute Chapter 620.169, FS, if applicable. The Florida registration

number is:

FORM PSC/CMP-8 01/06 Note: To complete this interactive form

Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.810, using your computer, use the tab key

and 25-24.815 to navigate between data entry fields.
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14. Provide F.E.I. Numberif applicable: 43-1984544

15. Who will serve as liaison to the Commission in regard to the following?

a The application:

Name: Pamela Rak

Title: Paralegal

Street name & number: 11111 Dorsett Road

Post office box:

City: Maryland Heights

State: Missouri

Zip: 63043

Telephone No.: 636-877-4785

Fax No.: 636-877-4779

E-Mail Address: pamela.rak@lightcore.net

Website Address: www.centurytel.com

b Official point of contact for the ongoing operations of the company:

Name: Daniel Davis

Title: Vice President

Street name & number: 11111 Dorsett Road

Post office box:

City: Maryland Heights

State: Missouri

Zip: 63043

Telephone No.: 636-88-4788

Fax No.: 636-887-4782

E-Mail Address: dan.davis@lightcore.net

Website Address: www.centurytel.com

c Complaints/Inquiries from customers:

Name: Pamela Rak

Title: Paralegal

Street/Post Office Box: 11111 Dorsett Road

City: Maryland Heights
State: Missouri

Zip: 63043

Telephone No.: 636-877-4785

Fax No.: 636-877-4779

E-Mail Address: pamela.raklightcore.net

Website Address: www.centurytel.com

FORM PSC/CMP-8 01/06 Note: To complete this interactive form

Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.810, using your computer. use the tab key

and 25-24.815 to navigate between data entry fields.
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16. List the states in which the applicant:

a has operated as a Competitive Local Exchange Telecommunications Company.

Applicant currently operating as a CLEC in Arkansas, Illinois, Indiana, Kansas,

Minnesota, Mississippi, Ohio, Oklahoma, Oregon, Tennessee, Texas, and

Washington.

b has applications pending to be certificated as a Competitive Local Exchange

Telecommunications Company.

Not Applicable

c is certificated to operate as a Competitive Local Exchange Telecommunications

Company.

Applicant is certified as a CLEC in Arkansas, Illinois, Indiana, Kansas, Kentucky,

Louisiana, Minnesota, Mississippi, Nebraska, New Mexico, Ohio, Oklahoma,

Oregon, Tennessee, Texas, Washington, and Wyoming.

d has been denied authority to operate as a Competitive Local Exchange

Telecommunications Company and the circumstances involved.

Not Applicable

e has had regulatory penalties imposed for violations of telecommunications

statutes and the circumstances involved.

Not Applicable

f has been involved in civil court proceedings with an interexchange carrier, local

exchange company or other telecommunications entity, and the circumstances

involved.

Not Applicable

FORM PSCICMP-8 01106 Note: To complete this interactive form

Required by Commission Rule Sos. 25-24.810, using your computer, use the tab key

and 25-24.815 to navigate between data entry Ileids.

-5-



17. Indicate if any of the officers, directors, or any of the ten largest stockholders have
previously been:

a adjudged bankrupt, mentally incompetent and not had his or her competency
restored, or found guilty of any felony or of any crime, or whether such actions may
result from pending proceedings If so, provide explanation.

Not Applicable

b granted or denied a competitive local exchange certificate in the State of Florida
this includes active and canceled competitive local exchange certificates. If yes,
provide explanation and list the certificate holder and certificate number.

Officers and/or directors of CenturyTel Fiber Company II, LLC "LightCore" are in
most cases officers and/or directors of Centurylel, Inc. LightCore's parent

company. Madison River Communications, LLC was granted a certificate #5254

by the Florida Public Service Commission in 1997 originally under Gulf Logn

Distance, Inc. and has since been acquired by CenturyTel, Inc.

c an officer, director, partner or stockholder in any other Florida certificated or

registered telephone company. If yes, give name of company and relationship. If

no longer associated with company, give reason why not.

The following companies are CenturyTel, Inc. affiliates and are currently regulated

by the Florida Public Service Commission: Centuylel Long Distance, LLC Co.

Code TJ994; Madison River Communications, LLC Company Codes TJ409 and

TX129. As noted above, Madison River Communications, LLC Company Code

TX129 is also a certificated CLEC in the State of Florida # 5254.

18. Submit the following:

a Managerial capability: resumes of employees/officers of the company that would

indicate sufficient managerial experiences of each.

b Technical capability: resumes of employees/officers of the companythatwould

indicate sufficient technical experiences or indicate what company has been

contracted to conduct technical maintenance.

c Financial Capability: applicant's audited financial statements for the most recent

three 3 years. If the applicant does not have audited financial statements, it

shall so be stated. Unaudited financial statements should be signed by the

applicant's chief executive officer and chief financial officer affirming that the

financial statements are true and correct and should include:

1. the balance sheet,

2. income statement, and

FORM PSC/CMP-8 01/06 Note: To complete this interactive form

Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.810, using your computer, use the tab key

and 25-24.815 to navigate between data entry fields.
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3. statement of retained earnings.

Note: This documentation may include, but is not limited to, financial statements, a

projected profit and loss statement, credit references, credit bureau reports, and

descriptions of business relationships with financial institutions.

FORM PSC/CMP-8 01/06 Note: To complete this interactive form

Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.810. using your computer, use the tab key

and 25-24.815 to navigate between data entry fields.
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THIS PAGE MUST BE COMPLETED AND SIGNED

REGULATORYASSESSMENT FEE: I understand that all telephone companies must pay
a regulatory assessment fee. Regardless of the gross operating revenue of a company, a
minimum annual assessment fee, as defined by the Commission, is required.

RECEIPT AND UNDERSTANDING OF RULES: I acknowledge receipt and understanding
of the Florida Public Service Commission's rules and orders relating to the provisioning of
competitive local exchange telecommunications company CLEC service in Florida.

APPLICANT ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: By my signature below, I, the undersigned officer,

attest to the accuracy of the information contained in this application and attached
documents and that the applicant has the technical expertise, managerial ability, and
financial capability to provide competitive local exchange telecommunications company

service in the State of Florida. I have read the foregoing and declare that, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, the information is true and correct. I attest that I have the authority

to sign on behalf of my company and agree to comply, now and in the future, with all

applicable Commission rules and orders.

Further, I am aware that, pursuant to Chapter 837.06, Florida Statutes, "Whoever

knowingly makes a false statement in writing with the intent to mislead a public

servant in the performance of his official duty shall be guilty of a misdemeanor of the

second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 and s. 775.083."

ComDanv Owner or Officer

Print Name: Daniel Davis

Title: Vice President

Telephone No.: 636-877-4788

E-Mail AddràSs dan.davis©Iightcore.net

Signature:

FORM PSC/CMP-8 01/06

Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.810,

and 25-24.815

Date:________

Note: To complete this interactive form

using your computer, use the tab key

to navigate between data entry fields.
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CERTIFICATE SALE, TRANSFER,

OR

ASSIGNMENT STATEMENT

As current holder of Florida Public Service Commission Certificate Number I have

reviewed this application and join in the petitioner's request for a

fl sale

fl transfer

fl assignment

of the certificate.

ComDanv Owner or Officer

Print Name:

Title:

Street/Post Office Box:

City:

State:

Zip:

Telephone No.:

Fax No.:

E-Mail Address:

Signature:___________________________________________ Date:____________

FORM PSCICMP-8 01106 Note: To complete this interactive form

Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.810, using your computer, use the tab key

and 25-24.815 to navigate between data entry fields.
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Application for CenturyTel Fiber Company II, LLC d/b/a LightCore, a CenturyTel Company

18 a and b Summary of the Managerial and Technical Capability of the Officers of CenturyTel, Inc.

CenturyTeL, Inc. Officers

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Glen F. Post, III

President and Chief Operating Officer Karen A. Puckett

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Asst Secretary R. Stewart Ewing, Jr.

Senior Vice President - Operations Support David D. Cole

Senior Vice President and Chief Information Officer Michael A. Maslowski

Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary Stacey W. Goff

Vice President and Controller Neil A. Sweasy

Vice President and Treasurer G. Clay Bailey



Application for CenturyTel Fiber Company 11, LLC d/bla LightCore, a CenturyTel Company

Joined Centurylel
1973

Positions held at CenturyTel
* Vice President - 1982

* Senior Vice President and Treasurer - 1984

* Board of Directors - I 985

* Senior `lice President and C±iief Financial

Officer- 1986

* Executive Vice President and Chief Operating

Officer - 1988

* President and Chief Operating Officer -1990
* Vice Chairman of the Board, President and

Chief Executive Officer - 1992

* Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive

Officer - 20:2

Ed ucation
* Bachelor's rIree/4croLlnting - LoLnsiana Tech

Uni.ersity/Puston, Louisiana

* Master's [`e'ree/Business Administration -

Louisiana Tech University/Pustori, Louisiana

CentutyTel is an industry leader in providing communications

and broadband services in small-to-mid-size cities across the

United States. The company values its reputation for prov id

ing high-quality communications services that enable cus

tomers and markets served by CenturyTel to enjoy the rising

economic de'.elopiwnt opportunities afforded by advanced

communications services.

Under Glen Post's leadership enturyTel has `iio%n more

than 10-fdd and generated a nearly 450 percent total return

to sharehc'klers over the past 15 years.

Post f:rmed and leads a highly respected management team

that has transformed Centurylel from a small local exchange

communications company into a Fortune 10: and S&P 500

Integrated Communications Service Provider Under Post's

direction, CenturyTel is focused on delivering high-quality

products and services to its customers; partnering with the

communities it serves to promote economic development;

creatin'i a dynamic work environment for employees; cd

achieving industry-leading, long-term sharehdder value.

aNyprEL personal lout a advanced conirnuiications

2



Application for Centurylet Fiber Company II, LLC dlb/a LightCore, a CenturyTel Company

As Chief Operating Officer of CenturyTel since 2OGCç Puckett

directs all cf the compariysoperaticns, including sales. mar

keting, field operations, encneering. call centers and other

support functions.

Upon arrival at CenturyT?l. Puckett joined in tb? integration

cf nearly 500000 access lines acquired from TE in

Arkansas, Missouri and Wisconsin. She also led the 2001

company-wide realignment to a General Manager structure,

thus pushing decision making closer to the customer and

making `:enturjlel more responsi'e ti: the marketplace.

Puckett was instrumental in the effective divestiture of

CenturyTel's wfteless business, enabling the companys e:ecu

tion of a pure p rural wireline strategy In addition, she led

the effort to ii-'tegrate CenturyTel's largest sinqle access line

acquisition in its history. grcving the company by nearly

7irncicri access lines.

Puckett is a Board Membec of the United States Telecom

aso:ciaticn USIA.

cENy'I'FEL personal touc * djvur!ed cornniunications

Joined CenturyTel
21uJ11

With 24 years f telecommunications experience Karen

Puckett is an industry veteran.

Positions held at Centurylel
* Executive vice President and Chief Operating

Officer - 2' 00
* President and Chief Operating Officer - 2002

Education
* Bachelors DeIFCC - Indiana State UniversityzTerre

Haute, Indiana
* Master's Deqree/Business Administration -

EellarrnineCcilege/Louisville. Kentucky

3



Application for Centurylel Fiber Company II, LLC d/b/a LightCore, a CenturyTel Company

Positions held at Centurylel
Vice Frident of Finance -

Vice President and Controllet -1964

* Senior Vice President and Chief Financial

Officer- 1969

* Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
C:fficer - 1959

Education
* Bachelor's Dejree/E!usiriess -Northwestern State

University/Natchitoches, Louisiana

Stewart Ewing has played a hey role in `:enturyrels acquisi

tion strategy by negotiating all staoes of purchase a9ree-

ments from legal and regulatory to folding new companies

into Centurylehs corporate structure and philosophy His

resr:ensihilities include managing `:entur/rers accounting,

treasury, corporate de.elopmert and investor relations func

tions.

mci's etensiye eperence includes management of

Ceomrjlehs regulato information systems and corporate

ianning areas He has l:en a main contributor to

Centurylehs consistent earnings growth c.e-r the past se*eral

years.

Joined Centurylel
i9S

ENTURYTÉL persor'al touch jdvancecj cornriiu'iictioris
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Application for CenturyTel Fiber Company II, LLC d/b/a LightCore, a CenturyTe! Company

Joined CenturyTel
1982

Positions held at Centurylel

* Director of Regulatory Affairs- 1982
* Director of corporate Planning - 197
* Vice President and Controller -

* `lice President cf Finance and Administration,

Wireless Group - 1
* President, Wireless Group - 199.

* Senior Vice President, Operations Support -
1999

Education
* Bhelors Degree/Accounting - Universitj of

Louisiana at Monroe

* Master's DegFee/Rusiness Administration
- University cf Louisiana at Monr':'e

David Cole is responsihe for CenturyTels a.:c.ijnth., end-

user and carrier billing, revenUe assurance and financial plan-

ning

During his tenure at CenturvTel,. his resl:c'nsibilitles have

included `".erseeing the entire wireless operations including

finan:e, sales marketing. rec4i':'nal operations, engineering

and partnership relations; customer billin': negotiating inter

carder roamer agreements; directing all human resour':es

activities; directing and coordinatin' acquisitions. directing all

financial and accounting activities tc'r .:emun/Tels wireless

operations; and directing `:enturyTeft regulatory affairs.

2ENTUR'!TEL cersoral touch a advanced com',iuucatioris

-/
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Application for Centurylet Fiber Company II, LLC d/b/a LightCore, a CenturyTel Company

Positions held at CenturyTel
* Director of Corporate Legal Ser':ices - 19

* Vice President and Assistant 3e1-ieral Ccursel -

2:01

* Senior Vice President. Geneial Counsel and

Corporate >ecretary - 203

Education
* Bachelor's Degree'Pusiness - Mississippi State

Uni.ersity/StarkviUe. Mississippi

* Jur s Doctorate/Magna C urn Laude -

Uni.'ersity cf Mississippi.:Ctori, Mississippi

Stacey Goff has played a key role in negotiatir and dosing

the more than t billion of acquisitions and dispositions

l:_enturvTel has completed ovet the last seven years. Re also

contributes Vs the negotation of the companys complex

agreements and large dispute resolutions with third parties.

as well as assisting the company executiLe managern.mt

and board ct directors in their compliance with applicable

laws and regulations.

Goff's respisibilities also indude management of tue

`:entur/Tel's corporate adrninisntive support and xwporate

a*Aation functions.

EN?irEL personal touch . advanced cornniu,icatioris

`I

Joined CenturyTel
192
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Application for CenturyTel Fiber Company II, LLC d/b/a LightCore, a CenturyTel Company

Positions held at Centuryle?

* Senior Vice President and *:hief lnformatii

Officer -

Education
* Graduate CertificatelMarketing -Trenton State

UniversityTrenton, Ne Jersey

* Also attended Uniersity of Illinois and Illinois

Institute of Technology

M.aslowski believes a sharp focus on customer neecli, the

company abilit? t.: package its products and services, and

an infrastructure which enhances integration and acquisition

are three aitical success factors for information systems at

Centurylel. His major focus is V: imprcze the systems capa

bility to povide better servire to enturyTel customers.

CENTURYTEL t,,rsurjI touch * djyrJ,rced QQrrlrrru'HciJIQrlS

Joined CenturyTel Mike Maslowski is CenturyTek first errior vi.:e President

and Thief Information Officer. He is responsible for all of the

company infcrrnaticn systems activities. He has 30 years cf

experience working in the telecommunications business svith

Illinois Fell. AT&L Lucent Technc1cgies amid CenturyTel.
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FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

DIVISION OF COMPETITIVE MARKETS AND ENFORCEMENT

APPLICATION FORM

for

AUTHORITY TO PROVIDE COMPETITIVE LOCAL EXCHANGE

TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY SERVICE

WITHIN THE STATE OF FLORIDA

Instructions

A. This form is used as an application for an original certificate and for approval of sale,

assignment or transfer of an existing certificate. In the case of a sale, assignment or

transfer, the information provided shall be for the purchaser, assignee or transferee

See Page 8.

B. Print or type all responses to each item requested in the application. If an item is not

applicable, please explain.

C. Use a separate sheet for each answer which will not fit the allotted space.

0. Once completed, submit the original and two 2 copies of this form along with a non-

refundable application fee of $400.00 to:

Florida Public Service Commission

Division of the Commission Clerk and Administrative Services

2540 Shumard Oak Blvd.

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850

850 413-6770

E. A filing fee of $400.00 is required for the sale, assignment or transfer of an existing

certificate to another company Chapter 25-24.815, F.A.C..

F. If you have questions about completing the form, contact:

Florida Public Service Commission

Division of Competitive Markets and Enforcement

2540 Shumard Oak Blvd.

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850

850 413-6600

FORM PSC/CMP-8 01106 Note: To complete this interactive form

Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.810, using your computer, use the tab key

and 25-24.815 to navigate between data entry fields.

-1-



FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

DIVISION OF COMPETITIVE MARKETS AND ENFORCEMENT

APPLICATION FORM

for

AUTHORITY TO PROVIDE COMPETITIVE LOCAL EXCHANGE

TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY SERVICE

WITHIN THE STATE OF FLORIDA

Instructions

A. This form is used as an application for an original certificate and for approval of sale,

assignment or transfer of an existing certificate. In the case of a sale, assignment or

transfer, the information provided shall be for the purchaser, assignee or transferee

See Page 8.

B. Print or type all responses to each item requested in the application. If an item is not

applicable, please explain.

C. Use a separate sheet for each answer which will not fit the allotted space.

0. Once completed, submit the original and two 2 copies of this form along with a non-

refundable application fee of $400.00 to:

Florida Public Service Commission

Division of the Commission Clerk and Administrative Services

2540 Shumard Oak Blvd.

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850

850 413-6770

E. A filing fee of $400.00 is required for the sale, assignment or transfer of an existing

certificate to another company Chapter 25-24.815, F.A.C..

F. If you have questions about completing the form, contact:

Florida Public Service Commission

Division of Competitive Markets and Enforcement

2540 Shumard Oak Blvd.

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850

850 413-6600

FORM PSC/CMP-8 01/06 Note: To complete this interactive form

Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.810, using your computer, use the tab key

and 25-24.815 to navigate between data entry fields.
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FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

DIVISION OF COMPETITIVE MARKETS AND ENFORCEMENT

APPLICATION FORM

for

AUTHORITY TO PROVIDE COMPETITIVE LOCAL EXCHANGE

TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY SERVICE

WITHIN THE STATE OF FLORIDA

Instructions

A. This form is used as an application for an original certificate and for approval of sale,

assignment or transfer of an existing certificate. In the case of a sale, assignment or

transfer, the information provided shall be for the purchaser, assignee or transferee

See Page 8.

B. Print or type all responses to each item requested in the application. If an item is not

applicable, please explain.

C. Use a separate sheet for each answer which will not fit the allotted space.

D. Once completed, submit the original and two 2 copies of this form along with a non-

refundable application fee of $400.00 to:

Florida Public Service Commission

Division of the Commission Clerk and Administrative Services

2540 Shumard Oak Blvd.

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850

850 413-6770

E. A filing fee of $400.00 is required for the sale, assignment or transfer of an existing

certificate to another company Chapter 25-24.815, F.A.C..

F. If you have questions about completing the form, contact:

Florida Public Service Commission

Division of Competitive Markets and Enforcement

2540 Shumard Oak Blvd.

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850

850 413-6600

FORM PSC/CMP-8 01/06 Note: To complete this interactive form

Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.810, using your computer, use the tab key

and 25-24.815 to navigate between data entry fields.

-1-



Application for CenturyTel Fiber Company II, LLC dlb/a LightCorc, a CenturyTel Company

18 c Financial Capability

`l'he following documentation most current Form 10-K for CenturyTel, Inc., which was filed

with the Securities and Exchange Commission includes balance sheets, income statements and

statements of retained earnings for the most recent three years. Please note: a bound copy of

CenturyTel's 10K filing is provided with the original application and the relevant financial pages

of the same filing were copied and are provided with the two remaining copies of this

application.



UNITED STATES

SECURJTIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

X ] Annual Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15d of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007

or

Transition Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15d of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Commission file number 1-7784

CENTURYTEL, INC.

Exact name ofRegistrant as specified in its chartec9

Louisiana 72-0651161

State or otherjurisdiction of IRS Employer

incorporation or organization Identification Na

100 CenturyTel Drive. Monroe, Louisiana 71203

Address ofprincipal executive offices Zip `ode

Registrant's telephone number, including area code -318 388-9000

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12b of the Act:

Title of each class Name of each exchanee on which re2istered

Common Stock, par value $1.00 New York Stock Exchange

Berlin Stock Exchange

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12g of the Act:

Stock Options

Title ofclass

Indicate by check mark if the Registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities

Act. Yes [X} No

Indicate by check mark if the Registrant is not required to tile reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15d of the

Act. Yes [ } No [Xl

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant I has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15d of

the Act during the preceding 12 months or for such shorter period that the Registrant was required to file such

reports, and 2 has been subject to such filing requirements tbr the past 90 days. Yes [Xl No [

DOCLL" *
- DAi

1187k UEC23g

FPSC-CIDMM!SSION CL[1Th



Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained
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PART I

Item!. Business

General. CenturyTel, Inc., together with its subsidiaries., is an integrated communications company

engaged primarily in providing an array of communications services, including local and long distance voice,

Internet access and broadband services. We strive to maintain our customer relationships by. among other

things, bundling our service offerings to provide a complete offering of integrated communications services.

We conduct all of our operations in 25 states located within the continental United States.

At December 31, 2007. our incumbent local exchange telephone subsidiaries operated approximately 2.1

million telephone access lines, primarily in rural areas and small to mid-size cities in 24 states, with over 68%

of these lines located in Missouri, Wisconsin, Alabama, Arkansas and Washington. According to published

sources, we are the seventh largest local exchange telephone company in the United States based on the number

of access lines served.

We also provide fiber transport, competitive local exchange carrier, security monitoring, and other

communications and business information services in certain local and regional markets.

Since 2005, we have expanded our product offerings to include satellite television services, wireless

communications services under a reselling arrangement and wireless broadband services. For additional

information, see "Operations - Recent Product Developments" below.

For information on the amount of revenue derived by our various lines of services, see "Operations -

Services" below and Item 7 of this annual report.

Recent acquisitions. On April 30, 2007, we acquired all of the outstanding stock of Madison River

Communications Corp. "Madison River" for approximately $322 million cash including the effect of post-

closing adjustments. in connection with the acquisition, we also paid all of Madison River's existing indebtedness

including accrued interest, which approximated $522 million. At the time of this acquisition. Madison River

operated approximately I 64.000 predominantly rural access lines in four states with more than 30% high-speed

Internet penetration and its network included ownership in a 2.400 route mile fiber network.

In June 2005, we acquired fiber assets in 16 metropolitan markets from KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.

"[MC" for approximately $75.5 million cash, which has enabled us to offer broadband and competitive local

exchange services to customers in these markets.

In June 2003. we purchased for $39.4 million cash the assets of Digital Teleport. Inc.. a regional

communications company providing wholesale data transport services to other communications carriers over its

fiber optic network located in Missouri, Arkansas, Oklahoma and Kansas. in addition, in December 2003, we
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acquired additional fiber transport assets in Arkansas, Missouri and Illinois from Level 3 Communications. Inc.

for approximately $15.8 million cash. For additional information, see "Operations - Services - Fiber Transport

and CLEC."

We also acquired approximately 660.000. 490,000 and 650,000 telephone access lines in transactions

completed in 1997, 2000 and 2002, respectively, each of which substantially expanded our operations. The

2002 acquisition of telephone access lines was funded primarily from proceeds received from the sale of

substantially all of our wireless operations in August 2002.

We continually evaluate the possibility of acquiring additional communications assets in exchange fbr

cash, securities or both, and at any given time may be engaged in discussions or negotiations regarding

additional acquisitions. We generally do not announce our acquisitions or dispositions until we have entered

into a preliminary or definitive agreement. Although our primary focus will continue to be on acquiring

interests that are proximate to our properties or that serve a customer base large enough for us to operate

elliciently, we may also acquire other communications interests and these acquisitions could have a material

impact upon us.

Where to find additional information. We make available our filings with the Securities and Exchange

Commission "SEC" on Forms 10-K, lO-Q and 8-K on our website www.centiirytel.com as soon as

reasonably practicable after we complete such filings with the SEC. These documents may also be obtained

from the SEC' s website at www.see.gov.

We also make available on our website our Corporate Governance Guidelines, our Corporate Compliance

Program and the charters of our audit, compensation, risk evaluation, and nominating and corporate governance

committees. We will furnish printed copies of these materials free of charge upon the req uesl of any

shareholder. If a provision of our Corporate Compliance Program is amended, other than by a technical.

administrative or other non-substantive amendment, or a waiver under this program is granted to a director or

executive officer, notice of such amendment or waiver will be posted on our website. Also, we may elect to

disclose the amendment or waiver in a report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC. Only our board of directors may

consider a waiver of our Corporate Compliance Program for a director or executive officer.

In connection with tiling this annual report, our chief executive officer and chief financial officer made the

certifications regarding our financial disclosures required under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, and the Act's

related regulations. In addition, during 2007 our chief executive officer certified to the New York Stock

Exchange that he was unaware of any violation by us of the New York Stock Exchange's corporate governance

listing standards.

Industry information. Unless otherwise indicated, information contained in this annual report and other

documents filed by us under the federal securities laws concerning our views and expectations regarding the
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communications industry are based on estimates made by us using data from industry sources, and on

assumptions made by us based on our management's knowledge and experience in the markets in which we

operate and the communications industry generally. We believe these estimates and assumptions are accurate

as of the date made; however, this information may prove to be inaccurate because it cannot always be verified

with certainty. You should be aware that we have not independently verified data from industry or other third-

party sources and cannot guarantee its accuracy or completeness. Our estimates and assumptions involve risks

and uncertainties and are subject to change based on various factors, including those discussed in item IA of

this annual report.

Other. As of December 31, 2007. we had approximately 6.600 employees, of which approximately 1,600

were members of 15 different bargaining units represented by the International Brotherhood of Electrical

Workers and the Communications Workers of America. We believe that retations with our employees continue

to be generally good. During 2006 and 2007, we announced reductions of our workforce which aggregated

approximately 600 jobs. primarily due to I increased competitive pressures, ii the loss of access lines over

the last several years and iii progress made on our Madison River integration plan.

We were incorporated under Louisiana law in 1968 to serve as a holding company for several telephone

companies acquired over the previous IS to 20 years. Our principal executive offices are located at 100

CenturyTel Drive, Monroe, Louisiana 71203 and our telephone number is 318 388-9000.

OPERATIONS

According to published sources, we are the seventh largest local exchange telephone company in the

United States, based on the approximately 2.1 million access lines we served at December 31, 2007. An

"access line" is a telephone line that connects a home or business to the public switched telephone network. All

of our access lines arc digitally switched. Through our operating telephone subsidiaries, we provide local

exchange services to predominantly rural areas and small to mid-size cities in 24 states.

S

S

S

1

6



The following table lists additional information regarding our access lines as of December 31. 2007 and

2006.

December 3!. 2007 December 31. 2006

Number of Percent of Number of Percent of

State access lines access lines access lines access lines

Missouri 408,000 19% 424,000 20%

Wisconsin 1 387,000 18 413,000 20

Alabama 2 290,000 14 249.000 12

Arkansas 211,000 10 227.000 II

Washington 157,000 7 166.000 8

Michigan 91,000 4 96,000 5

Colorado 86,000 4 90,000 4

Louisiana 84,000 4 90,000 4

Oregon 66,000 3 70,000 3

Ohio 64.000 3 72.000 3

Illinois 2 57,000 3 - -

Montana 57,000 3 60.000 3

ieorgia 2 34.000 2 - -

Texas 33,000 2 37,000 2

Minnesota 27,000 I 28,000

Tennessee 23,000 1 25,000 I

Mississippi 22,000 1 23,000

North Carolina 2 14,000 * - -

New Mexico 6.000 * 6,000 *

Wyoming 6,000 * 6,000 *

Idaho 5,000 * 5.000 *

Indiana 5.000 * 5,000 *

Iowa 2,000 * 2,000 *

Nevada * * * *

2J35.000 100% 2.094 000 100%

* Represents less than 1% or less than 1,000 access lines.

I As of December 31, 2007 and 2006. approximately 51.000 and 53,000, respectively, of these lines were

owned and operated by our 89%-owned affiliate.

2 In connection with our acquisition of Madison River in April 2007, we acquired an aggregate of

approximately 164,000 access lines in Illinois. Alabama. Georgia and North Carolina.



The following table summarizes certain infommtion related to our customer base, operating revenues and

capital expenditures for the past live years. The 2007 information includes the Madison River properties we

acquired on April 30. 2007.

As discussed further below, our access lines exclusive of acquisitions have declined in recent years. and

are expected to continue to decline. To mitigate these declines, we hope to. among other things, i promote

long-term relationships with our customers through bundling of integrated services, ii provide new services,

such as video and wireless, and other additional services that may become available in the future due to

advances in technology, spectrum sales or improvements in our infrastructure, iii provide our premium

services to a higher percentage of our customers, iv pursue acquisitions of additional communications

properties if available at attractive prices, v increase usage of our networks, vi provide greater penetration of

broadband services and vii market our products to new customers. See "Services" and "Regulation and

Competition."

Services

We derive revenue from providing i local exchange and long distance voice telephone services, ii

network access services, iii data services, which includes both high-speed and dial-up Internet services, as

well as special access and private line services, iv fiber transport, competitive local exchange and security

monitoring services and v other related services. The following table reflects the percentage of operating

revenues derived from these respective services:

S

2007 2006 2005

Voice 33.5% 35.6 36.4

Network access 35.4 35.9 38.7

Data 17.4 14.4 12.9

Fiber transport and CLEC 6.0 6.1 4.7

Other 7.7

100.0%

8.0

100.0

7.3

100.0

Year ended or as of December 31.

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Dollars in thousands

Access lines 2.135,000 2.094,000 2,214,000 2.314,000 2,376,000

% Residential 73% 74 75 75 76

% Business 27% 26 25 25 24

Internet customers 623.000 459,000 357,000 271,000 223,000

% High-speed Internet service 89% 80 70 53 37

% Dial-up scrvicc 11% 20 30 47 63

Operating revenues $ 2.656,24 I 2,447,730 2,479,252 2.407,372 2,367,610

Capital expenditures $ 326.045 314.071 414.872 385,316 377,939

S

S

S

S

S

S

`S

S

S

S
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Voice. We derive our local service revenues by providing local exchange telephone services in our

franchised service areas, including basic dial-tone service through our regular switched network, generally tbr a

fixed monthly charge. Normalized for acquisitions, dispositions and other adjustments, access lines declined

5.7% in 2007, 4.8% in 2006 and 4.3% in 2005. We believe these declines in the number of access lines were

primarily due to the displacement of traditional wireline telephone services by other competitive services.

Based on our planned results for recent sales and retention initiatives, we are targeting our access line loss to be

between 4.5% and 6.0% in 2008.

We offer enhanced voice services such as call forwarding, conference calling, caller identification,

selective call ringing and call waiting to our local exchange customers for additional charges. In 2007, we

continued to expand the availability of enhanced voice services offered in certain service areas. At December

31. 2007, over 60% of both our business and residential customers subscribed to one or more enhanced voice

services.

We derive our long distance revenues by providing retail long distance services based on either usage or

pursuant to flat-rate calling plans. At December31. 2007, we provided long distance services to nearly 1.3

million lines. Exclusive of the long distance lines associated with Madison River, our long distance lines

declined slightly in 2007, principally due to competitive factors. We anticipate that most of our long distance

service will be provided as part of an integrated bundle with our other service offerings, including our local

exchange telephone service ofièring.

Network access. We derive our network access revenues primarily from i providing services to various

carriers and customers in connection with the usc of our facilities to originate and terminate their interstate and

intrastate voice transmissions and ii receiving universal support finds which allows us to recover a portion of

our costs under federal and state cost reeoveiy mechanisms see "Regulation and Competition Relating to

Incumbent Local Exchange Operations" below. Our revenues for switched access services depend primarily

on the level of call volume.

Certain of our interstate network access revenues are based on tariffed access charges prescribed by the

Federal Communications Commission "FCC' the remainder of such revenues are derived under revenue

sharing arrangements with other local exchange carriers "LECs" administered by the National Exchange

Carrier Association "NECA", a quasi-governmental non-profit organization formed by the FCC in 1983 for

such purposes.

Certain of our intrastate network access revenues arc derived through access charges that we bill to

intrastate long distance carriers and other LIC customers. Such intrastate network access charges are based on

tariffed access charges. which are subject to state regulatory commission approval. Additionally, certain of our
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intrastate network access revenues, along with intrastate and intra-LATA Local Access and Transport Areas

long distance revenues, arc derived through revenue sharing arrangements with other LECs.

The Telecommunications Act of 1996 the "1996 Act" allows local exchange carriers to tile access tariffs

on a streamlined basis and, if certain criteria are met, deems those tariffs lawful. Tariffs that have been

"deemed lawful" in effect nullify an interexehange carrier's ability to seek refunds should the earnings from the

tariffs ultimately result in earnings above the authorized rate of return prescribed by the FCC. Certain of our

telephone subsidiaries file interstate tariffs with the FCC using this streamlined filing approach. Since July

2004. we have recognized billings from our tariffs as revenue since we believe such tariffs are "deemed lawful".

Data. We derive our data revenues primarily from monthly recurring charges for providing Internet

access services both high-speed and dial-up services and data transmission services over special circuits and

private lines. We began offering traditional dial-up Internet access services to our telephone customers in

1995. In late 1999, we began offering high-speed Internet access services, a premium-priced broadband data

service. As of December 31, 2007, approximately 84% of our access lines were broadband-enabled. At

December 31, 2007, we provided high-speed Internet access services to over 555.000 customers and dial-up

services to nearly 68,000 customers. During 2007, we added over 186,000 high-speed internet customers

which includes approximately 58,000 from the Madison River acquisition.

Our data revenue also includes amounts billed to our business customers for dedicated circuits used for

various purposes. including connecting the customer's offices or networks to our networks.

Fiber transport and CLEC. Our fiber transport and CLEC revenues include revenues from our fiber

transport, competitive local exchange carrier "CLEC" and security monitoring businesses.

In late 2000, we began offering competitive local exchange telephone services as part of a bundled service

offering to small to medium-sized businesses in Monroe and Shreveport. Louisiana. In February 2002. we

purchased the fiber network and customer base of KMC's operations in Monroe and Shreveport, Louisiana and

in June 2005, we purchased the fiber assets in 16 metropolitan markets from KMC which allowed us to offer

broadband and competitive local exchange services to customers in these markets. We intend to focus our

etlorts on the CLEC markets with the most promise, and arc exploring our alternatives with respect to the

remaining markets. As of December 31, 2007. our competitive local exchange markets provided service over

1,200 miles of fiber.

Under the name "LightCore". we sell fiber capacity to other carriers and businesses over a network that

encompassed, at December 31, 2007, over 9,900 miles of fiber in the central United States. We began our fiber

transport business during 2001, when we began selling capacity over a 700-mile fiber optic ring that we

constructed in southern and central Michigan. In June 2003. we acquired the assets of Digital Teleport, Inc., a

regional communications company providing wholesale data transport services to other communications
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carriers over its fiber optic network located in Missouri, Arkansas, Oklahoma and Kansas. We have used the

network to sell services to new and existing customers and to reduce our reliance on third party transport

providers. In addition, in December 2003, we acquired additional fiber transport assets in Arkansas, Missouri

and Illinois from Level 3 Communications. Inc. to provide services similar to those described above.

In addition to the above-described fiber network, in connection with our 2007 acquisition of Madison

River, we acquired ownership in a 2,400 route mile fiber network located in six states which provides us the

opportunity to expand our fiber network business and further reduce our reliance on third-party transport

providers.

We offer 24-hour burglary and fire monitoring services to over 10,500 customers in select markets in

Louisiana, Arkansas, Mississippi, Texas and Ohio.

Other, We derive our "other revenues" principally by i leasing. selling, installing and maintaining

customer premise telecommunications equipment and wiring. iiproviding billing and collection services to

third parties. iii participating in the publication of local telephone directories, which allows us to share in

revenues generated by the sale of yellow page and related advertising to businesses, and iv offering our new

services described below under the heading "-Recent Product Developments". We also provide printing,

database management and direct mail services and cable television services.

From time to time, we also make investments in other domestic or foreign communications companies.

For further information on regulatory, technological and competitive changes that could impact our

revenues, see "Regulation and Competition" under this Item I below and "Risk Factors and Cautionary

Statements" under Item IA below. For more information on the financial contributions of our various services,

see Item 7 of this annual report.

Recent Product Developments

Since 2005, we have offered in conjunction with EchoStar Communications Corporation `EchoStar" co

branded DISH Network satellite television service in substantially all of our local exchange service areas.

Effective January I, 2007. we changed our relationship with EchoStar from a revenue sharing arrangement to an

agency relationship. In late 2005. we initiated our switched digital television service to the LaCrosse.

Wisconsin market and, in October 2007, we commenced a second switched digital video service offering to our

Columbia, Missouri market.

We also offer wireless communications services through a reselling arrangement with a nationwide

wireless carrier and wireless broadband Internet services in select locations in certain markets in eight states.



Federal Financing Programs

Certain of our telephone subsidiaries receive long-term financing from the Rural Utilities Seivice

"RUS'. a federal agency that has historically provided long-term financing to telephone companies at

relatively attractive interest rates. Approximately 14% of our plant is pledged to secure obligations of our

telephone subsidiaries to the RUS. For additional information regarding our financing, see our consolidated

financial statements included in Item 8 herein.

Sales and Marketing

We maintain local offices in most of the larger population centers within our service territories. These

offices are typically staffed by local residents and provide sales and customer support services in the

community. We also rely on our call center personnel to promote sales of services that meet the distinctive

needs of our customers. In addition, our strategy is to enhance our communications services by offering

comprehensive bundling of services and deploying new technologies to build upon the strong reputation we

enjoy in our markets and to further promote customer loyalty.

Most of our services are offered under our "CenturyTel" brand name. However, we sell fiber capacity on

our networks under the brand name "LightCore." In addition, our satellite television service is offered on a co

branded basis with EchoStar under the DISH Network name.

Network Architecture

Our local exchange carrier networks consist of central office hosts and remote sites, all with advanced

digital switches primarily manufactured by Nortel and Siemens and operating with licensed software. Our

outside plant consists of transport and distribution delivery networks connecting each of our host central offices -

to our remote central offices, and ultimately to our customers. As of December31. 2007, we maintained over

252.000 miles of copper plant and approximately 20,000 miles of fiber optic plant in our local exchange

networks. Our fiber optic cable is the primary transport technology between our host and remote central offices

and interconnection points with other incumbent carriers. Most of our long distance service is provided directly

through our own switches and network equipment, with the balance being provided through reselling

arrangements with other long distance carriers. We also maintain networks in connection with providing fiber

transport and CLEC services. For additional information on these networks, see "Services - Fiber Transport

and CLEC."

Regulation and Competition Relating to Incumbent Local Exchange Operations

Traditionally, LECs operated as regulated monopolies having the exclusive right and responsibility to

provide local telephone services in their franchised service territories. These LECs are sometimes referred to

below as "incumbent LECs" or "ILECs". Consequently, most of our intrastate telephone operations have

S
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traditionally been regulated extensively by various state regulatory agencies generally called public service

commissions or public utility commissions and our interstate operations have been regulated by the FCC under

the Communications Act of 1934. As we discuss in greater detail below, passage of the 1996 Act, coupled with

state legislative and regulatory initiatives and technological changes. fundamentally altered thc telephone

industry by generally reducing the regulation of LECs and attracting a substantial increase in the number of

competitors and capital invested in existing and new services. We anticipate that these trends toward reduccd

regulation and increased competition will continue.

The following description discusses some of the major industry regulations that affect our traditional

telephone operations, but numerous other regulations not discussed below could also impact us- Some

legislation and regulations are currently the subject ofjudicial proceedings. legislative hearings and

administrative proposals which could substantially change the manner in which the communications industry

operates. Neither the outcome of any of these developments, nor their potential impact on us, can be predicted

at this time. l'he impact of regulatory changes in the communications industry could have a substantial impact

on our operations. See Item IA of this annual report below.

State regulation. The local service rates and intrastate access charges of substantially all of our telephone

subsidiaries are regulated by state regulatory commissions which typically have the power to grant and revoke

certifications authorizing companies to provide communications services. Most commissions have traditionally

regulated pricing through "rate of return" regulation that focuses on authorized levels of earnings by LECs.

Historically, most of these commissions also i regulated the purchase and sale of LECs. ii prescribed

depreciation rates and certain accounting procedures, iii enforced laws requiring LECs to provide universal

service under publicly filed tariffs setting forth the terms, conditions and prices of their LEC serviccs. iv

oversaw implementation of several federal telecommunications laws including interconnection obligations and

v regulated various other matters, including certain service standards and operating procedures.

In recent years, state legislatures and regulatory commissions in most of the 24 states in which our

telephone subsidiaries operate have either reduced the regulation of LECs or have announced their intention to

do so, and we expect this trend will continue. Essentially, such relief comes in two forms: i full or partial

deregulation through legislation or ii the ability to elect into or renew existing state alternative regulation

through a regulatory proceeding. Several states have implemented laws or rulings which require or permit

L.FCs at the state level to either be deregulated for pricing or opt out of "rate of return" regulation in exchange

for agreeing to alternative forms of regulation. Such alternatives permit the LEC greater freedom to establish

local service rates in exchange for agreeing not to charge rates in excess of specified caps. As discussed further

below, subsidiaries operating over 72% of our access lines in various states have agreed to be governed by

alternative regulation plans, and we continue to explore our options for similar treatment in other states. We

believe that reduced regulatory oversight of certain of our telephone operations may allow us to offer new and

competitive services faster than under the traditional regulatory process. For a discussion of legislative.
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regulatory and technological changes that have introduced competition into the local exchange industry, see

"Developments Affecting Competition."

The following summary describes the alternative regulation plans applicable to us in Wisconsin. Missouri,

Alabama and Arkansas, our four largest telephone markets.

Our Wisconsin access lines, except for those acquired from Verizon in 2000 which continue to be

regulated under "rate of return" regulation, arc regulated under various alternative regulation plans developed

jointly between the Wisconsin Public Service Commission and us. Each of these alternative regulation plans

permits us to adjust local rates within specified parameters if we meet certain quality-of-service and

infrastructure-development commitments. These plans also include initiatives designed to promote competition.

-I

All of our Missouri LECs are regulated under a price-cap regulation plan whereby basic service rates

are adjusted annually based on an inflation-based factor; non-basic services may be increased without restriction

up to 5% annually. If the inflation-based factor were to decline as it has done in recent years, our revenues

would be negatively impacted.

* In 2005. the state of Alabama passed legislation that essentially allowed telephone companies the

option to phase in deregulation of certain LEC services. In February 2007, our Alabama LEEs opted to provide

all local services including bundled services but excluding certain basic telephone and optional calling

services on a deregulated and dctariffed basis. Certain basic telephone and optional calling services continue

to be regulated and subject to a price cap. Our Alabama properties acquired from Madison River operate under

a separate alternative regulation plan under which local rates are still governed by the state public service

commission.

* Our Arkansas LEEs acquired from Vcrizon Communications, Inc. are regulated under an alternative

regulation plan under which rates can be adjusted based on an inflation-based factor. Other local rates can be

adjusted without commission approval; however, such rates are subject to commission review under certain

conditions. Our remaining Arkansas LECs have the option to increase rates up to certain specified amounts.

Notwithstanding the movement toward alternative regulation. LECs operating approximately 28% of our

total access lines continue to be subject to "rate of return" regulation for intrastate purposes. These LECs

remain subject to the powers of state regulatory commissions to conduct earnings reviews and adjust service

rates, either of which could lead to revenue reductions.

w

Federal regulation. Our telephone subsidiaries are required to comply with the Communications Act of

1934, which requires us to offer services at just and reasonable rates and on non-discriminatory terms, as well as

the 1996 Act, which amended the Communications Act to promote competition and reform the Universal

Service Program.
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The FCC regulates interstate services provided by our telephone subsidiaries primarily by regulating the

interstate access ehat-ges that we bill to long distance companies and other communications companies for use

of our network in connection with the origination and termination of inierstate voice and data transmissions.

Additionally, the FCC has prescribed certain rules and regulations for telephone companies, including a uniform

system of accounts and rules regarding the separation of costs between jurisdictions and, ultimately, between

interstate services, in addition, the FCC has responsibility for maintaining and administering the Universal

Service Fund. LECs must obtain FCC approval to use certain radio frequencies. or to transfer control of any

such licenses. The FCC retains the right to revoke these licenses if a carrier materially violates relevant legal

requirements.

The FCC requires price-cap regulation of interstate access rates for the Regional Bell Operating

Companies. and permits it for all other LECs. Under price-cap regulation, limits imposed on a company's

interstate rates arc adjusted periodically to reflect inflation, productivity improvement and changes in certain

non-controllable costs. We have not elected price-cap regulation for our telephone operations., except for the

properties we acquired from Verizon in 2002 which have continued to operate under price-cap regulation, as

permitted under FCC rules for acquired properties. All of our other operations continue to be governed by

traditional rate-of-return regulation for interstate access charges, which permits us to set rates based on

forecasted investment and expenses plus a return on investment, which is currently 11.25%. In the last half of

2007. certain carriers filed a petition with the FCC seeking to convert their properties from rate of return

regulation to price-cap regulation in the interstate jurisdiction. In order to achieve this conversion, these carriers

petitioned the FCC to make numerous rule changes that would provide a blueprint for rate of return carriers to

opt into price-cap regulation.

In 2003, the FCC opened a broad intercanier compensation proceeding with the ultimate goal of creating a

uniform mechanism to be used by the entire telecommunications industry for payments between carriers

originating, terminating, or carrying telecommunications traffic. The FCC has received intercanier

compensation proposals from several industry groups, and in early 2005 solicited comments on all proposals

previously submitted to it. Broad industry negotiations have taken place with the goal of developing a

consensus plan that addresses the concerns of carriers from all industry segments. The ultimate outcome of this

proceeding could change the way we receive compensation from, and remit compensation to. other carriers. our

end user customers and the federal Universal Service Fund the "USF'. Until the FCC" s proceeding concludes

and the changes, if any, to the existing rules are established, we cannot estimate the impact it will have on our

results of operations.

In December 2005, a group of six mid-size carriers, including us. filed proposed rules with the FCC'

regarding "phantom traffic". "Phantom traffie' generally refers to telecommunications calls that cannot be

billed properly to responsible carriers by other carriers in the call path because the traffic is mislabeled,

unlabeled or improperly routed. The proposal requests that the FCC implement and enforce updated rules that
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require carriers to accurately identify, label and route network traffic so that appropriate bills can be created. In

late 2006. the FCC opened a separate phantom traffic proceeding with the intent of formalizing potential

phantom traffic rules for the industry. Overall, the comments received to date on the phantom traffic issue have

been favorable to us; however, until the FCC concludes its phantom traffic proceeding and adopts changes, if

any, to existing rules, we cannot estimate the impact any changes will have on our results of operations.

As discussed further below, certain providers of competitive communications services are currently not

required to compensate ILECs for the use of their networks. Additionally, certain deregulated providers seek and

receive high cost universal support funding based on the incumbent's costs rather than their own.

Our operations and those of all communications carriers also may be impacted by legislation and

regulation imposing new or greater obligations related to assisting law enforcement, bolstering homeland

security, minimizing environmental impacts, or addressing other issues that impact our business, including the

Communications Assistance for Law Enforcement Act, and laws governing local number portability and

customer proprietary network information requirements. These laws and regulations may cause us to incur

additional costs.

Universal service support funds, revenue sharing arrangements and related matters. A significant number

of our telephone subsidiaries recover a portion of their costs from the federal USF and from similar state

"universal support" mechanisms, which receive their funding from fees charged to interexehange carriers and

LECs. Disbursements from these programs traditionally have focused principally on allowing LECs serving

small communities and rural areas to provide communications services on terms and at prices reasonably

comparable to those available in urban areas. Other USF programs address other social goals, such as

supporting schools and libraries through the USF's E-rate program.

The table below sets forth the amounts received by our telephone subsidiaries in 2007 and 2006 from -

federal and state universal support programs.

S

w

S
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Year ended December 3 I,

2007 2006
0 of Total of Total

2007 2006

Amount Operating Amount Operating

Support Proeram Received Revenues Received Revenues

amounts in millions

USF High Cost Loop Support $ 166.5 6.3% S 163.1 6.6%

Other Federal Support Proerams 133.9 5.0% 134.6 5.5%

Total Federal Suprt Receipts 300.4 11.3% 297.7 121%

State Support Protrams 35.6 13% 36.2 I

TOTAL S 336.0 - ll6°/ S 333.9 13.6Th1

Federal USF programs have undergone substantial changes since 1997, and are expected to experience

more changes in the coming years as modernization of the overall program moves forward. As mandated by the

1996 Act, in May 2001 the FCC. modified its existing universal service support mechanism for rural telephone

companies by adopting an interim mechanism for a five-year period based on embedded, or historical, costs that

provide relatively predictable levels of support to many LECs. including substantially all of our LECs In May

2006, the FCC extended this interim mechanism until such time that new high-cost support rules are adopted for

rural telephone companies.

Universal support funds available to ILLCs are currently available to local competitors that 0 certify they

will serve all customers in a study area, ii offer nine core services, and iii qualif' as an "eligible

telecommunications carrier." Wireless and other competitive service providers continue to seek to quali1' to

receive USF support. This trend, coupled with changes in usage of telecommunications services, have placed

stress on the funding mechanism of the USF. which is subject to annual caps on disbursements. These

developments have placed additional financial pressure on the amount of money that is necessary and available

to provide support to all eligible servicc providers, including support payments we receive from the LJSF High

Cost Loop support program.

A significant portion of our support payments have varied over time based on our average cost to serve

customers compared to national cost averages. Under the USF High Cost Loop support program, which is the

USE's principal support program, our payments From the USF will decrease if national average costs per loop

increase at a rate greater than our average cost per loop. Increases in the nationwide average cost per loop

factor used to allocate funds among all USF recipients caused our revenues from the USF High Cost Loop

support program to decrease in 2006 when compared to 2005. While our 2007 USF High Cost Loop support

program receipts approximated 2006 levels, we anticipate that our 2008 revenues from the USE High Cosi Loop

support program will be lower than 2007 by approximately $ 14-SI 7 million.
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In late 2002, the FCC requested that the Federal-State Joint Board "FSJB" on Universal Service review

various FCC rules governing high cost universal service support, including rules regarding eligibility to receive

support payments in markets served by LECs and competitive carriers. Since then, the FSJB recommended a

comprehensive general review of the high-cost support mechanisms for rural and non-rural carriers and

requested comments on the FCC's current rules for the provision of high-cost support for rural companies,

including comments on whether eligibility requirements should be amended in a manner that would adversely

affect larger rural LECs such as us. In addition, the FCC has taken various other steps in anticipation of

restructuring universal service support mechanisms, including, most recently, opening for public comment in

early 2008 several proposals that contemplate a substantial restructuring of current USF programs.

On May I, 2007, the FSJB proposed that thc FCC consider an interim cap on the amount of high cost

support that competitive eligible telecommunications carriers "CETCs" may receive. On November 20, 2007,

the FSJB issued another recommended decision on universal service reform which suggested various reform

measures including a migration of the present funding mechanisms to three new separate funds covering

broadband providers, mobility providers, and providers of last resort. The FSJL3 also recommended elimination

of the identical support rule which now enables wireless CETCs to draw identical support based on the ILEC's

cost. In addition, the FSJB is recommending certain other reforms, including i caps on the present high cost

funding mechanism, ii certification of only one wireline, one wireless and one broadband carrier in each

market and iii further consideration of competitive bidding as a distribution mechanism. Until the FCC acts

on these recommendations, we cannot estimate the impact that such proposals would have on our operations. In

addition, there are a number ofjudicial appeals challenging several aspects of the FCC's universal service rules

and various Congressional proposals seeking to substantially modify USF programs, none of which have been

resolved at this time. We will continue to be active in monitoring and participating in these developments.

In 2004, the FCC mandated changes in the administration of the universal service support programs that

temporarily suspended the disbursement of funds under the USF's E-rate program for service to Schools and

Libraries, and, more significantly, created questions that these administrative changes could similarly delay the

disbursement of funds to LECs from the Universal Service High Cost Loop support program. Congress has

passed bills in recent years granting successive one-year exemptions from the federal law that impacted the E

rate program. including a bill extending lie exemption through December 31. 2007. An additional exemption is

currently pending before Congress. Although we expect funding from this program to continue, we cannot

assure you that the lack of a definitive resolution of this issue will not delay or impede the disbursement of

funds in the future.

A substantial portion of our state support payments are payable by Louisiana under a program restructured

in 2005 into a state universal service fund that expanded the base of contributors to include all

telecommunication service providers operating in Louisiana. Thus far, the payments we have received under

this fund approximate those received by us under Louisiana's predecessor program. The fund is subject to an

annual review by the Louisiana Public Service Commission the "LPSC". As such, there can be no assurance

e
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that the fund will remain as adopted by the LPSC or that funding levels will remain at current levels, in

November 2007, the LPSC initiated a docket to determine the best way to convert the existing universal service

fund to a stable funding mechanism. The LPSC currently expects to complete its review by December 2008.

Some of our telephone subsidiaries operate in states where traditional cost recovery mechanisms,

including rate structures, are under evaluation or have been modified. See" State Regulation". There can be no

assurance that these states will continue to provide for cost recovery at current levels.

All of our interstate network access revenues are based on access charges, cost separation studies or

special settlement arrangements, many of which are administered by the FCC or NECA. and all of which are

subject to change. See "Services."

Certain long distance carriers continue to request that certain of our LECs reduce intrastate access tariffed

rates. Long distance carriers have also aggressively pursued regulatory or legislative changes that would reduce

access rates. However, in light of pending intercarrier compensation reform that is expected to address

intrastate access charges, most states are deferring action until they receive direction from the FCC. However,

some carriers are continuing to pursue lower intrastate access rates in some states.

Developments affecting competition. Over the past decade, fundamental technological, regulatory and

legislative changes have significantly impacted the communications industry, and we expect these changes will

continue. Primarily as a result of regulatory and technological changes, competition has been introduced and

encouraged in each sector of the communications industry in recent years. As a result, we increasingly face

competition from other communication service providers, as flirther described below.

Wireless telephone services increasingly constitute a significant source of competition with LEC services,

especially since wireless carriers have begun to compete effectively on the basis of price with more tradilional

telephone services. As a result, some customers have chosen to completely forego use of traditional wireline

phone service and instead rely solely on wireless service for voice services. This trend is more pronounced

among residential customers, which comprise 73% of our access line customers. We anticipate this trend will

continue, particularly if wireless service providers continue to expand their coverage areas, reduce their rates,

improve the quality of their services, and oiler enhanced new 5cr' ices. Substantially all of our access, line

customers are currently capable of receiving wireless services from a competitive service provider.

Technological and regulatory developments in wireless services, personal communications services. digital

microwave, satellite, coaxial cable, fiber optics, local multipoint distribution services and other wired and

wireless technologies are expected to further permit the development of alternatives to traditional landline

services.

The 1996 Act, which obligates LECs to permit competitors to interconnect their facilities to the LEC's

network and to take various other steps that are designed to promote competition, imposes several duties on a
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LEC if it receives a specific request from another entity which seeks to connect with or provide services using

the LEC's network. In addition, each incumbent LEC is obligated to i negotiate interconnection agreements in

good faith, ii provide nondiscriminatory "unbundled" access to all aspects of the LEC's network, iii offer

resale of its telecommunications services at wholesale rates and iv permit competitors, on terms and

conditions including rates that arc just, reasonable and nondiscriminatory, to collocate their physical plant on

the LEC's property, or provide virtual collocation if physical collocation is not practicable. During 2003, the

FCC released new rules outlining the obligations of incumbent LECs to lease to competitors elements of their

circuit-switched networks on an unbundled basis at prices that substantially limited the profitability of these

arrangements to incumbent LECs. In response to successful judicial challenges to these rules, in 2005 the FCC

released rules that required incumbent LECs to lease a network element only in those situations where

competing carriers genuinely would be impaired without access to such network element, and where the

unbundling would not interfere with the development of facilities-based competition. These rules are further

designed to remove LECs' unbundling obligations over time as competing carriers deploy their own networks

and local exchange competition increases.

Under the 1996 Act's rural telephone company exemption, approximately half of our telephone access

lines are exempt from certain of the 1996 Act's interconnection requirements unless and until the appropriate

state regulatory commission overrides the exemption upon receipt from a competitor of a bona fide request

meeting certain criteria. States are permitted to adopt laws or regulations that provide for greater competition

than is mandated under the 1996 Act.

As a result of these regulatory, consumer and technological developments, ILECs increasingly face

competition from CLECs. particularly in densely populated areas. CLECs provide competing services through

reselling the ILECs' local services, through use of the ILECs' unbundled network elements or through their

own facilities. The number of companies which have requested authorization to provide local exchange service

in our service areas has increased in recent years, especially in our markets acquired from Verizon in 2002 and

2000. We anticipate that similar action may be taken by other competitors in the future, especially if all forms

of federal support available to ILECs continue to remain available to these competitors.

As noted above, wireless and other competitive services providers have been increasingly aggressive in

seeking and obtaining USF support funds. This support is likely to encourage additional competitors to enter

our high-cost service areas.

Technological developments have led to the development of new services that compete with traditional

LEC services. Technological improvements have enabled cable television companies to provide telephone

service over their cable networks, and several national cable companies have aggressively pursued this

opportunity. As of December 31, 2007, we believe that approximately 40-45% of our access lines currently

face competition from cable voice offerings. Additionally, several large electric utilities have announced plans

to offer communications services that compete with some LECs.
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Improvements in the quality of VoIP service have led several cable, Internet, data and other

communications companies, as well as start-up companies, to substantially increase their offerings of Vol P

service to business and residential customers. VoW providers route calls partially or wholly over the Internet,

without use of ILEC's circuit switches and, in certain cases, without use of ILEC's networks to carry their

communications traffic. VoW providers frequently use existing broadband networks to deliver flat-rate, all

distance calling plans that may offer features that cannot readily be provided by traditional LECs. These plans

may also be priced competitively or below those currently charged for traditional local and long distance

telephone services for several reasons, including lower operating costs. In December 2003, the FCC initiated

rulemaking that is expected to address the etiect of VoIP on intercarrier compensation, universal service and

emergency services. Although the FCC's rulemaking regarding VoIP-enabled services remains pending, the

FCC has adopted orders establishing broad guidelines for the regulation of such services, including i an April

2004 order that found an IP-telephony service using the public switched telephone network to be a regulated

telecommunications service subject to interstate access charges, ii a November 2004 order that Internet-based

services provided by Vonage I loldings Corporation should be subject to federal rather than state regulation and

iii a June 2005 order requiring all VoIP service providers whose services are interconnected to the public

switched telephone network to provide E-91 I services to their customers. There can be no assurance that future

rulemaking will be on terms favorable to ILECs, or that VoIP providers will not successfully compete for our

customers.

Similar to us. many cable, entertainment, technology or other communications companies that previously

offered a limited range of services are now offering diversified bundles of services, either through their own

networks. reselling arrangements orjoint ventures. As such, a growing number of companies are competing to

serve the communications needs of the same customer base. Several of these companies started offering full

service bundles bet'ore us, which could give them an advantage in building customer loyalty. Such activities

will continue to place downward pressure on the demand for our access lines.

In addition to facing direct competition from those providers described above, ILECs increasingly face

competition from alternate communication systems constructed by long distance carriers, large customers or

alternative access vendors. These systems, which have become more prevalent as a result of the 1996 Act, are

capable of originating or terminating calls without use of the ILECs' networks or switching services. Other

potential sources of competition include non-carrier systems that are capable of bypassing ILEC's' local

networks, either partially or completely, through various means, including the provision of special access or

independent switching services and the concentration of telecommunications traffic on a few of the ILECs'

access lines. We anticipate that all these trends will continue and lead to decreased use of our networks.

Significant competitive factors in the local telephone industry include pricing, packaging of services and

features, quality and convenience of service and meeting customer needs such as simplified billing and timely

response to service calls.
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As the telephone industry increasingly experiences competition, the size and resources of each respective

competitor may increasingly influence its prospects. Many companies currently providing or planning to

provide competitive communication services have substantially greater financial and marketing resources than

we do or own larger or more diverse networks than ours. In addition, many of them are not subject to the same

regulatory constraints we are.

Competition can harm us by causing us to lose customers, or by causing us to lower prices or increase our

capital or operating expenses to retain customers. Competing communications services, such as wireless, VoW,

electronic mail and optional calling services. can also reduce usage of our network and thereby decrease our

network access revenues. Competition can also cause customers to reduce either usage of our services or switch

to less profitable services, and could impede our ability to diversi& into new lines of business dominated by

incumbent providers.

We anticipate that the traditional operations of LECs will continue to be impacted by changes in

regulation, technology, and consumer preferences affecting the ability of LECs to attract and retain customers

and the capability of wireless companies. CLECs, cable television companies, VolP providers, electric utilities

and others to provide competitive LEC services. Competition relating to traditional LEC services has thus far

affected large urban areas to a greater extent than the less dense areas in which we operate. We will actively

monitor these developments, observe the effect of emerging competitive trends in larger markets and continue

to evaluate new business opportunities that may arise out of future technological, legislative and regulatory

developments.

We expect our operating revenues in 2008 to decline as we continue to experience downward pressure

primarily due to continued access line losses, reduced network access revenues and lower prior year revenue

settlement amounts. We expect such declines to be partially offset primarily due to increased demand for our

high-speed Internet service offering and the impact of recognizing a full year of revenues associated with our

Madison River properties acquired in April 2007.

Regulation and Competition Relating to Other Operations

Long Distance Operations. We offer intra-LATA, intrastate and interstate long distance services. State

public service commissions generally regulate intra-LATA toll calls within the same LATA and inter-LATA

toll calls between different LATAs located in the same state. Federal regulators have jurisdiction over interstate

toll calls. Recent state regulatory changes have increased competition to provide intra-LATA toll services in

our local exchange markets. Competition for intrastate and interstate long distance services has been intense for

several years, and focuses primarily on price and pricing plans. and secondarily on customer service, reliability

and communications quality. Traditionally, our principal competitors for providing long distance services were

large long distance companies such as AT&T, regional phone companies and dial-around resellers. -
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increasingly, however, we have experienced competition from newer sources, including wireless companies

offering attractively-priced calling plans. Technological substitutions, including VoIP and electronic mail, have

further reduced demand for traditional long distance services. lo counter such competition, we now offer

unlimited long distance calling plans.

Data Operations. In connection with our data business, we face competition from Internet service

providers, satellite companies, long distance carriers and cable companies which use wired or wireless

technologies to offer dial-up internet access services or high-speed broadband services. As of December 31,

2007, we believe approximately 60% of our local exchange markets are overlapped by cable systems offering

data services competitive with ours. Many of these competitors otter content that we cannot match. Moreover,

many of these providers have traditionally been subject to less rigorous regulatory scrutiny than our

subsidiaries, although recent FCC rule changes classifying our high-speed offering as an "information service"

has helped reduce regulatory disparities. These recent rule changes further provided companies the option to

deregulate for price cap companies or detariff for rate of return companies high-speed Internet services.

During 2006, all of our operating companies elected to either deregulate or detariff their high-speed Iritemet

services, which decreased regulatory oversight and increased our retail pricing flexibility.

Fiber Transport Operations. When our fiber transport networks are used to provide intrastate

telecommunications services, we must comply with state requirements for telecommunications utilities,

including state tariffing requirements. To the extent our facilities are used to provide interstate

communications, we are subject to federal regulation as a non-dominant common carrier. Due largely to excess

capacity, the fiber transport industry is highly competitive. Our primary competitors arc from other

communications companies, many of whom operate networks and have resources much larger than ours. Over

the last few years, several large communications companies have merged and have implemented strategies to

transfer a significant portion of their voice and data traffic from our fiber network to their networks. We expect

this trend to continue as companies seek opportunities to reduce their transport-related costs. In addition, new

IP-based services may enable new entrants to transport data at prices lower than we currently offer.

CLEC Operations. Competitive local exchange carriers are subject to certain reporting and other

regulatory requirements by the FCC and state public service commissions, although the degree of regulation is

much less substantial than that imposed on ILI''s operating in the same markets.. Local governments also

irequently require competitive local exchange carriers to obtain licenses or franchises regulating the use of

rights-of-way necessary to install and operate their networks. In each of our CLEC markets, we face

competition from the ILEC, which traditionally has long-standing relationships wiih its customers. Over time,

we may also face competition from one or more other CLECS. or from other communications providers who

can provide comparable services.

Other Operations. Similar to our CLEC business, we may be required to obtain licenses or franchises to

enter new markets for our switched digital television and wireless broadband services, which could delay our
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rollout of these offerings. The television and wireless communications markets we have recently entered are

highly competitive, which could limit our ability to compete effectively.

OTHER DEVELOPMENTS OR MATTERS

In August 2007, our board of directors approved a $750 million stock repurchase program which expires

in September 2009, unless extended by the board. Through December 31, 2007. we had repurchased

approximately 3.6 million shares for $158.5 million under this program. We previously repurehased

approximately $401.0 million, $186.7 million, $437.5 million and $1 .028 billion ofour shares under separate

repurchase programs approved in February 2004, February 2005, May 2005 and February 2006. respectively.

For additional information, see Liquidity and Capital Resources included in Item 7 of this annual report.

We have certain obligations based on federal, state and local laws relating to the protection of the

environment, Costs of compliance through 2007 have not been material and we currently have no reason to believe

that such costs will become material.

For additional information concerning our business and properties, see items 2 and 7 elsewhere herein, and

the Consolidated Financial Statements and notes 2, 4, 5, and lb thereto set forth in Item 8 elsewhere herein.
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Item 1k Risk Factors

RJSK FACTORS AND CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS

Risk Factors

Any of the following risks could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition, results

of operations. liquidity or prospects. The risks described below are not the only risks facing us. Please be

aware that additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to us or that we currently deem to be

immaterial could also materially and adversely affect our business operations.

Risks Related to OurBusiness

Ifwe continue to experience access line losses like we have in the past several years, our revenues,

earnings and cash flows may be advemely impacted.

Our business generates a substantial portion of its revenues by delivering voice and data services over

access lines. We have experienced access line losses over the past several years, including a 5.7% decline

during the year ended December 31. 2007 exclusive of the Madison River acquisition, due to a number of

factors, including increased competition and wireless and broadband substitution, which are described further

below. We expect to continue to experience access line losses in our markcts for an unforeseen period of time.

Our inability to retain access lines could adversely impact our revenues, earnings and cash flow from

operations.

We face competition, which we expect to intensify.

As a result of various technological, regulatory and other changes, the telecommunications industry has

become increasingly competitive, and we expect these trends to continue. In our LEC markets. we face

competition from wireless telephone services, which we expect to increase if wireless providers continue to

expand and improve their network coverage, offer fixed-rate catting plans, lower their prices and offer enhanced

services. In certain of our LEC markets, we also face competition from cable television operators. LECs and

You' providers. Over time, we expect to lace additional local exchange competition from more recent market

entrants, including i electric utility and satellite communications providers and ii alternative networks or

non-carrier systems designed to reduce demand for our switching or access services. The Intemet. long distance

and data services markcts are also highly competitive, and we expect that competition will intensify in these and

other markets that wc scrve. The recent proliferation of companies offering integrated service offerings has

further intensified competition in the markets we serve.

We expect competition to intensify as a result of new competitors and the development of new products

and senices Our competitive position could be weakened by strategic alliances or consolidation within the
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communications industry or the development of new technologies. We cannot predict which future products or

services will bc important to maintain our competitive position or what funding will be required to develop and

provide these products or services. Our ability to compete successfully will depend on how well we market our

products and services and on our ability to anticipate and respond to various competitive and technological

factors affecting the industry, including changes in regulation which may affect us differently from our

competitors, changes in consumer preferences or demographics, and changes in the product offerings or pricing

strategies of our competitors.

Many of our current and potential competitors have market presence, engineering, technical and marketing

capabilities and financial, personnel and other resources substantially greater than ours. In addition, some of our

competitors own larger and more diverse networks, can conduct operations or raise capital at a lower cost than

we can, are subject to less regulation, have lower benefit plan costs, offer greater online content services, or

have substantially stronger brand names. Consequently, some competitors may be better equipped than us to

charge lower prices for their products and services, to provide more attractive offerings, to develop and expand

their communications and network infrastructures more quickly, to adapt more swiftly to new or emerging

technologies and changes in customer requirements, and to devote greater resources to the marketing and sale of

their products and services.

Competition could adversely impact us in several ways, including i the loss of customers and market

share, ii the possibility of customers reducing their usage of our services or shifting to less profitable services,

iii reduced tratuic on our networks, iv our need to expend substantial time or money on new capital

improvement projects, v our need to lower prices or increase marketing expenses to remain competitive and

vi our inability to diversify by successfully offering new products or services.

We could be harmed by rapid changes in technology.

The communications industry is experiencing significant technological changes. particularly in the areas

of VoIP, data transmission and wireless communications. Several large electric utilities have announced plans

to offer communications services that will compete with LECs. Some of our competitors may enjoy network

advantages that will enable them to provide services more efficiently or at lower cost. Rapid changes in

technology could result in the development of additional products or services that compete with or displace

those offered by traditional LECs, or that enable current customers to reduce or bypass use of our networks.

We cannot predict with certainty which technological changes will provide the greatest threat to our competitive

position. We may not be able to obtain timely access to new technology on satisfactory terms or incorporate

new technology into our systems in a cost effective manner, or at all. If we cannot develop new products to

keep pace with technological advances, or if such products are not widely embraced by our customers, we could

be adversely impacted.

S
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We cannot assure you that our divemification efforts will be success!bI.

flue to the above-cited changes, the telephone industry has recently experienced a decline in access lines

and intrastate minutes of use. This decline in access lines and usage, coupled with the other changes resulting

from competitive, technological and regulatory developments, could materially adversely affect our core

business and futurc prospects. Exclusive of the Madison River acquisition. our access lines declined 57°/b in

2007. Based on our planned results for recent sales and retention initiatives, we arc targeting our access line

loss to be between 4.5% and 6.0% in 2008. We also earned less intrastate revenues in 2007 due to reductions in

intrastate minutes of use partially due to the displacement of minutes of use by wireless, electronic mail and

other optional calling services. We believe our intrastate minutes of use will continue to decline, although the

magnitude of such decrease is uncertain.

We have traditionally sought growth largely through acquisitions of properties similar to those currently

operated by us. However, we cannot assure you that properties will be available for purchase on terms

attractive to us, particularly if they are burdened by regulations, pricing plans or competitive pressures that are

new or different from those historically applicable to our incumbent properties. Moreover, we cannot assure

you that we will be able to arrange additional financing on terms acceptable to us or to obtain timely federal and

state governmental approvals on terms acceptable to us, or at all.

In recent years, we have attempted to broaden our services and products by offering satellite television

services and reselling wireless services as part of our bundled product and service offerings. Our reliance on

other companies and their networks to provide these services could constrain our flexibility and limit the

profitability of these new offerings. In addition, during 2005 we launched our facilities-based digital video

offering to select markets in Wisconsin and, in October 2007. we launched a second switched digital video

offering in our Columbia. Missouri market. We may initiate other new service or product ofkrings in the

future. We anticipate new otlerings will generate lower profit margins than many of our traditional services.

As such, to the extent revenues from these new offerings replace revenues lost from declines in our traditional

LEC business, our overall profit margins will decline. We cannot assure you that our recent or future

diversification efforts will be successful.

Future deterioration in our financial performance could adversely impact our credit ratings, our cost of

capital and our access to the capital markets.

Our fixture results will suffer ifwe do not effectively adjust to changes in our industry.

The above-described changes in our industry have placed a higher premium on marketing, technological.

engineering and provisioning skills. Our future success depends, in part, on our ability to retrain our staff to

acquire or strengthen these skills, and, where necessary, to attract and retain new personnel that possess these

skills.
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Our future rvsults will suffer ifwe do not effectively manage our expanded operations.

In the past several years, we have expanded our operations through acquisitions and new product and

service offerings, some of which involve complex technical, engineering, and operational challenges. We may

pursue similar opportunities in the future. Our future success depends, in part, upon our ability to manage our

expansion opportunities, including our ability to:

* retain and attract key personnel that have the skills necessary to implement and manage the new

business opportunities

* effectively manage our day to day operations while attempting to execute our strategy of expanding

our business

* realize the projected growth and revenue targets developed by management for our newly acquired and

emerging businesses, and

* continue to identify new acquisition or growth opportunities that we can finance, consummate and

operate on attractive terms.

Expansion opportunities pose substantial challenges for us to integrate new operations into our existing

business in an efficient and timely manner, to successfully monitor our operations, costs, regulatory compliance

and service quality, and to maintain other necessary internal controls. In addition, acquisitions entail the

additional risk that we will incur unanticipated liabilities or contingencies of the acquired business. unbudgeted

expcnscs or the loss of key employees or customers. We cannot assure you that our expansion or acquisition

opportunities will be successful, or that we will realize our expected operating efficiencies, cost savings.

revenue enhancements, synergies or other benefits. If we are not able to meet these challenges effectively, our

results of operations may be harmed.

Network disniptions could adversely affect our operating iesults.

To be successful, we will need to continue providing our customers with a high capacity, reliable and

secure network. Some of the risks to our network and infrastructure include:

* power losses or physical damage to our access lines, whether caused by fire, adverse weather

conditions, terrorism or otherwise

* capacity limitations

S

* software and hardware defects
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* breaches of security, including sabotage, tampering, computer viruses and break-ins, and

* other disruptions that are beyond our control.

Disruptions or system failures may cause interruptions in service or reduced capacity for customers. If

service is not restored in a timely manner, agreements with our customers or service standards set by state

regulatory commissions could obligate us to providc credits or other remedies, and this would reduce our

revenues or increase our costs. Service disruptions could also damage our reputation with customers, causing

us to lose existing customers or have difficulty attracting new ones.

Any failure or inadequacy ofour information technology infrastructure could harm ow bushiest

The capacity, reliability and security of our information technology hardware and software infrastructure

including our billing systems is important to the operation of our current business, which would suffer in the

event of system failures.. Likewise, our ability to expand and update our information technology infrastructure

in response to our growth and changing needs are important to the continued implementation of our new service

offering initiatives. Our inability to expand or upgrade our technology infrastructure could have adverse

consequences, which could include the delayed implementation of new service offerings, service or billing

interruptions, and the diversion of development resources.

We rely on a limited number ofkey suppliers and vendors to operate our business.

We depend on a limited number of suppliers and vendors for equipment and services relating to our

network infrastructure. If these suppliers experience interruptions or other problems delivering or servicing

these network components on a timely basis, our operations could suffer significantly. l'o the extent that

proprietary technology of a supplier is an integral component of our network. we may have limited flexibility to

purchase key network components from alternative suppliers. We also rely on a limited number of other

communications companies in connection with reselling long distance, wireless and satellite entertainment

services to our customers. In addition, we rely on a limited number of software vendors to support our business

management systems. In the event it becomes necessary to seek altemative suppliers and vendors, we may be

unable to obtain satisfactory replacement supplies or servtces on economically attractive terms, on a timely

basis, or at all, which could increase costs or cause disruptions in our services.

Portions ofowproperty, plant and equipment are located on property owned by thirdparties.

Over the past few years, certain utilities, cooperatives and municipalities in certain of the states in which

we operate have requested significant rate increases for attaching our plant to their facilities. To the extent that

these entities are successful in increasing the amount we pay for these attachments, our future operating costs

will increase.
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in addition, we rely on rights-of-way, co-location agreements and other authorizations granted by

governmental bodies and other third parties to locate our cable, conduit and other network equipment on their

respective properties. If any of these authorizations terminate or lapse, our operations could be adversely

affected.
w

S

Our relationships with other communications companies are material to our operations and their financial

difficulties may adversely affect us.

We originate and terminate calls for long distance carriers and other interexchange carriers over our

network in exchange for access charges that represent a significant portion of our revenues. Should these

carriers go bankrupt or experience substantial financial difficulties, our inability to timely collect access charges

from them could have a negative effect on our business and results of operations.

In addition, our LightCore operations carry a significant amount of voice and data traffic for larger

communications companies. As these larger communications companies consolidate or expand their networks,

it is possible that they could transfer a significant portion of this traffic from our fiber network to their networks,

which could have a negative effect on our business and results of operations.

We depend on key members ofour senior management team.

Our success depends largely on the skills, experience and performance of a limited number of senior

officers, none of whom are parties to employment agreements. Competition for senior management in our

industry is intense and we may have difficulty retaining our current senior managers or attracting new ones in

the event of terminations or resignations.

We could be affected by certain changes in labor matters.

At December 31, 2007, approximately 25% of our employees were members of 15 separate bargaining

units represented by two different unions. From time to time, our labor agreements with these unions lapse, and

we typically negotiate the terms of new agreements. We cannot predict the outcome of these negotiations. We

may be unable to reach new agreements, and union employees may engage in strikes., work slowdowns or other

labor actions, which could materially disrupt our ability to provide services.. In addition, new labor agreements

may impose significant new costs on us, which could impair our financial condition or results of operations in

the future. Moreover, our post-employment benefit offerings cause us to incur costs not faced by many of our

competitors, which could ultimately hinder our competitive position.

Risks Related to Our Regulatoiy Environment

Our revenues could be materially reduced or our expenses materially increased by changes hi regulations.
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The majority of our revenues are substantially dependent upon regulations which, if changed, could result

in material revenue reductions. Laws and regulations applicable to us and our competitors may be, and have

been, challenged in the courts, and could be changed by federal or state legislators. Any of the following could

significantly impact us:

Risk ofloss or reduction ofnetwork access charge revenues. A significant portion of our network access

revenues are paid to us by intrastate and interstate long distance carriers for originating and terminating calls in

the regions we serve. The amount of access charge revenues that we receive is based largely on rates set by

federal and state regulatory bodies, and such rates could change. The FCC is currently weighing several

proposals to comprehensively reform the intcrcarrier compensation regime in order to create a uniform system

of intercarrier payments. Any reform eventually adopted by the FCC' will likely involve significant changes in

the access charge system and could potentially result in a significant decrease or elimination of access charges

altogether. In addition, our financial results could be harmed if carriers that use our access services become

financially distressed or bypass our networks, either due to changes in regulation or other factors. Furthermore.

access charges currently paid to us could he diverted to competitors who enter our markets or expand their

operations, either due to changes in regulation or otherwise.

Risk ofloss or reduction ofsupport fund paynients. We receive a substantial portion of our revenues from

the federal Universal Service Fund and, to a lesser extent, intrastate support finds. These governmental

programs are reviewed and amended from time to time, and we cannot assure you that they will not be changed

or impacted in a manner adverse to us. In August 2004, a federal-state joint board requested comments on the

FCC's current rules for high-cost support payments to rural telephone companies, including comments on

whether eligibility requirements should be amended in a manner that would adversely affect larger rural LECs

such as us. In May 2007, this board proposed that the FCC consider an interim cap on the amount of the high-

cost support that competitive eligible telecommunications carriers may receive. Several parties have objected to

the size of the USF or questioned the continued need to maintain the program in its current form. Pending

judicial appeals and Congressional proposals create additional uncertainty regarding our future receipt of

support payments. We cannot estimate the impact that these developments will have on us.

We expect our 2008 high cost support fund revenues to be approximately $14 to $17 million lower than

2007 due to I an expected increase in the nationwide average cost per ioop factor and ii an expected decline

in the overall size of the high cost support fund. In addition, the number of eligible telecommunications carriers

receiving support payments from this program continues to increase, which, coupled with other factors, has

placed additional financial pressure on the amount of money that is necessary and available to provide support

payments to all eligible recipients, including us.

Risk of loss ofstatutoxy exemption from burdensome intcreonncction rules imposed on incumbent local

exchange carriers. Affiliates of ours operating approximately half of our telephone access lines are exempt

from the 1996 Act's more burdensome requirements governing the rights of competitors to interconnect to

incumbent local exchange carrier networks and to utilize discrete network elements of the incumbent's network
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at favorable rates. If state regulators decide that it is in the publics interest to impose these more burdensome

interconnection requirements on us, these affiliates would be required to provide unbundled network elements

to competitors. As a result, more competitors could enter our traditional telephone markets than we currently

expect, resulting in lower revenues and higher additional administrative and regulatory expenses.

Risk of losses from rate reductions. Notwithstanding the movement toward alternative state regulation,

LECs operating approximately 28% of our total access lines continue to be subject to "rate of return" regulation

for intrastate purposes. These LECs remain subject to the powers of state regulatory commissions to conduct

earnings reviews and adjust service rates, which could lead to revenue reductions, LECs governed by

alternative regulatory plans could also under certain circumstances be ordered to reduce rates or could

experience rate reductions following the lapse of plans currently in effect.

The FCC regulates tariffs for interstate access and subscriber line charges, both of which are components

of our revenues. As noted above, the FCC currently is considering proposals to reduce interstate access charges

for carriers like us. We could be adversely affected if the FCC lowers or eliminates interstate access charges

without adopting an adequate revenue replacement mechanism.

Risks posed by costs ofregulatozy compliance Regulations continue to create significant compliance

costs for us. Challenges to our tariffs by regulators or third parties or delays in obtaining certifications and

regulatory approvals could cause us to incur substantial legal and administrative expenses, and, if successful,

such challenges could adversely affect the rates that we are able to charge our customers. Our business also

may be impacted by legislation and regulation imposing new or greater obligations related to assisting law

enforcement, bolstering homeland security, minimizing environmental impacts, or addressing other issues that

impact our business including local number portability and customer proprietary network information

requirements. For example, existing provisions of the Communications Assistance for Law Enforcement Act

require communications carriers to ensure that their equipment, facilities, and services are able to facilitate

authorized electronic surveillance. We expect our compliance costs to increase if future legislation or

regulations continue to increase our obligations to assist other governmental agencies.

Regulatory changes in the communications in4usby could adveiseiy affect our business by facilitating

greater competition against us.

The 1996 Act provides for significant changes and increased competition in the communications industry,

including the local communications and long distance industries. This Act and the FCC's implementing

regulations remain subject to judicial review and additional rulemakings, thus making it difficult to predict what

effect the legislation will ultimately have onus and our competitors. Several regulatory and judicial

proceedings have recently concluded, are underway or may soon be commenced, which address issues affecting

our operations and those of our competitors. Moreover, certain communities nationwide have expressed an

interest in establishing a municipal telephone utility that would compete for customers. We cannot predict the
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outcome of these developments, nor can we assure that these changes will not have a material adverse effect on

us or our industry.

We art subject to significant regulations that limit our flexibility.

As a diversified full service incumbent local exchange carrier, or ILEC. we have traditionally been subject

to significant regulation that does not apply to many of our competitors. For instance, unlike many of our

competitors, we are subject to federal mandates to share facilities, file and justify tariffs, maintain certain

accounts and file reports. and state requirements that obligate us to maintain service standards and limit our

ability to change tariffs in a timely manner. This regulation imposes substantial compliance costs on us and

restricts our ability to change rates, to compete and to rcspond rapidly to changing industry conditions.

Although newer alternative forms of regulation permit us greater freedoms in several states in which we

operate, they nonetheless typically impose caps on the rates that we can charge our customers. As our business

becomes increasingly competitive, regulatory disparities between us and our competitors could impede our

ability to compete. Litigation and different objectives among federal and state regulators could create

uncertainty and impede our ability to respond to new regulations. Moreover, changes in tax laws, regulations or

policies could increase our tax rate, particularly if state regulators continue to search for additional revenue

sources to address budget shortfalls. We are unable to predict the future actions of the various regulatory bodies

that govern us, but such actions could materially affect our business.

We are subject to fmnchising requitements that could impede our expansion opportunities.

We may be required to obtain from municipal authorities operating franchises to install or expand

facilities. Some of these franchises may require us to pay franchise fees. These franchising requirements

generally apply to our fiber transport and CLEC operations, and to our emerging switched digital tele'ision and

wireless broadband businesses. These requirements could delay us in expanding our operations or increase the

costs of providing these services.

We will be exposed to risks relating to evaluations ofcontrols required by Section 404 of the Sastanes

Oxley Act.

Changing laws, regulations and standards relating to corporate governance and public disclosure.

including the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and related regulations implemented by the SEC. the New York Stock

Exchange and the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board, are increasing legal and financial compliance

costs and making some activities more time consuming. The annual evaluation of our internal controls required

by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act may result in identifying material weaknesses in our internal

controls. Any future failure to successfully or timely complete these annual assessments could subject us to

sanctions or investigation by regulatory authorities. Any such action could adversely affect our financial results

or investors' confidence in us. and could cause our stock price to fall. If we fail to maintain etTective controls
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and procedures, we may be unable to provide financial information in a timely and reliable manner, which

could in certain instances limit our ability to borrow or raise capital.
e

For a more thorough discussion of the regulatory issues that may affect our business, see "Operations" e

above.

Other Risks

We have a substantial amount ofindebtedness and may need to incur more in the fi4uzr.
S

We have a substantial amount of indebtedness , which could have material adverse consequences for us,

including i hindering our ability to adjust to changing market, industry or economic conditions; ii limiting

our ability to access the capital markets to refinance maturing debt or to fund acquisitions or emerging

businesses; iii limiting the amount of free cash flow available for future operations, acquisitions, dividends,

stock repurchases or other uses; iv making us more vulnerable to economic or industry downturns, including

interest rate increases; and v placing us at a competitive disadvantage to those of our competitors that have

less indebtedness.

In connection with executing our business strategies. we are continuously evaluating the possibility of

acquiring additional communications assets, and we may elect to finance acquisitions by incurring additional

indebtedness. Moreover, to respond to the competitive challenges discussed above, we may be required to raise

substantial additional capital to finance new product or service offerings. Our ability to arrange additional

financing will depend on, among other factors, our financial position and performance, as well as prevailing

market conditions and other factors beyond our control. We cannot assure you that we will be able to obtain

additional financing on terms acceptable to us or at all. If we are able to obtain additional financing, our credit

ratings could be adversely affected. As a result, our borrowing costs would likely increase, our access to capital

may be adversely affected and our ability to satisfy our obligations under our current indebtedness could be

adversely affected.

As a holding company, we rely on payments from our operating companies to meet our obligations.

As a holding company, substantially all of our income and operating cash flow is dependent upon the

earnings of our subsidiaries and the distribution of those earnings to, or upon loans or other payments of finds

by those subsidiaries to, us. As a result, we rely upon our subsidiaries to generate the funds necessary to meet

our obligations, including the payment of amounts owed under our long-term debt. Our subsidiaries are

separate and distinct legal entities and have no obligation to pay any amounts owed by us or, subject to limited

exceptions for tax-sharing purposes, to make any funds available to us to repay our obligations, whether by

dividends, loans or other payments. Certain of our subsidiaries may be restricted under loan agreements or

regulatory orders from transferring funds to us. including certain loan provisions that restrict the amount of
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dividends that may be paid to us. Moreover, our rights to receive assets of any subsidiary upon its liquidation or

reorganization wilt be effectively subordinated to the claims of creditors of that subsidiary, including trade

creditors. The footnotes to our consolidated financial statements included etsewhere herein describe these

matters in additional detait.

Our agreements and organizational documents and applicable law could limit anotherparty's ability to

acquire us.

tinder our articles of incorporation, each share of common stock that has been beneficiatly owned by the

same person or entity continually since May 30. 1987 generatly entitles the holder to ten votes on atl matters

duty submitted to a vote of shareholders. As of January 31, 2008, we estimate that the holders of our ten-vote

shares held approximately 26% of our total voting power. Our articles also provide for a classified board of

directors, which limits the ability of an insurgent to rapidly replace the board. tn addition, a number of other

provisions in our agreements and organizational documents and various provisions of applicabte law may delay,

defer or prevent a future takeover of Centurylel unless the takeover is approved by our board of directors. This

could deprive our shareholders of any related takeover premium.

We lace other risks.

The list of risks above is not exhaustive, and you should be aware that we face various other risks. For a

description of additional risks, please SCL Operations" above. "Forward-Looking Statements" below, and the

other items of this annual report, particularly Items 3.7 and 8.

Forward-Looking Statements

This report on Form 10-K and other documents filed by us under the federal securities taws inctude. and

future oral or written statements or press reteases by us and our management may include, certain forward-

looking statements, including without limitation statements with respect to our anticipated future operating and

financial performance, financial position and liquidity, growth opportunities and growth rates, acquisition and

divestiture opportunities, business prospects, regulatory and compelitive outlook, investment and expenditure

plans. investment results, financing opportunities and sources including the impact of financings on our

financial position, financial performance or credit ratings, pricing plans, strategic alternatives, business

strategies, and other similar statements of expectations or objectives or accompanying statements of

assumptions that are highlighted by words such as "expects," "anticipates," "intends," "plans," "believes,"

`projccts," "seeks," "estimates," "hopes," "should," "could," and "may," and variations thereof and similar

expressions. Such forward-looking statements are based upon ourjudgment and assumptions as of the date

such statements are made concerning future devetopments and events, many of which are outside of our control.

These forward-looking statements, and the assumptions upon which such statements are based, are inherently
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speculative and are subject to uncertainties that could cause our actual results to differ materially from such

statements. These uncertainties include but are not limited to those set forth below:

* the extent, timing, success and overall effects of competition from wireless carriers. VoIP providers,

CLECs, cable television companies. electric utilities and othcrs, including without limitation the risks that

these competitors may offer less expensive or more innovative products and services

* the risks inherent in rapid technological change, including without limitation the risk that new

technologies will displace our products and services

* the effects of ongoing changes in the regulation of the communications industry, including without

limitation i increased competition resulting from the FCC's regulations relating to interconnection and

other matters, ii the final outcome of various federal, state and local regulatory initiatives and

proceedings that could impact our competitive position, revenues, compliance costs, capital expenditures

or prospects, and iii reductions in revenues received from the federal Universal Service Fund or other

current or future federal and state support programs designed to compensate LEt's operating in high-cost

markets

* our ability to effectively adjust to changes in the communications industry

* our ability to effectively manage our growth, including without limitation our ability to i effectively

managc our expansion opportunities, including successfully integrating newly-acquired businesses into

our operations, ii attract and retain technological, managerial and other key personnel, Hi achieve

projected growth, revenue and cost savings targets, and iv otherwise monitor our operations, costs,

regulatory compliance, and service quality and maintain other necessary internal controls

* possible changes in the demand for, or pricing of, our products and services, including without limitation

reduced demand for traditional telephone services caused by greater use of wireless or Internet

communications or other factors and reduced demand for our access services

* our ability to successfully introduce new product or service offerings on a timely and cost-efftetive basis,

including without limitation our ability to i successfully roll out our new video, voice and broadband

services, ii expand successfully our long distance, Internet access and fiber transport service offerings to

new or acquired markets and iii offer bundled service packages on terms attractive to our customers

* our continued access to credit markets on favorable terms, including our continued access to financing in

amounts, and on terms and conditions, necessary to support our operations and refinance existing

indebtedness when it beeomcs due
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* our ability to collect receivables from financially troubled communications companies

* our ability to successfully negotiate collective bargaining agreements on reasonable tenns without work

stoppages

* regulatory limits on our ability to change the prices for telephone services in response to industry changes

* impediments to our ability to expand through attractively priced acquisitions, whether caused by

regulatory limits, financing constraints, a decrease in the pool of attractive target companies, or

competition for acquisitions from other interested buyers

* the possible need to make abrupt and potentially disruptive changes in our business strategies due to

changes in competition, regulation, technology, product acceptance or other factors

* the lack of assurance that we can compete effectively against better-capitalized competitors

* the impact of network disruptions on our business

* the effects of adverse weather on our customers or properties

* other risks referenced in this report and from time to time in our other filings with the Securities and

Exchange Commission

* the effects of more general factors, including without limitation:

changes in general industry and market conditions and growth rates

changes in labor conditions, including workforce levels and labor costs

changes in interest rates or other general national, regional or local economic conditions

changes in legislation, regulation or public policy, including changes in federal rural financing

programs or changes that increase our tax rate

increases in capital, operating, medical or administrative costs, or the impact of new business

opportunities requiring significant up-front investments

:. changes in our relationships with vendors, or the failure of these vendors to provide competitive

products on a timely basis

failures in our internal controls that could result in inaccurate public disclosures or fraud

changes in our debt ratings

unfavorable outcomes of regulatory or legal proceedings, including rate proceedings and tax audits

:. losses or unfavorable returns on our investments in other communications companies
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delays in the construction of our networks

changes in accounting policies, assumptions, estimates or practices adopted voluntarily or as required

by generally accepted accounting principles, including the possible future unavailability of Statement of

Financial Accounting Standards No. 71 to our wireline subsidiaries.

S

For additional information, see the description of our business included above, as well as Item 7 of this

report. Due to these uncertainties, there can be no assurance that our anticipated results will occur, that our

judgments or assumptions will prove correct, or that unforeseen developments will not occur. Accordingly, you

are cautioned not to place undue reliance upon any of our forward-looking statements. which speak only as of

the date made. Additional risks that we currently deem immaterial or that are not presently known to us could -

also cause our actual results to differ materially from those expected in our forward-looking statements. We

undertake no obligation to update or revise any of our forward-looking statements for any reason, whether as a

result of new information, future events or developments, changed circumstances, or otherwise.

Investors should also be aware that while we do, at various times, communicate with securities analysts, it

is against our policy to disclose to them selectively any material non-public information or other confidential

information. Accordingly, investors should not assume that we agree with any statement or report issued by an

analyst irrespective of the content of the statement or report. To the extent that reports issued by seeuritics

analysts contain any projections, forecasts or opinions, such reports are not our responsibility.

Item 18. Unresolved Staff Comments -

Not applicable.

S

Item 2. Properties.
-

Our properties consist principally of telephone lines, central office equipment, and land and buildings related

to telephone operations. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, our gross property, plant and equipment of

approximately $8.7 billion and $7.9 billion, respectively, consisted of the following:

Decernhcr 3 I,

2007 2006

Cable and wire 52.8% 53.5

Central office 32.0 32.0

General support 9.4 9.6

Fiber transport 3.3 2.8

Construction in progress 1.1 0.7

Other 1.4 1.4

-
100.0 100.0
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"Cable and wire" facilities consist primarily of buried cable and aerial cable, poles, wire, conduit and

drops used in providing local and long distance services. "Central office" consists primarily of switching

equipment, circuit equipment and related facilities. "General support" consists primarily of land, buildings,

tools. furnishings, fixtures, motor vehicles and work equipment. ..I:iber transporf' consists of network assets

and equipment to provide fiber transport services. "Construction in progress" includes property of the

foregoing categories that has not been placed in service because it is still under construction.

The properties of certain of our telephone subsidiaries are subject to mortgages securing the debt of such

companies. We own substantially all of the central office buildings, local administrative buildings, warehouses,

and storage facilities used in our telephone operations.

For further information on the location and type of our properties, see the descriptions of our operations in

Item I.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

In Barbrasue Beattie and James Sovis. on behalf ofthemsekes and all others similarly situated. v.

CenturyTel, Inc.. filed on October 28, 2002. in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Michigan

Case No.02-10277, the plaintiffs allege that we unjustly and unreasonably billed customers for inside wire

maintenance services, and seek unspecified monetary damages and injunctive relief under various legal theories on

behalf of a purported class of over two million customers in our telephone markets. On March 10, 2006, the Court

certified a class of plaintiffs and issued a ruling that the billing descriptions we used for these services during an

approximately 18-month period between October 2000 and May 2002 were legally insufficient. Our appeal of this

class certification decision was denied. Our preliminary analysis indicates that we billed less than sb million for

inside wire maintenance services under the billing descriptions and time periods specified in the District Court

ruling described above. Should other billing descriptions be determined to be inadequate or if claims are allowed

for additional time periods, the amount of our potential exposure could increase significantly. The Court's order

does not specify' the award of damages, the scope and amounts of which. if any. remain subject to additional fact-

finding and resolution of what we believe are valid defenses to plaintiff's claims. Accordingly, we cannot

reasonably estimate the amount or range of possible loss at this time. However, considering the one-time nature of

any adverse result, we do not believe that the ultimate outcome of this litigation will have a material ad erse etThct

on our financial position or on-going results of operations.

From time to time, we are involved in other proceedings incidental to our business, including

administrative hearings of state public utility commissions relating primarily to rate making, actions relating to

employee claims, occasional grievance hearings before labor regulatory agencies., proceedings by or against

taxine authorities, and miscellaneous third party tort actions. The outcome of these other proceedings is not

predictable. However, we do not believe that the ultimate resolution of these other proceedings, after
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considering available insurance coverage, will have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of

operations or cash flows.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

S

Not applicable.

Executive Officers of the Registrant - Information concerning our Executive Officers, set forth at Item 10

in Part Ill hereof, is incorporated in Pan I of this Report by reference.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of

Equity Securities

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange and is traded under the symbol CTL. Thc

following table sets forth the high and low sales prices, along with the quarterly dividends, for each of the

quarters indicated.

Sales prices Dividend per

Low common share

2007:

First quarter $ 46.80 4166 .0650

Second quarter $49.94 45.14 .0650

Third quarter $49.91 41.10 .0650

Fourth quarter $ 46.90 39.91 .0650

2006:

First quarter $39.90 32.54 .0625

Second quarter $40.00 3479 .0625

Thirdquarter $40.14 35.38 .0625

Fourth quarter $44.11 39.34 .0625

Common stock dividends during 2007 and 2006 were paid each quarter. As of February 15, 2008. there

were approximately 3.800 stockholders of record of our common stock. As of February 28, 2008, the closing

stock price of our common stock was $37.45.

In February 2006, our Board of Directors authorized a $1.0 billion share repurchase program under which,

in February 2006, we repurchased $500 million or approximately 14.36 million shares of our common stock

under accelerated share repurchase agreements with certain investment banks at an initial average price of

$34.83. The investment banks completed their repurchases in mid-July 2006 and in connection therewith we

paid an aggregate of approximately $28.4 million cash to the investment banks to compensate them for the

ditlerence between their weighted average purchase price during the repurchase period and the initial average

price. We repurchased the remaining $500 million of common stock of this program in open-market

transactions through June 2007.

In August 2007, our board of directors authorized a $750 million share repurchase program which expires

on September 30, 2009. unless extended by the board. The following table reflects our repurchases of common

stock during the fourth quarter of 2007.
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*Authority to purchase under this program runs through September 30, 2009.

In addition to the above repurehases, we also withheld 123 shares of stock at an average price of $45.10 per

share to pay taxes due upon the vesting of restricted stock for certain of our employees in October 2007.

For information regarding shares of our common stock authorized for issuance under our equity

compensation plans. see Item 12.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

The following table presents certain selected consolidated financial data as of and for each of the years

ended in the five-year period ended December 31, 2007:

S

S

S

Period

Total Approximate

Number of Dollar Value

Shares of Shares or

Purchased as Units that

Part of Publicly May Yet Be

Total Number Announced Purchased

of Shares Average Price Plans or Under the Plans

Purchased Per Share Programs or Programs*

October I -October31. 2007 830,500 $45.64 830,500 $675,700,931

November 1 - November 30. 2007 1,013,381 $43.02 1.013,381 $632,103,121

December I December 31. 2007

Total

975,520 $41.63

$43.31

975.520 $591,496,447

$591,496,4472.819,4012,819,401
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Selected Income Statement Data

Year e

2007 2006

nded December 3!.

2005 2004 2003

Dollars, except per share amounts, and shares expressed in thousands

Operating revenues

Operating income

Net income

Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

Dividends per common share

Average basic shares outstanding

Average diluted shares

outstanding

Selected Balance Sheet Data

Net property, plant and

equipment

Goodwill

Total assets

Long-term debt

Stockholders equity

$ 2.656.24L_ 2.447.730 2479.252 2407372 2367 610

$ 793.078 665.538 736.403 ±7-L 750 39±

S 418.370 370027 334A79 337.244 144707

S 3.82 3J7 2.55 2.45 2.40

S 3 72 3.07 2.49 2.41 2.35

S 26 .25 24 23 .22

109.360 116.671 130.841 137.215 143.583

113.094 222,229 136.087

-

142.144 148.779

December 3 I.

2007 2006 2005 2004

Dollars in thousands

2003

5 3,108,376 3.109.277 3,304,486 3.341.401 3,455,481

5 4.010,916 3,431,136 3,432,649 3.433,864 3.425.001

5 8.184.553 7,441,007 7,762,707 7,796,953 7,895,852

5 2.734.357 2,412.852 2.376.070 2.762,019 3,109,302

5 3.409,205 3,190,951 3,617,273 3.409.765 3,47S,516

The following table presents certain selected consolidated operating data as of the following dates:

`I'elephone access lines I 2

Nigh-speed Internet customers I

December 3 I,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

2,135.000 2.094.000 2.214,000 2.314.000 2.376.000

555.000 369,000 249,000 143.000 83.000

1 In connection with our Madison River acquisition in April 2007, we acquired approximately 164,000

telephone access lines and 57.000 high-speed Internet customers.

2 Excluding adjustments during 2006 to reflect i the removal of test lines, ii database conversion and

clean-up and iii the sale of our Arizona properties, access line losses for 2006 were approximately 107,000.

See Items I and 2 in Part I and Items 7 and 8 elsewhere herein for additional information.
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

RESULTS OF OPERA1IONS

OVERVIEW

e

CenturyTel. lnc., together with its subsidiaries, is an integrated communications company engaged

primarily in providing an array of communications services, including local and long distance voice, lntemct

access and broadband services, to customers in 25 states. We currently derive our revenues from providing i

local exchange and long distance voice services, ii network access services. iii data services, which includes

both high-speed "DSL" and dial-up Internet services, as well as special access and private line services. iv

fiber transport, competitive local exchange and security monitoring services and v other related services.

On April 30, 2007, we acquired all of the outstanding stock of Madison River Communications Corp.

rMadison River". See Note 2 for additional information. We have reflected the results of operations of the

Madison River properties in our consolidated results of operations beginning May 1,2007. On June 30, 2005,

we acquired fiber assets in 16 metropolitan markets from ICMC Telecom Holdings. Inc. "KMC" for

approximately $75.5 milLion cash and have reflected the results of operations of KMC in our consolidated

results of operations beginning July 1,2005.

During 2007, we recognized approximately $49.0 million of network access revenues in connection with

the settlement of a dispute with a carrier and approximately $42.2 million of revenues in connection with the

lapse of a regulatory monitoring period of which approximately $25.4 million is reflected in network access

revenues and $16.8 million is reflected in data revenues. Neither of these favorable revenue items in 2007 are

expected to reoccur in the future.

Effective January 1,2007, we changed our relationship with our provider of satellite television service

from a revenue sharing arrangement to an agency relationship and, in connection therewith, we received in the

second quarter of 2007 a non-recurring reimbursemeflt of $5.9 million, of which $4.1 million was reflected as a

reduction of cost of services which we previously incurred as subscriber acquisition costs and the remainder

was reflected as revenues. This change has also resulted in us recognizing lower recurring revenues and lower

recurring operating costs compared to our prior arrangement.

In September 2007. we announced a reduction of our workforce to be completed by mid-2008 of

approximately 200 jobs and, in connection therewith, incurred a net pre-tax charge of approximately $2.2

million consisting of a $2.7 million charge to operating expenses, net of a $527,000 favorable revenue impact

related to such expenses as allowed through our rate-making process for severance and related costs. On

March I and August 31,2006, we announced workforce reductions involving an aggregate of approximately

400 jobs and, in connection therewith, incurred an aggregate net pre-tax charge of approximately $7.5 million

consisting of a $9.4 million charge to operating expenses, net of a $1.9 million favorable revenue impact
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related to such expenses as allowed through our rate-making process for severance and related costs See

Note 8 for additional information.

In the fourth quarter of 2007, we recorded a $16.6 million pre-tax impairment charge in order to write-

down the value of certain long-lived assets in certain of our CLEC markets to their estimated realizable value.

The estimated realizable value was determined based on current proposals received during our sales process of

such properties.

In the third quarter of 2007, we recorded a one-time pre-tax gain of approximately $10.4 million related to

the sale of our interest in a real estate partnership. In the second quarter of 2006. we recorded a one-time pre

tax gain of approximately S 117.8 million upon redemption of our investment in the stock of the Rural

Telephone Bank "RTB. Subsequently. in the fourth quarter of 2007, upon final distribution of the remaining

proceeds from the RTB dissolution, we recorded a pre-tax gain of approximately S5.2 million. See Note 15 for

additional information.

Our net income for 2007 was $418.4 million, compared to $370.0 million during 2006 and $334.5 million

during 2005. Diluted earnings per share for 2007 was $3.72 compared to $3.07 in 2006 and $2.49 in 2005. The

number of average diluted shares outstanding declined 7.5% in 2007 and 10.2% in 2006 primarily due to our

share repurehases during the past three years.

Year ended December 31. 2007 2006 2005

Dollars, except per share amounts,

and shares in thousands

Operating income

Interest expense

Other income expense

Income tax expense

5 793,078

212,906

38,770

200.572

665,538 736,403

195,957 201,801

121,568 3,168

221.122 203.291

Net income
-

S 418.370 370.027 - 334.479

Basic earnings per share 5 3.82 3.17 2.55

Diluted earnings per share S 3.72 3.07 2.49

Avcraue basic shares outstandjg

Ayrage..dihatcdshnnuut.strnjtling_

109.360 116.671 l30841

AI 3.094 - - j229_jQ7

Operating income increased $127.5 million in 2007 as a $208.5 million increase in operating revenues was

partially offset by an $81.0 million increase in operating expenses. Operating income decreased $70.9 million in

2006 due to a $3 1.5 million decrease in operating revenues and a $39.3 million increase in operating expenses.

In addition to historical inlbrmation. this managements discussion and analysis includes certain forward-

looking statements that arc based on current expectations only, and are sublect to a number ofrisks,
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uncertainties and assumptions! many of svhich are beyond our controL Actual events and results may differ

materially from those anticipated, estimated or projected ifone or more of these risks or uncertainties

materialize, or if underlying assumptions prove incorrect Factors that could affect actual results include but arc

not limited to.. the timing. success and overall cikets ofcompetition from a wide variety 0/competitive

providers: the risks inherent in rapid technological change; the ctkcts ofongoing changes in the regulation of

the communications industiy; our ability to effectively manage our expansion opportunities, including

successfully integrating newly-acquired businesses into our operations and retaining and hiring key personnel;

possible changes in the demand for, or pricing of our products and services; our ability to successfully

introduce new product or scn'icc ofThrings on a timely and cost-effective basis; our continued access to credit

markets on favorable tem3s; our ability to collect our receivables from financially troubled communications

companies: our ability to successfully negotiate collectiw bargaining agreements on reasonable terms without

work stoppages; the effects ofadverse weather; other risks referenced from time to time in this report or other

ofour filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission; and the effects ofmore general factors such as

changes in interest rates, in tax rates, in accounting policies or practices, in operating, medical or administrative

costs, in ueneral market, labor or economic conditions, or in legislation, regulation or public policy. These and

other uncertainties related to our business are described in greater detail in item IA included herein. You should

be aware that new factors may emerge from time to time and it is not possible for us to identify all such factors

nor can we predict the impact ofeach such factor on the business or the extent to which any one or more factors

may cause actual results to differ from those reflected in any forward-looking statements. You are further

cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date of

this report. We undertake no obligation to update any ofour forward-looking statements for any reason.

All references to "Notes" in this Item 7 refer to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included

in Item 8 of this annual report.

S

OPERATING REVENUES

Year ended December 3!, 2007 2006 2005
Dollars in thousands

Voice S 889,960 871,767 902,510

Network access 941,506 878.702 959,838

Data 460,755 351,495 318,770

Fiber transport and CLEC 159,317 149,088 115,454

Other 204.703 196,678 182.680

Qperatin revenues S 2.656.241 2447 730 2.479.252

During 2007 and 2005, we recognized revenues of approximately $42.2 million and $35.9 million.

respectively, related to the expiration of regulatory monitoring periods. Of the $42.2 million recognized in

2007, approximately $25.4 million is reflected in network access revenues and $16.8 million is reflected in data

revenues. Of the $35.9 million recognized in 2005, approximately $24.5 million is reflected in network access
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revenues and approximately SI 1.4 million is reflected in data revenues. In addition, in 2007 we recognized

approximately $49.0 million of revenues related to the settlement of a dispute with a carrier. We do not expect

this level of favorable revenue settlements to reoccur in the ftiture.

Revenues from voice mail services previously reflected in "other" revenues have been reclassified to

"voice" revenues for all periods presented.

Voice revenues. We derive voice revenues by providing local exchange telephone services and retail

long distance services to customers in our service areas. The 518.2 million 2.10 increase in voice revenues in

2007 is primarily due to 543.3 million of revenues attributable to the Madison River properties acquired April

30, 2007. Such increase was partially offset by i a $20.7 million decrease due to a 5.2% decline in the average

number of access lines normalized for acquisitions, dispositions and previously-disclosed adjustments made

during 2006 and ii a $6.0 million decline as a result of a decrease in revenues associated with extended area

calling plans.

The $30.7 million 3.4% decrease in voice revenues in 2006 is primarily due to i a $22.3 million

decrease due a 4.8% decline in the average number of access lines served and ii a $26.1 million decline usa

result of a decrease in minutes of use in extended area calling plans in certain areas. Such decreases were

partially offset by i a $12.6 million increase in long distance revenues primarily attributable to an increase in

the number of long distance lines and increased long distance minutes of use, both of which were partially

ottset by a decline in the average rate we charged our long distance customers, and ii a $9.9 million increase

due to providing custom calling features to more customers.

Normalized for the adjustments mentioned above, access lines declined 119,700 5.7% during 2007

compared to a decline of 107.0004.8% during 2006. We believe the decline in the number of access lines

during 2007 and 2006 is primarily due to the displacement of traditional wireline telephone services by other

competitive services. Based on our planned results for recent sales and retention initiatives, we are targeting

our access line loss to be between 4.5% and 6.0% in 2008.

Network access revenues. We derive our network access revenues primarily from i providing services to

various carriers and customers in connection with the use of our Ijicilities to originate and terminate their

intersLatc and intrastate voice transmissions and H receiving universal support funds which allows us to

recover a portion of our costs under federal and state cost recovery mechanisms. Certain of our interstate

network access revenues are based on tariffed access charges filed directly with the Federal Communications

Commission "FCC": the remainder of such revenues are derived under revenue sharing arrangements with

other local exchange carriers "LEC5"l administered by the National Exchange Carrier Association. Intrastate

network access revenues are based on tariffed access charges filed with state regulatory agencies or are derived

under revenue sharing arrangements with other LECs.
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Network access revenues increased $62.8 million 7.1% in 2007 and decreased $81.1 million 8.5% in

2006 due to the following factors:

2007 2006

increase increase

decrease decrease

Dollars in thousands

Settlement of a dispute with a carrier $ 48,987 - -

Acquisition of Madison River 33,923 -

Expiration of regulatory monitoring periods 25,402 24,556

Intrastate revenues due to decreased minutes of use, decreased

access rales in certain states and recovery from state

support funds 20,912 19,201

Partial recovery of operating costs through revenue sharing

arrangements with other telephone companies,

interstate access revenues and return on rate base 21,311 16,825 S

Recovery from the federal Universal Service

High Cost Loop support program 2,231 11,637

Prior year revenue settlement agreements 2,346 6,663

Other,net 3.170 2.254

- 62.84 81.1361

S

In March 2006, we filed a complaint against a carrier for recovery of unpaid and underpaid access charges for

calls made using the carrier's prepaid calling cards and calls that used Internet Protocol for a portion of their

transmission. The carrier filed a counterclaim against us, asserting that we improperly billed them terminating

intrastate access charges on certain wireless roaming traffic. In April 2007, we entered into a settlement agreement

with the carrier and received approximately $49 million cash from them related to the issues described above.

This amount is reflected in our 2007 results of operations as a component of "Network access" revenues.

S

In third quarter 2007, upon the lapse of the applicable 20032004 monitoring period for certain of our tariffed

billings, we recognized approximately $42.2 million of revenues of which approximaicly $25.4 million is reflected

in network access revenues and $16.8 million is reflected in data revenues. Such amount represented billings from

tariffs prior to July 2004 in excess of the authorized rate of return that we initially recorded as a deferred credit

pending completion of such 2003/2004 monitoring period.

Our revenues from the Universal Service High Cost Loop Fund increased approximately $2.2 million in

2007 after decreasing $11.6 million in 2006. Such decrease in 2006 was primarily due to an increase in the

nationwide average cost per loop factor used by the FCC to allocate funds among all recipients. We anticipate

our 2008 revenues from the federal Universal Service High Cost Loop support program will decrease between

$14 and $17 million compared to 2007.

In 2007 and 2006, we experienced reductions in our intrastate revenues of approximately $20.9 million

and $19.2 million, respectively, primarily due to a reduction in intrastate minutes partially due to the
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displacement of minutes by wireless, electronic mail and other optional calling services. We believe that

intrastate minutes will continue to decline in 2008, although we cannot estimate the magnitude of such decrease.

Data revenues. We derive our data revenues primarily by providing Internet access. .services both DSL

and dial-up services and data transmission services over special circuits and private lines. Data revenues in

2007 increased $109.3 million 3 1.1% substantially due to i a $66.4 million increase in DSL-related revenues

due primarily to growth in the number of DSL customers; ii $34.5 million of revenues contributed by Madison

River and iii $16.8 million of one-time revenues recorded in third quarter 2007 upon expiration of the above-

described regulatory monitoring period. Such increases were partially offset by a 55.4 million decrease in

special access revenues primarily due to certain customers disconnecting circuits and a $5.1 million decrease in

dial-up Internet revenues due to a decline in the number of dial-up customers.

Data revenues increased $32.7 million 10.3% in 2006. substantially due to a $54.0 million increase in

DSL-related revenues primarily due to growth in the number of high-speed Internet customers. Such increase

was partially offset by a decrease in prior year revenue settlements due to the above-described recognition of

approximately $11.4 million of revenues in third quarter 2005 upon the lapse of a regulatory monitoring period

and a $4.9 million decrease due to a reduced number of dial-up Internet customers.

Fiber transport and `LEC. Our fiber transport and CLEC revenues include revenues from our fiber

transport, competitive local exchange carrier CLEC" and security monitoring businesses. Fiber transport and

`LEC revenues increased $10.2 million 6.9% in 2007. of which $8.7 million was due to growth in our incumbent

fiber transport business and $4.8 million was contributed by Madison River. Such increases were partially offset

by a 53.5 million decrease in CLEC revenues primarily due to customer disconnects.

Fiber transport and CLEC revenues increased $33.6 million 29.1% in 2006, of which $24.4 million was due

to revenues from the fiber assets acquired on June 30. 2005 from KMC and $8.5 million was attributable to growth

in our incumbent fiber transport business.

Other revenues. We derive other revenues primarily by i leasing, selling, installing and maintaining

customer premise telecommunications equipment and wiring. ii providing billing and collection services for

third parties. iii participating in the publication of local directories and iv providing new service offerings.

principally consisting of our new video and wireless reseller services. Other revenues increased $8.0 million

4.1% in 2007. Such increase was primarily due to $13.9 million of revenues contributed by Madison River.

In coimection with receiving a one-time reimbursement as a result of our above-described change in our

contractual relationship with our satellite television service provider, we recorded a $1.9 million one-time

increase to revenues in 2007. The impact of the change in the arrangement from a gross to a net revenue

presentation resulted in an $8.2 million decrease in recurring revenues for the twelve months ended December

31, 2007 compared to 2006.
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Other revenues increased $14.0 million 7.7% during 2006 primarily due to a $12.1 million increase in

revenues of our video and wireless reseller offerings and a S2.5 million increase in directory revenues.

S

OPERATING EXPENSES

Year ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005

Dollars in thousands

Cost of services and products exclusive of depreciation

and amortization S 937,375 888.414 821,929

Selling, general and administrative 389.533 370,272 388,989

Depreciation and amortization 536,255 523,506 53 1.931

Oneratine_exoenses S 1.863.163 L782,l92 1.742.849

Cost ofservices and products. Cost of services and products increased $49.0 million 5.5% in 2007

primarily due to i $52.5 million of costs incurred by our Madison River properties; ii a $20.9 million

increase in DSL-related expenses due to growth in the number of DSL customers; iii a $16.6 million

impairment charge related to certain of our C'LF' assets that we expect to sell in the near term; and iv a $7.8

million increase in expenses associated with pole attachments primarily due to rate increases. Such increases

were partially offset by i a $33.1 million decrease in salaries and benefits due to costs associated with

workforce reductions in 2006 and due to fewer incumbent employees resulting from our recent workforce

reductions and ii a $19.7 million decrease in expenses associated with our satellite television service offering

due to a change in our arrangement as mentioned above such reduction includes a $4.1 million one-time

reimbursement of costs received from the service provider in 2007 in connection with the change in the

arrangement, as described above.

Cost of services and products increased $66.5 million 8.1% in 2006 primarily due to i an $18.9 million

increase in expenses incurred by the properties acquired from KMC; ii an $18.3 million increase in costs

associated with growth in our long distance business; iiia $14.3 million increase in expenses associated with

our video and wireless reseller service offerings: iv an $11.5 million increase in Internet operating expenses

primarily due to growth in the number of high-spced Internet customers; and v $8.6 million of severance and

related costs associated with our workforce reduction in 2006 see Note 8.

Selling, general and administrative. Selling, general and administrative expenses increased $19.3 million

5.2 in 2007 primarily due to i $16.4 million of costs incurred by Madison River; H an $8.2 million

increase in salaries and benefits; and iii a $5.6 million increase in sales and marketing expenses. Such

increases were partially offset by i a $5.7 million reduction in bad debt expense and ii a $4.3 million

decrease in information technology expenses.

Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased Sl8.7 million 4.8% in 2006 primarily due to an

$11.0 million decrease in marketing expenses: a $10.6 million reduction in information technology expenses: an

$8.7 million reduction in bad debt expense; and a $5.8 million decrease in operating taxes. These decreases

S

S
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were partially offset by a $9.9 million increase in salaries and benefits and a $5.5 million increase in expenses

incurred from the properties acquired from KIvIC.

Depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization increased $12.7 million 24% in 2007

primarily due to $32.5 million of depreciation and amortization incurred by Madison River and a $14.8 million

increase due to higher levels of plant in service. Such increases were substantially offset by a $31.7 million

reduction in depreciation expense due to certain assets becoming fully depreciated.

Depreciation and amortization decreased $8.4 million I .6 in 2006, primarily due to a $25.3 million

reduction in depreciation expense due to certain assets becoming fully depreciated. Such decrease was partially

offset by i a $16.6 million increase due to higher levels of plant in service and ii a $3.1 million increase due

to depreciation and amortization of the properties acquired from KMC.

Other. For additional information regarding certain matters that have impacted or mny impact our

operations. see "Regulation and Competition".

INTEREST EXPENSE

Interest expense increased $16.9 million 8.6% in 2007 compared to 2006. A $22.7 million increase due

to increased average debt outstanding primarily due to the $750 million of senior notes issued in March 2007 to

fund the Madison River acquisition was partially offset by a $5.9 million decrease due to lower average interest

rates.

Interest expense decreased $5.8 million 2.9% in 2006 compared to 2005 as a $10.5 million decrease due

primarily to a decrease in average debt outstanding was partially offset by a $7.1 million increase due to higher

average interest rates.

OTHER INCOME EXPENSE

Other income expense includes the effects of certain items not directly related to our core operations.

including gains or losses from nonoperating assct dispositions nnd impairments, our share of the income from our

49% interest in a cellular partnership, interest income and allowance for funds used during construction. Other

income expense was $38.8 million in 2007. $121.6 million in 2006 and $3.2 million in 2005. The years 2007,

2006 and 2005 were impacted by certain charges and credits that are not expected to occur in the future. The year

2007 include a non-recurring pre-tax gain of$I0.4 million related to the sale of our interest in a real estate

partnership and a $5.2 million pre-tax gain resulting from the final distribution of funds from the RTB redemption

menlioned below. Included in 2006 were pre-tax gains of approximately $118.6 million substantially all of which

related to the redemption of our RTB stock upon dissolution of the RTB, which was partially otfset by pre-tax

charges of approximately $11.7 million due to the impairment of certain non-operating investments. Included in
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2005 was i a $16.2 million pre-tax charge due to the impairment of a non-operating investment; ii a $4.8 million

debt extinguishment expense related to purchasing and retiring approximately $400 million of our Senior J notes;

iii $3.2 million of non-recurring interest income related to the settlement of various income tax audits; and iva

$3.5 million gain from the sale of a non-operating investment.

Our share of income from our 49% interest in a cellular partnership increased $8.7 million in 2007

compared to 2006. Such increase was partially due to favorable adjustments recorded in 2007 that resuLted

from the unaffiliated general partner completing the audited financial statements of this partnership for the years

ended December 31.2006 and 2005. Previously for these time periods, we had recorded our share of the

partnership income based on unaudited results of operations.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The effective income tax rate was 32.4%. 37.4%, and 37.8% for 2007. 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Income tax expense was reduced by approximately $32.7 million in 2007 due to the recognition of previously

unrecognized tax benefits see below and Note 12. Income tax expense was reduced by approximately $6.4

million in 2006 due to the resolution of various income tax audit issues.

Income tax expense for 2005 was increased by $19.5 million as a result of increasing the valuation

allowance related to net state operating loss carryforwards. This increase was primarily due to changes in state

income tax laws and other factors which impacted the projections of future taxable income. This tax expense

increase was more than otThet by i a reduction of state income tax reserves SI 1.6 million, net of federal

income tax benefit; ii a reduction in our composite state income tax rate due to more income being

apportioned to states with lower state tax rates $8.5 million; and iii the favorable settlement of various

federal income tax audits $1 .3 million.

ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Interpretation No. 48, `Accounting for

Uncertainty in Income Taxes" "FIN 48". which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes

recognized in financial statements. FIN 48 required us, effective January I. 2007. to recognize and measure tax

benefits taken or expected to be taken in a tax retum and disclose uncertainties in income tax positions. See Note

12 for additional information related to our income tax uncertainties.

In September 2006. the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting

Standards No. 157, "Fair Value Measurements" "SFAS 157". SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a

framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements required or permitted

under other accounting pronouncements. SFAS 157 is effective for us beginning January I, 2008. We currently do

not expect SFAS 157 to have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.
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In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting

Standards No. 158, "Employers' Accounting for Defined Benefit Plans and Other Postretirement Plans" "SEAS

158". SFAS 158 was effective for our December 3!, 2006 balance sheet and required us to recognize the

overfunded or underfunded status of our defined benefit and postretirement plans as an asset or liability on our

balance sheet and to recognize changes in that funded status in the year in which the changes occur through

adjustments to other comprehensive income loss and to stockholders' equity, reflected in accumulated other

comprehensive loss. As a result of the implementation of SEAS 158 on December 31. 2006. our non-current

assets decreased $64.7 million, our current liabilities decreased $898,000, our non-current liabilities excluding

deferred income taxes increased approximately $99.5 million, our deferred income taxes decreased approximately

$65.4 million and our stockholders' equity reflected in accumulated other comprehensive loss decreased

approximately $97.9 million. See Note I for additional information.

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108,

"Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatenicnts in Current Year

Financial Statements" "SAB 108". SAB 108 addresses how the effects of prior year uncorrected

misstatements should be considered when quantifying misstatements in current year financial statements. SAB

108 requires companies to quantify misstatements using both a balance sheet approach and income statement

approach and to evaluate whether either approach results in quantifying an error that is material in light of the

relevant quantitative and qualitative factors. We adopted SAB 108 in the fourth quarter of 2006. Upon the

implementation of SAB 108. we recognized a net $9.7 million increase to January 1,2006 retained earnings for

the cumulative effect of correcting prior year uncorrected misstatements. See Note I for additional information.

On January 1,2003, we adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143, "Accounting for

Asset Retirement Obligations" "SFAS 143", which addresses financial accounting and reporting for legal

obligations associated with the retirement ol'tangible long-lived assets and requires that the Ihir value of a

liability for an asset retirement obligation be recognized in the period in which it is incurred and be capitalized

as part of the book value of the long-lived asset. Although we generally have no legal obligation to remove

obsolete assets, depreciation rates of certain assets established by regulatory authorities for our telephone

operations subject to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 71, "Accounting for the Effects of

Certain Types of Regulation" "SFAS 71". have historically included a component for removal costs in excess

of the related estimated salvage value. Notwithstanding the adoption of SEAS 143, SEAS 71 requires us to

continuc to reflect this accumulated liability for removal costs in excess of salvage value even though there is

no legal obligation to remove the assets Therefore, we did not adopt the provisions of SEAS 143 for our

telephone operations subject to SEAS 71. For these reasons, the adoption of SEAS 143 did not have a material

eliect on our financial statements, For our telephone operations acquired from Verizon in 2002 which arc not

subject to SEAS 71 and our other non-regulated operations, we have not accrued a liabilily for anticipated

removal costs related to tangible long-lived assets through an adjustment to our depreciation rates for these

assets.
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On March 31, 2005, thc Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Interpretation No.47, "Accounting

for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations" "FIN 47", an interpretation of SFAS 143. FIN 47, which was

eftbctive !brfiscal years ending after December IS, 2005, clarifies that the recognition and measurement

provisions of SFAS 143 apply to asset retirement obligations in which the timing or method of settlement may

be conditional on a future event that may or may not be within control of the entity. We identified conditional

asset retirement obligations for i asbestos removal in buildings. ii removal of underground storage tanks, iii

our property located on public and private rights-of way and iv our property that is attached to poles owned by

other utilities and municipalities. Due to a lack of historical experience from which to reasonably estimate a

settlement date or range of settlement dates, we concluded that an asset retirement obligation associated with

our property located on rights-of-way is indeterminate. We also concluded that our conditional asset retirement

obligations related to the removal of asbestos, underground storage tanks and our property that is attached to

other entities' poles was immaterial to our financial condition and results of operations and therefore has not

been recognized.

S

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
S

Our financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles that are generally accepted

in the United States. The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make estimates and

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. We continually

evaluate our estimates and assumptions including those related to i revenue recognition. ii allowance for

doubtful accounts, iii pension and postretirement benefits, iv intangible and long-lived assets and v income

taxes. Actual results may differ from these estimates and assumptions. We believe these critical accounting

policies discussed below involve a higher degree ofjudgment or complexity.

Revenue recognition. Certain of our interstate network access and data revenues are based on tariffed access

charges filed directly with the FCC; the remainder of such revenues is derived from revenue sharing arrangements

with other LECs administered by the National Exchange Carrier Association, with the exception of DSL-related

revenues which were removed from our pooled interstate tariff filing effective July I, 2006 and are now recognized

as revenues when billed. During 2004. we began generally recognizing such interstate network access revenues at

the authorized rate of return, unless the actual achieved or projected rate of return was lower than authorized.

The Telecommunications Act of 1996 allows local exchange carriers to file access tariffs on a streamlined

basis and, if certain criteria are met, deems those tariffs lawful. Tariffs that have been "deemed lawful" in

effect nullify an interexchange carrier's ability to seek refunds should the eamings from the tariffs ultimately

result in earnings above the authorized rate of return prescribed by the FCC. Certain of our telephone

subsidiaries file interstate tariffs with the FCC using this streamlined filing approach. Since July 2004, we have

recognized billings from our tariffs as revenue since we believe such tariffs are "deemed lawful". There is no
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assurance that our future tariff filings will be "deemed lawful". For those billings from tariffs prior to July

2004, we initially recorded as a deferred credit our earnings in excess of the authorized rate of return. Upon the

lapse of the applicable regulatory monitoring periods, we recorded approximately 42.2 million as revenue in

2007 and approximately S35.9 million as revenue in 2005. We do not expect these favorable revenue

settlements to reoccur in the future.

Allowance for doubtful accounts. In evaluating the eolleetibility of our accounts receivable, we assess a

number of factors, including a specific customer's or carrier's ability to meet its financial obligations to us, the

length of time the receivable has been past due and historical collection experience. Based on these assessments,

we record both specific and general reserves for uneollectible accounts receivable to reduce the related accounts

receivable to the amount we ultimately expect to collect from customers and carriers. If circumstances change or

economic conditions worsen such that our past collection experience is no longer relevant, we may need to increase

our reserves from the levels reflected in our accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

Pcnsion and postrctircment benefits. The amounts recognized in our financial statements related to

pension and postretirement benefits are determined on an actuarial basis, which utilizes many assumptions in

the calculation of such amounts. A significant assumption used in determining our pension and postretirement

expense is the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets. For 2007 and 2006, we utilized an expected

long-term rate of return on plan assets of 8.25%, which we believe reflects the expected long-term rates of

return in the financial markets.

Another assumption used in the determination of our pension and postretirement benefit plan obligations

is the appropriate discount rate. Our discount rate at December 31, 2007 ranged from 63-6.5% compared to

5.75-5.80% at December 31,2006, which we believe is the appropriate rate at which the pension and

postretirement benefits could be effectively settled. Such rates were determined based on a discounted cash

flow analysis of the expected cash outflows of our benefit plans. A 25 basis point decrease in the assumed

discount rate would increase annual combined pension and postretirement expense approximately S 1.7 million.

Intangible and long-lived assets. We are subject to testing for impairment of long-lived assets under two

accounting standards. Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142. "Goodwill and Other Intangible

Assets" "SFAS 142". and Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, "Accounting for the

Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets" "SFAS 144'.

SFAS 142 requires goodwill recorded in business combinations to be reviewed for impairment at least

annually and requires write-downs only in periods in which the recorded amount of goodwill exceeds the fair

value. Under SFAS 142. impairment of goodwill is tested by comparing the fair value of the reporting unit to its

carrying value including goodwill. Estimates of the fur value of the reporting unit are based on valuation

models using techniques such as multiples of earnings before interest, taxes and depreciation and

amortization. If the fair value of the reporting unit is less than the carrying value, a second calculation is
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required in which the implied fair value of goodwill is compared to its carrying value, if the implied fair value

of goodwill is less than its carrying value, goodwill must be written down to its implied fair value. We

completed the required annual test of goodwill impairment as of September 30. 2007 under SFAS 142 and

determined our goodwill was not impaired as of such date.

e

Under SFAS 144, the carrying value of long-lived assets other than goodwill is reviewed for impairment

whenever events or circumstances indicate that such carrying amount cannot be recoverable by assessing the

recoverability of the carrying value through estimated undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated by

the assets. If the undiscounted net cash flows are less than the carrying value, an impairment loss would be

measured as the excess of the carrying value of a long-lived asset over its fair value. We recognized a $16.6

million pre-tax impairment charge in 2007 related to certain of our CLEC assets that we expect to sell.

S

Income taxes. We estimate our current and deferred income taxes based on our assessment of the future

tax consequences of transactions that have been reflected in our financial statements or applicable tax returns.

Actual income taxes paid could vary from these estimates due to future changes in income tax law or the

resolution of audits by federal and state taxing authorities. We maintain liabilities for unrecognized tax benefits

for various uncertain tax positions taken in our tax returns. These liabilities are estimated based on our

judgment of the probable outcome of the uncertain tax positions and are adjusted periodically based on

changing facts and circumstances. Changes to the liabilities for unrecognized tax benefits could materially

affect operating results in the period of change. During 2007. we released approximately $32.7 million of

previously unrecognized tax benefits including related interest and net of federal benefit in accordance with

FIN 48. Such benefit was recorded primarily as a result of the favorable resolution of audits, administrative

practices and the lapse of statute of limitations in certainjurisdictions. See Note 12 for additional information

regarding our unrecognized tax benefits.

For additional information on our critical accounting policies, see "Accounting Pronouncements" and

"Regulation and Competition - Other Matters" below, and the footnotes to our consolidated financial

statements included elsewhere herein.

INFLATION

Historically, we have mitigated the ctkcts of increased costs by recovering over time certain costs

applicable to our regulated telephone operations through the rate-making process. However, LECs operating

over 72% of our total access lines are now governed by state alternative regulation plans. some of which restrict

or delay our ability to recover increased costs. Additional fUture regulatory changes and competitive situations

may further alter our ability to recover increased costs in our regulated operations. For the properties acquired

from Verizon in 2002. which are regulated under price-cap regulation for interstate purposes, price changes for

certain revenue components are limited to the rate of inflation. As operating expenses in our nonregulated lines
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of business increase as a result of inflation, we. to the extent permitted by competition, attempt to recover the

costs by increasing prices for our services and equipment.

MARKET RISK

We are exposed to market risk from changes in interest rates on our long-term debt obligations. We have

estimated our market nsk using sensitivity analysis. Market risk is defined as the potential change in the fair

value of a fixed-rate debt obligation due to a hypothetical adverse change in interest rates. Fair value of long-

term debt obligations is determined based on a discounted cash flow analysis. using the rates and maturities of

these obligations compared to terms and rates currently available in the long-term financing markets. The

results of the sensitivity analysis used to estimate market risk are presented below, although the actual results

may differ from these estimates.

At December 31,2007, the fair value of our long-term debt was estimated to be $3.0 billion based on the

overall weighted average rate of our long-term debt of 6.6% and an overall weighted maturity of 8 years compared

to terms and rates available on such date in long-term financing markets. Market risk is estimated as the potential

decrease in fair value of our long-term debt resulting from a hypothetical increase of 66 basis points in interest

rates ten percent of our overall weighted average borrowing rate. Such an increase in interest rates would result

in approximately a $106 million decrease in the fair value of our long-term debt. As of December 31, 2007. after

giving effect to interest rate swaps currently in place, approximately 83% of our long-term debt obligations were

fixed rate.

We seek to maintain a favorable mix of fixed and variable rate debt in an effort to limit interest costs and

cash flow volatility resulting from changes in rates. From time to time, we use derivative instruments to i

lock-in or swap our exposure to changing or variable interest rates for fixed interest rates or ii to swap

obligations to pay fixed interest rates for variable interest rates. We have established policies and procedures

for risk assessment and the approval, reporting and monitoring of derivative instrument activities. We do not

hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes. We periodically review our

exposure to interest rate fluctuations and implement strategies to manage the exposure.

At December 31,2007. we had outstanding four fair value interest tate hedges associated with the full

$500 million aggregate principal amount of our Series L senior notes. due 2012, that pay interest at a fixed rate

of 7.875%. These hedges arc "fixed to variable" interest rate swaps that effectively convert our fixed rate

interest payment obligations under these notes into obligations to pay variable rates that range from the six-

month London InterBank Offered Rate "LIBOR" plus 3.229% to the six-month LIBOR plus 3.67%. with

settlement and rate reset dates occurring each six months through the expiration of the hedges in August 2012.

During 2007. we realized an average interest rate under these hedges of 8.70% and interest expense was greater

than it would have otherwise been by $4.1 million during 2007 as a result of these hedges. The aggregate fair

market value of these hedges was $3.0 million at December 31, 2007 and is reflected both as an asset and as an

57



increase in our underlying long-term debt on the December 31, 2007 balance sheet. With respect to each of

these hedges, market risk is estimated as the potential change in the fair value of the hedge resulting from a

hypothetical I0° increase in the forward rates used to determine the fair value. A hypothetical 10% increase in

the forward rates would result in a $9.6 million decrease in the fair value of these hedges at December 3!. 2007,

and would also increase our interest expense.

In third quarter 2007, we entered into a hedge transaction that effectively locked-in the interest rate for the w

six-month period ended February 2008 related to the $500 million of Series L notes that previously were

effectively converted to variable rate notes pursuant to the "fixed to variable" interest rate swaps described above.

This hedge did not qualify for hedge accounting treatment and therefore is adjusted to its fair value each period -

with a corresponding adjustment through the income statement.

in January 2008, we terminated all of our existing derivatives including those described above and received

a net cash settlement of approximately $20.7 million in connection therewith. See Note 20 for additional

information regarding the termination of our derivatives.

In anticipation of the issuance of Senior Notes in connection with the Madison River acquisition, we -

entered into four cash flow hedges that effectively locked in the interest rate on an aggregate of $400 million of

debt. The issuance of these Senior Notes was completed in late March 2007 with the issuance of $500 million

of 6.0% Senior Notes, due 2017, and $250 million of 5.5% Senior Notes, due 2013. We locked in the interest

rate on i $200 million of 10-year debt at 5.0675% and ii S200 million of 10-year debt at 5.05%. In March

2007. upon settlement of the hedges, we received an aggregate of $765,000 cash, which is being amortized as a

reduction of interest expense over the 10-year term of the debt.

`S

During 2007, we also reviewed our exposure to risks related to the assets in our investment portfolios

including our pension plan assets in connection with the market volatility related to the sub-prime credit

market issues and other economic factors. These unfavorable economic factors did not have a material adverse

impact on the valuation of the assets in our investment portfolios.

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the method of analysis presented in the computation of fair value of

financial instruments. Actual values may differ from those presented if market conditions vary from assumptions

used in the fair value calculations. The analysis above incorporates only those risk exposures that existed as of

December 31,2007.

S
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LIQUIDITY MAD CAPITAL RESOURCES

Excluding cash used for acquisitions, we rely on cash provided by operations to provide for our cash

needs. Our operations have historically provided a stable source of cash flow which has helped us continue our

long-term program of capital improvements.

Operating activities. Net cash provided by operating activities was $1.0 billion. $840.7 million and

$967.1 million in 2007,2006 and 2005, respectively. Our accompanying consolidated statements of cash flows

identi' major differences between net income and net cash provided by operating activities for each of those

years. As relief from the effects of Hurricane Katrina. certain of our affected subsidiaries were granted a

deferral from making their remaining 2005 estimated federal income and excise tax payments until 2006.

During 2006, we made payments of approximately $75 million to satisfy our remaining 2005 estimated

payments. For additional information relating to our operations, see "Results of Operations" above.

Invcsring activities. Net cash used in investing activities was $619.2 million. $193.7 million and $483.7

million in 2007, 2006 and 2005. respectively. We used $306.8 million of cash net of approximately $20.0

million of acquired cash to purchase Madison River Communications Corp. "Madison River" and pay related

closing costs on April 30. 2007 see below and Note 2 for additional information. Cash used for acquisitions

was $75.5 million in 2005 due to the acquisition of fiber assets in 16 metropolitan markets from KMC. We

received approximately $122.8 million cash from the redemption of our RTB stock upon dissolution of the RTB

during 2006. See Note IS for additional information. Capital expenditures during 2007. 2006 and 2005 were

$326.0 million, $314.1 million and $414.9 million, respectively.

Financing activities. Net cash used in financing activities was $402.1 million in 2007, $780.2 million in

2006 and $491.7 million in 2005. In late March 2007, we publicly issued an aggregate of $750 million of

Senior Notes see NoteS for additional information. The net proceeds from the issuance of such Senior Notes

aggregated approximately $741.8 million and were used along with cash on hand and approximately $50

million of borrowings under our commercial paper program to i finance the initial purchase price lr the

April 30, 2007 acquisition of Madison River $322 million and ii pay off Madison River's existing

indebtedness including accrued interest at closing $522 million. We invested the cash proceeds from the

debt offering in short-term cash equivalents prior to the acquisition of Madison River. Payments of debt were

$713.0 million in 2007, $82.0 million in 2006 and $693.3 million in 2005.

In accordancc with previously announced stock repurchase programs, we repurchased 10.2 million shares

for $460.7 million, 21.4 million shares for $802.2 million, and 16.4 million shares for $551.8 million in

2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The 2006 repurchases include 14.36 million shares repurchased for an
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aggregate final adjusted price of approximately $528.4 million under accelerated share repurchase agreements

with investment banks see Note 9 for additional information. We initially funded purchases under these

aureements principally through borrowings under our $750 million credit facility and cash on hand and

subsequently retinaneed the credit facility borrowings through the issuance of short-term commercial paper.

The 2005 repurchases include 12.9 million shares repurchased for an aggregate final price of $437.5 million

under accelerated share repurchase agreements sec below and Note 9 to the accompanying financial statements

for additional information.

As described further in NoteS, we called for redemption on August 14, 2007, all of our $165 million

aggregate principal amount of Series K convertible senior debentures, subject to the right of holders to convert

their debentures into shares of our common stock at a conversion price of $40455. In lieu of cash redemption,

holders of approximately S 149.6 million aggregate principal amount of the debentures elected to convert their

holdings into approximately 3.7 million shares of CenturyTel common stock. The remaining $15.4 million of

outstanding debentures were retired for cash including premium and accrued and unpaid interest.

In February 2005. we remarketed substantially all of our $500 million of outstanding Series J senior notes

due 2007 at an interest rate of 4.628%. We received no proceeds in connection with the remarketing as all

proceeds were held in trust to secure the obligation of our equity unit holders to purchase common stock from

us on May 16, 2005. In connection with the remarketing. we purchased and retired approximately $400 million

of the notes, resulting in approximately $100 million remaining outstanding through their maturity in May

2007. We incurred a pre-tax charge of approximately $6 million in the first quarter of 2005 related to

purchasing and retiring the notes. We purchased such notes with proceeds from the February 2005 issuance of

$350 million of 5% senior notes, Series M, due 2015 and cash on hand.

On May 16. 2005. upon settlement of 15.9 million of our outstanding equity units, we received proceeds

of approximately $398.2 million and issued approximately 12.9 million common shares. In late May 2005, we

entered into accelerated share repurchase agreements with investment banks whereby we repurehased and

retired 12.9 million shares of common stock for an aggregate final price of $437.5 million, the proceeds of

which came from the settlement of the equity units mentioned above and cash on hand.

Other. For 2008. we have budgeted $300 million for capital expenditures. In 2006, we concluded that our

prior extensive capital investment in our wireline network permitted us to reduce network capital spending to

maintenance levels. Our 2008 capital expenditure budget also includes amounts for expanding our new service

offerings and expanding our data networks.

S

In the first quarter of 2008. we paid a $25.0 million deposit to the FCC to enable us to participate in its

auction of 700 MHz spectrum, which is still ongoing. Our deposit will be credited against the cost of any -

spectrum purchased by us in the auction.
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The following table contains certain information concerning our material contractual obligations as of

December 31% 2007.

Payments due by period

Contractual

obligations Total

Afler

20O8 2009-2010 2011-7012 2fll2andflther

Dollars in thousands

Long-term debt,

including current

maturities and

capital lease

obligations I $3,014,255 279.898 528.143 522.587 1.683.627

Interest on long-

term debt

obligations $1,525,455 187,192 359,314 266,915 712,034

Unrecognized tax

benefits2 S 31.981 - - - 31,981

I For additional information on thc terms of our outstanding debt instruments, sec Note 5 to the consolidated

financial statements included in Item 8 of this annual report.

2 Represents the amount of tax and interest we would pay assuming we are required to pay the entire amount

that we have reserved for our unrecognized tax benetits see Note 12 for additional information. The timing of

any payments for our unrecognized tax benefits cannot be predicted with certainty; therefore, such amount is

reflected in the "After 2012 and Other" column in the above table.

We continually evaluate the possibility of acquiring additional communications operations and expect to

continue our long-term strategy of pursuing the acquisition of attractively-priced communications properties in

exchange for cash, securities or both. At any given time, we may be engaged in discussions or negotiations

regarding additional acquisitions. We generally do not announce our acquisitions or dispositions until we have

entered into a preliminary or definitive agreement. We may require additional financing in connection with any

such acquisitions, the consummation of which could have a material impact on our financial condition or

operations. Approximately 4.1 million shares of our common stock and 200,000 shares of our preferred stock

remain available for future issuance in connection with acquisitions under our acquisition shelf registration

statement. We also have access to debt and equity capital markets.

We have available a live-year, $750 million revolving credit facility which expims in December 2011.

The credit facility contains financial covenants that require us to meet a consolidated leverage ratio as defined

tn the facility not exceeding 4 to I and a minimum interest coverage ratio as defined in the facility of at least

1.5 to I. The interest rate on revolving loans under the facility is based on our choice of several prevailing

commercial lending rates plus an additional margin that varies depending on our credit ratings and aggregate

borrowings under the facility. We must pay a quarterly commitment fee on the unutilized portion of the iiieility,

the amount of which varies based on our credit ratings. Up to 5150 million of the credit facility can be used for

letters of credit, which reduces the amount available for other extensions of credit. Available borrowings under

our credit facility are also effectively reduced by any outstanding borrowings under our commercial paper
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program. Our commercial paper program borrowings in turn are effectively limited to the total amount

available under our credit facility. As of December 31, 2007. we had no amounts outstanding under our credit

facility or commercial paper program.

Moody's Investors Service "Moodys" rates our long-term debt Baa2 with a stable outlook and

Standard & Poor's "S&P" rates our long-term debt BBB with a negative outlook. Our commercial paper

program is rated P2 by Moody's and A3 by S&P. Any downgrade in our credit ratings will increase our

borrowing costs and commitment fees under our $750 million revolving credit facility. Downgrades could also

restrict our access to the capital markets, increase our borrowing costs under new or replacement debt

rinaneings, or otherwise adversely affect the terms of future borrowings by, among other things, increasing the

scope of our debt covenants and decreasing our financial or operating flexibility.

The following table reflects our debt to total capitalization percentage and ratio of earnings to fixed

charges and preferred stock dividends as of and for the years ended December31, 2007, 2006 and 2005. Our

debt to capitalization ratio has increased primarily due to share repurchases we have made during the last few

years.

2007 2006 2005

Debt to total capitalization 46.9' 44.8 42.3

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges

and preferred stock dividends* 3.87 3.97 3.60
* For purposes of the chart above, "earnings" consist of income before income taxes and fixed charges. and

"fixed charges" include our interest expense, including amortized debt issuance costs, and our preferred stock

dividend costs.
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REGULATION AND COMPETITION

The communications industry continues to undergo various fundamental regulatory, legislative.

competitive and technological changes. These changes may have a significant impact on the future financial

performance of all communications companies.

Events afibeting the communications industzy. Wireless telephone scrvices increasingly constitute a

significant source ol' competition with LEC services, especially since wireless carriers have begun to compete

effectively on the basis of price with more traditional telephone services. As a result, some customers have

chosen to completely forego use of traditional wireline phone service and instead rely solely on wireless service

for voice services. We anticipate this trend will continue, particularly if wireless service providers continue to

expand their coverage areas, reduce their rates, offer fixed-rate calling plans, improve the quality of their

services, and offer enhanced new services.

In 1996, the United States Congress enacted the Telecommunications Act of 1996 the "1996 Ad', which

obligates LECs to permit competitors to interconnect their facilities to the LEC's network and to take various

other steps that are designed to promote competition. Under the 1996 Act's rural telephone company

exemption, approximately half of our telephone access lines are exempt from certain of these interconnection

requirements unless and until the appropriate state regulatory commission overrides the exemption upon receipt

from a competitor of a bona fide request meeting certain criteria.

Prior to and since the enactment of the 1996 Act, the FCC and a number of state legislative and regulatory

bodies have also taken steps to foster local exchange competition. Coincident with this recent movement toward

increased competition has been the reduction of regulatory oversight of LECs. These cumulative changes, coupled

with various technological developments, have led to the continued growth of various companies providing

services that compete with LECs' services.

Federal USF programs have undergone substantial changes since 1997. and are expected to experience

more changes in the coming years as modernization of the overall program moves forward. As mandated by the

1996 Act, in May 2001 the FCC moditied its existing universal service support mechanism for rural telephone

companies by adopting an interim mechanism for a five-year period based on embedded, or historical, costs that

provide relatively predictable levels of support to many LECs, including substantially all of our LEC5. In May

2006. the FCC extended this interim mechanism until such time that new high-cost support rules arc adopted for

rural telephone companies. Wireless and other competitive service providers continue to seek to qualify to

receive USF support. This trend, coupled with changes in usage of telecommunications services, have placed

stress on the funding mechanism of the USF, which is subject to annual caps on disbursements. These

developments have placed additional financial pressure on the amount of money that is necessary and available
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to provide support to all eligible service providers, including support payments we receive from the USF High

Cost Loop support program. While our 2007 USE High Cost Loop support program receipts approximated

2006 levels, we anticipate that our 2108 revenues from the USF High Cost Loop support program will be lower

than 2007 by approximately $14-17 million.

Since May 2007. the FCC and the Federal-State Joint Board on Universal Service have each proposed a

series of reforms that could, if adopted, substantially restructure current USE programs. Until the FCC acts on

those recommendations or issues final rules, we cannot estimate the impact that such proposals would have on

our operations. In addition, there are a number ofjudicial appeals challenging several aspects of the FCC's

universal service rules and various Congressional proposals seeking to substantially modify USE programs,

none of which have been resolved at this time. We will continue to be active in monitoring these developments.

Technological developments have led to the development of new services that compete with traditional

LEC services. Technological improvements have enabled cable television companies to provide traditional

circuit-switched telephone service over their cable networks, and several national cable companies have

aggressively pursued this opportunity. Additionally, several large electric utilities have announced plans to

offer communications services that compete with LECs. Improvements in the quality of "Voice-over-Internet

Protocol' "V0IP" service have led several cable, lntcmet, data and other communications companies, as well

as stan-up companies, to substantially increase their offerings of VoIP service to business and residential

customers. VoIP providers frequently use existing broadband networks to deliver flat-rate, all distance calling

plans that may offer features that cannot readily be provided by traditional LECs and may be priced below those

currently charged for traditional local and long distance telephone services. In late 2003, the FCC initiated

rulemaking proceedings to address the regulation of VoIP, and has adopted orders establishing some initial

broad regulatory guidelines. There can be no assurance that future rulemaking will be on terms favorable to

ILECs, or that VoIP providers will not successfully compete for our customers.

In 2003. the FCC opened a broad intercarrier compensation proceeding with the ultimate goal of creating a

uniform mechanism to be used by the entire telecommunications industry for payments between carriers

originating, terminating, carrying or delivering telecommunications traffic. The FCC has received intercarrier

compensation proposals from several industry groups, and industry negotiations are continuing with the goal of

developing a consensus plan that addresses the eoncems of carriers from all industry segments.. Until the

FCC's proceeding concludes and the changes. if any, to the existing rules arc established, we cannot estimate

the impact this proceeding will have on our results of operations.

Many cable, entertainment, technology or other communication companies that previously offered a

limiied range of services are now, like us, offering diversified bundles of services. As such, a growing number

of companies are competing to serve the communications needs of the same customer base. Several of these

companies started offering fill service bundles before us, which could give them an advantage in building

customer loyalty.
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Recent events atTecting us. During the last few years. all of the states in which we provide telephone

services have taken legislative or regulatory steps to further introduce competition into the LEC business. The

number of companies which have requested authorization to provide local exchange service in our service areas

has increased in recent years, especially in the markets acquired from Verizon in 2002 and 2000, and it is

anticipated that similar action may be takcn by others in the future.

Certain long distance carriers continue to request that certain of our LECs reduce their intrastate access

tariffed rates. In addition, we have recently experienced reductions in intrastate traffic, partially due to the

displacement of minutes by wireless, electronic mail and other optional calling services. In 2007 we incurred a

reduction in our intrastate revenues of approximately $20.9 million compared to 2006 primarily due to these

factors. The corresponding decrease in 2006 compared to 2005 was $19.2 million. We believe this trend of

decreased intrastate minutes will continue in 2008. although the magnitude of such decrease is uncertain.

We expect our operating revenues in 2008 to decline as we continue to experience downward pressure

primarily due to continued access line losses, reduced network access revenues and lower prior year revenue

settlement amounts. We expect such declines to be partially offset primarily due to increased demand for our

high-speed internet service offering and the impact of recognizing a full year of revenues associated with our

Madison River properties acquired in April 2007.

For a more complete description of regulation and competition impacting our operations and various

attendant risks, please see Items I and IA of this annual report.

Other matters. Our regulated telephone operations except for the properties acquired from Verizon in

2002 are subject to the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 71, "Accounting for the

I IThcts of Certain Types of Regulation" "SFAS 71". Actions by regulators can provide reasonable assurance

of the recognition of an asset, reduce or eliminate the value of an asset and impose a liability on a regulated

enterprise. Such regulatory assets and liabilities are required to be recorded and, accordingly, reflected in the

balance sheet of an entity subject to SFAS 71. We are monitoring the ongoing applicability of SEAS 71 to our

regulated telephone operations due to the changing regulatory, competitive and legislative environments, and it

is possible that changes in regulation, legislation or competition or in the demand tbr regulated services or

products could result in our telephone operations no longer being subject to SFAS 71 in the near future.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 101, "Regulated Enterprises - Accounting for the

Discontinuance of Application of FASB Statement No. 71" "SFAS 101", specifies the accounting required

when an enterprise ceases to meet the criteria for application of SFAS 71. SEAS 101 requires the elimination of

the effects of any actions of regulators that have been recognized as assets and liabilities in accordance with

SFAS 71 but would not have been recognized as assets and liabilities by nonregulated enterprises. Depreciation

rates of certain assets established by regulatory authorities for our telephone operations subject to SFAS 71 have
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historically included a component for removal costs in excess of the related estimated salvage value.

Notwithstanding the adoption of SFAS 143, SFAS 71 requires us to continue to reflect this accumulated

liability for removal costs in excess of salvage value even though there is no legal obligation to remove the

assets. Therefore, we did not adopt the provisions of SFAS 143 for our telephone operations subject to SEAS

7!. SFAS 101 further provides that the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment are to be adjusted

only to the extent the assets are impaired and that impairment shall be judged in the same manner as for

nonregulated enterprises.

Our consolidated balance sheet as of December 31,2007 included regulatory liabilities of' approximately

$198.4 million related to estimated removal costs embedded in accumulated depreciation as described above.

Net deferred income tax assets related to the regulatory assets and liabilities quantified above were $77.0

million.

When and if our regulated operations no longer qualify for the application of SFAS 71. we currently do

not expect to record any impainiient charge related to the carrying value of the property, plant and equipment of

our regulated telephone operations. Additionally, upon the discontinuance of SEAS 71, we would be required

to revise the lives of our property, plant and equipment to reflect the estimated useful lives of the assets. We

currently do not expect such revisions in asset lives will have a material impact on our results of operations.

Upon the discontinuance of SEAS 71, we also would be required to eliminate certain intercompany transactions

with regulated affiliates that currently are not eliminated under the application of SFAS 71. For the year ended

December 31, 2007, approximately $146 million of revenues and related costs would have been eliminated

had we not been subject to the provisions of SFAS 71. Such elimination would have had no impact on total

operating income. For regulatory purposes, the accounting and reporting of our telephone subsidiaries will not

be affected by the discontinued application of SFAS 71.
w

S

We have certain obligations based on federal, state and local laws relating to the protection of the

environment. Costs of compliance through 2007 have not been material, and we currently do not believe that

such costs will become material.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Ma&et Risk

For inlbrmation pertaining to the our market risk disclosure, see "Item 7 - Management's Discussion and

Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Market Risk".

S
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Report of Management

The Shareholders

CenturyTel. Inc.:

Management has prepared and is responsible for the integrity and objectivity of our consolidated financial

statenwnts. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America and necessarily include amounts determined using our best

judgments and estimates.

Our consolidated financial statements have been audited by KPMG LLP, an independent registered public

accounting firm, who have expressed their opinion with respect to the fairness of the consolidated financial

statements. Their audit was conducted in accordance with standards of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board United States.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial

reporting, a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and

the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles. Under the supervision and with the participation of management, including our principal executive

officer and principal financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control

over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission "`050". Based on our evaluation

under the framework of COSO. management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was

effective as of December 31, 2007. The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of

December31. 2007 has been audited by KPMO LLP, as stated in their report which is included herein.

On April 30, 2007, CenturyTel, Inc. "CenturyTel" acquired Madison River Communications Corn.

"Madison River" and management excluded from its assessment of the efl'ectiveness of our internal control

over financial reporting as of December 31. 2007, Madison River's internal control over financial reporting

associated with total assets of $967.9 million and total revenues of $130.5 million included in the consolidated

financial statements of CcnturyTcl as of and for the year ended Decembcr 31, 2007.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements, Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that

controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is composed of independent directors who are not officers

or employees. The Committee meets periodically with the external auditors, internal auditors and management.

The Committee considers the independence of the external auditors and the audit scope and discusses internal

control, financial and reporting matters. Both the external and inLernal auditors have free access to the

Committee.

Is! R. Stewart Ewing. Jr.

R. Stewart Ewing. Jr.

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
-ø

February 29. 2008
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Report olindependent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

CenturyTel, Inc.:

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Centurylel, Inc. and subsidiaries as listed in

Item l5al. In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we also have audited the

financial statement schedule as listed in Item 15a2. These consolidated financial statements and financial

statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an

opinion on these consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes

examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An

audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as

well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable

basis for our opinion.

in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material

respects, the financial position of CenturyTel, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the

results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31,

2007, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also in our opinion, the related

financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the consolidated financial statements taken as a

whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1,2007 the Company

changed its method of accounting for uncertain tax positions. in addition, as discussed in Note I to the

consolidated financial statements, in 2006 the Company changed its method of accounting for share-based

payments effective January I, 2006 and pension and postretiremcnt benefits as of December 31, 2006.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Hoard United States, the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of

December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Controi-Intcgrated Framework issued by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO. and our report dated February

29, 2008 expressed an unqualilied opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial

reporting.

Is! KPMG LLP

Shreveport, Louisiana

February 29. 2008
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Report of Independent Registered Public Aecoutitine Firm -

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

CenturyTel. Inc.:

We have audited CenturyTel, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting as of December31. 2007,

based on criteria established in Internal C'ontrol-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO. The Company's management is responsible for

maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of

intemal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Report of'ManagemenL Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our

audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material

respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing

the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of

internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such other procedures as we

considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our

opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external

purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over

financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 1 pertain to the maintenance of records that, in

reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 2

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial

statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of

the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the

company; and 3 provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial

statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods ire subject to the risk that

controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, CenturyTel, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, etiective internal control over

financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO.
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On April 30, 2007, CenturyTel, Inc. "Centurylel" acquired Madison River Communications Corp.

"Madison River" and management excluded from its assessment of the effectiveness of its internal control

over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007. Madison River's internal control over financial reporting

associated with total assets of $967.9 million and total revenues ofSl3O.5 million included in the consolidated

financial statements of CenturyTel as of and for the year ended December 31, 2007. Our audit of internal

control over financial reporting of the Company also excluded an evaluation of the internal control over

financial reporting of Madison River.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States. the consolidated financial statements of CenturyTel, Inc. and subsidiaries as listed in

Item I 5a 1. and our report dated February 29, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated

financial statements.

Is/ KPMCJ LII'

Shreveport. Louisiana

February 29, 2008
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CENTURYTEL, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Income

Year ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005

Dollars, except per share amounts,

and shares in thousands

OPERATING REVENUES S 2,656,24 I 2,447,730 2.479.252

OPERATING EXPENSES

Cost of services and products exclusive of

depreciation and amortization

Selling, general and administrative

Depreciation and amortization

937,375 888,414 821.929

389,533 370,272 388,989

536,255 523,506 531,931

Total operating expenses 1,863,163 1.782,192 1,742,849

OPERATING INCOME 793,078 665.538 736,403

OTHER INCOME EXPENSE

Interest expense

Other income expense

212.906 195,957 201.801

38.770 121,568 3,168

Total other income expense 174,136 74,389 198,633

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax expense

618,942 591,149 537,770

200.572 221,122 203,291

NET INCOME S A18.370 370.027 334.4L9

!MSIC EARNINGS PER SHARE -- S 3.82 3,17 2.55

S 3 72 3.07 242DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

DIVIDENDS PER COMMON SHARE

AVERAGE BASIC SHARES OUTSTANDING

AVERAGE DILUThD SHARES OuTSTANDING

S .26 25

109.360 116.671 l30J4j.

113.094 122.229 136.087

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

S

S

S

S

S

S
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cENTURYThL, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive income

Y ear ended December 3 I.

2007 2006 2005

Dollars in thousands

NET INCOME $ 418370 370.027 334.479

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, NET OF TAXES

Minimum pension liability adjustment, net of

$965 and $1,438 tax - 1,548 2.307

Unrealized holding gains related to marketable

securities arising during the period, net of $547.

$41 I and $165 tax 877 659 264

Derivative instruments:

Net gains losses on derivatives hedging variability of

cash flows, net of $294 and $2,606 tax 471 - 4,180

Reclassification adjustment for gains losses included

in net income, net of $254, $234 and $202 tax 407 375 324

Items related to employee benefit plans*:

Change in net actuarial toss, net of $28,583 tax 52,485 - -

Change in net prior service credit, net of $1,724 tax 2,766 - -

Reclassification adjustment for gains losses included

in net income:

Amortization of net actuarial toss, net of $4,409 tax 6,554 - -

Amortization of net prior service credit, net of

$771tax 1,236 - -

Amortization of unrecognized transition asset,

netof$55tax 89 - -

Net change in other comprehensive income loss

net of reclassification adiustment. net of taxes 62.235

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME S 480.605

2.582

372.609

1.285

333.194

* Reflected in 2007 due to the December 31, 2006 adoption of SFAS 158.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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December 3 I,

2007 2006

Dollars in thousands

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 34.402 25,668

Accounts receivable

Customers, less allowance of $12,! 29 and $11.32 I 152.809 150,892

Interexehange carriers and other, less allowance

of $8,232 and 59.584 70.218 76,454

Materials and supplies, at average cost 8.558 6,628

Other 26,412 30.475

Total current assets 292,399 290.117

NET PROPERTY. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 3,108,376 3.109.277

GOODWILL AND OTHER ASSETS

Goodwill 4.010,916 3,431,136

Other 772,862 610,477

Total goodwill and other assets 4,783,778 4,041,613

TOTAL ASSETS - &_t84553 7.441.007-

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current maturities of long-term debt $ 279.898 155,012

Short-term debt - 23,000

Accounts payable 120.38 I 129,350

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Salaries and benefits 64,380 54,100

Income taxes 54.233 60,522

Other taxes 48,961 46,890

Interest 80,103 73,725

Other 30.942 23,352

Advance billings and customer deposits 57.637 51.614

Total current liabilities 736.535 617.565

LONG-TERM DEBT 2.734,357 2,412.852

DEFERRED CREDITS AND OTHER LIAI3I LIII ES 1.304.456 1,219.639

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Common stock. $1.00 par value, authorized 350.000.000 shares,

issued and outstanding 108,491.736 and 113,253,889 shares 108,492 113.254

Paid-in capital 91.147 24.256

Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax 42.707 104,942

Retained earnings 3.245,302 3.150,933

Preferred stock - non-redeemable 6.97 I 7.450

Total stockholders' equity 3,409,205 3,190,951

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EOUITY -- S 8.184.553 7441.001

Sec accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

CENTURYTEL, INC.

Consolidated Balance Sheets

w

S

S

S

S
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CENTURYTEL, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Y ear ended December 31.

2007 2006 2005

Dollars in thousands

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income S 418,370 370,027 334,479

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net

cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 536,255 523,506 531,931

Gains on asset dispositions 15.643 II 8,649 3.500

Deferred income taxes 1,018 49,685 69,530

Share-based compensation 19.962 11.904 4,721

Income from unconsolidated cellular entity 14,578 5.861 4.910

Distributions from unconsolidated cellular entity 10,229 - 2,339

Changes in current assets and current liabilities

Accounts receivable 15,920 7,909 685

Accounts payable 13,698 24,906 37,174

Accrued taxes 11,604 49,735 72,971

Other current assets and other current

liabilities, net 23,782 10,269 8,111

Retirement benefits 27,350 5,963 16,815

Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation 6,427 12,034 -

Decrease in noncurrent assets 12,718 9,078 1,973

Increase decrease in other noncurrent liabilities 20,781 709 2,638

Other, net 23,905 13,042 17,691

Net cash provided by operating activities 1.029,986 840.719 967.078

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payments for property, plant and equipment 326,045 314,071 414,872

Proceeds from redemption of Rural Telephone Bank stock 5,206 122,819 -

Proceeds from sale of assets 8,231 5,865 4,000

Acquisitions, net of cash acquired 306.805 - 75,453

Investment in unconsolidated cellular entity 2,667 5,222 -

Other, net 2.892 3,122 2,594

Net cash used in investinu activities 619.188 193,731 483.731

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Payments of debt 712.980 81,995 693,345

Proceeds from issuance of debt 741,840 23,000 344,173

Repurchase of common stock 460,676 802.188 551,759

Settlement of equity units - - 398.164

Proceeds from issuance of common stock 49,404 97.803 50,374

Settlements of interest rate hedge contracts 765 - 7,357

Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation 6.427 12.034 -

Cash dividends 29.052 29,203 3 1.862

Other, net 2,208 383 104

Net cash used in financing activities 402,064 780.166 491,716

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at betzinning of year

8.734

25,668

133,178 8,369

158,846 167,215

`ASH AND CASH EOUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $34,402 26& L5EK46

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CENTURYTEL, NC.

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity

Year ended December 3 L
2007 2006 2005

w

TOTALSJQCKIIOLDERS' EOUITY t 140920S 1 IOn QSI 1617271

See accompanying notes to consolidated tinancial statements.

S

Dollars. except per share amounts,

and shares in thousands

COMMON STOCK represents dollars and shares

Balance at beginning of year $ 113.254 131,074 132,374

Repurchase of common stock 10,213 21,432 16.409

Conversion of debt into common stock 3,699 - -

Issuance of common stock upon settlement of equily units - - 12,881

Conversion of preferred stock into common stock 26 22 7

Issuance of common stock through dividend

reinvestment, ineenttve and benellt plans 1.726 3,590 2,221

Balance at end of year 108,492 113,254 131,074

PAID-IN CAPITAL

Balance at beginning of year 24.256 129.806 222.205

Repurchase of common stock 155,036 222.998 535.350

Conversion of debt into common stock 142.732 - -

Issuance of common stock upon settlement of equity units - - 385.283

Issuance of common stock through dividend

reinvestment, incentive and benelit plans 47,678 94.213 48.153

Conversion of preferred stock into common stock 453 378 118

Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation 6.427 12,034 -

Share based compensation and other 24,637 10.823 9,397

Balance at end of year 91,147 24,256 129,806

ACCUMULATED OThER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS,

NET OF TAX

Balance at beginning of year 104.942 9.619 8.334

Effect of adoption ofSFAS 158, net of tax see Note I - 97.905 -

Net change in other comprehensive income loss net of reclassitieation

adiustment, net of tax 62,235 2.582 1.285

Balance at end of year 42.707 104.942 9,619

RETAINED EARNtNGS .

Balance at beginning of year 3,150,933 3.358,162 3,055,545

Net income 418,370 370.027 334,479

Repurchase of common stock 295.427 557,758 -

Cumulative effect of adoption of SAB 108 see Note I - 9,705 -

Cumulative effect of adoption of FIN 48 see Note 12 478 - -

Cash dividends declared

Common stock - 5.26. $.25 and 524 per share 28.684 28.823 31,466

Pretèned stock 368 380 396

Balance at cad of year 3,245,302 3.150.933 3.358,162

PREFERRED STOCK - NON-REDEEMABLE

Balance at beginning of year 7.450 7.850 7,975

Conversion of prelèrred stock into common stock 479 400 125

Balance at end of year 6.97 I 7.450 7.850

S

S

e

S
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ENT1JRYTEL, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2007

I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles ofconsolidation - Our consolidated financial statements include the accounts of CenturyTel, Inc. and

its majority-owned subsidiaries.

Regulatory accounting - Our regulated telephone operations except for the properties acquired from Verizon in

2002 are subject to the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 71. "Accounting for the

Effects of Certain Types of Regulation" "SFAS 71". Actions by regulators can provide reasonable assurancc

of the recognition of an asset, reduce or eliminate the value of an asset and impose a liability on a regulated

enterprise. Such regulatory assets and liabilities are required to be recorded and, accordingly, reflected in the

balance sheet of an entity subject to SFAS 71. We are monitoring the ongoing applicability of SFAS 71 to our

regulated telephone operations due to the changing regulatory, competitive and legislative environments, and it

is possible that changes in regulation, legislation or competition or in the demand for regulated services or

products could result in our telephone operations no longer being subject to SFAS 71 in the near future. Our

consolidated balance sheet as of December 31.2007 included regulatory liabilities of approximately $198.4

million related to estimated removal costs embedded in accumulated depreciation as required to be recorded by

regulators. Net deferred income tax assets related to the regulatory assets and liabilities quantified above were

$77.0 million.

Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles

requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and

liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the

reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may differ from those

estimates.

Revenue recognition - Revenues are generally recognized when services are provided or when products are

delivered to customers. Revenue that is billed in advance includes monthly recurring network access services,

special access services and monthly recurring local line charges. Ihe unearned portion of this revenue is

initially deferred as a component of advanced billings and customer deposits on our balance sheet and

recognized as revenue over the period that the services are provided. Revenue that is billed in arrears includes

switched access services, nonrecurring network access services, nonrecurring local services and long distance

services. The earned but unbilled portion of this revenue is recognized as revenue in the period that the services

are provided. Revenues from installation activities along with the related costs are deferred and amortized

over the estimated life of the customer relationship.
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Certain of our telephone subsidiaries' revenues are based on tariffed access charges filed directly with the

Federal Communications Commission; the remainder of our telephone subsidiaries participate in revenue

sharint arrangements with other telephone companies for interstate revenue except for broadband related

revenues and for certain intrastate revenue. Such sharing arrangements are funded by toll revenue and'or

access charges within state jurisdictions and by access charges in the interstate market. Revenues earned

through certain sharing arrangements are initially recorded based on our estimates.

Allowance for doubtful accounts. In evaluating the collectibility of our accounts receivable, we assess a number of

factors, including a specific customer's or carrier's ability to meet its financial obligations to us, the length of time

the receivable has been past due and historical collection experience. Based on these assessments, we record both

specific and general reserves for uncollcctiblc accounts receivable to reduce the stated amount of applicable

accounts receivable to the amount we ultimately expect to collect.

Property, plant and equipment - lelephone plant is stated at original cost. Normal retirements of telephone

plant are charged against accumulated depreciation, along with the costs of removal. less salvage, with no gain

or loss recognized. Renewals and betterments of plant and equipment are capitalized while repairs, as well as

renewals of minor items, are charged to operating expense. Depreciation of telephone plant is provided on the

straight line method using class or overall group rates acceptable to regulatory authorities; such average rates

range from 2% to 20%.

Non-telephone property is stated at cost and, when sold or retired, a gain or loss is recognized.

Depreciation of such property is provided on the straight line method over estimated service lives ranging from

two to 35 years.

Intangible assets - Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible

Assets" "SFAS 142", requires goodwill recorded in a business combination to be reviewed for impairment and

to be written down only in periods in which the recorded amount of goodwill exceeds its fair value. We test

impairment of goodwill at least annually by comparing the fair value of the reporting unit to its carrying value

including goodwill. We base our estimates of the fair value of the reporting unit on valuation models using

criterion such as multiples of earnings.

Long-lived assets - Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, "Accounting for the Impairment or

Disposal of Long-Lived Assets" "SFAS 144". addresses financial accounting and reporting for the impairment

or disposal of long-lived assets exclusive of goodwill and also broadens the reporting of discontinued

operations to include all components of an entity with operations that can be distinguished from the rest of the

entity and that will be eliminated from the ongoing operations of the entity in a disposal transaction. During

2007, we recognized a $16.6 million pre-tax impairment charge in order to write-down the value of certain of

our long-lived assets in certain of our CLEC markets to their estimated realizable value.

S
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Affiliated transactions - Certain of our service subsidiaries provide installation and maintenance services,

materials and supplies, and managerial, operational, technical, accounting and administrative services to other

subsidiaries. In addition, CenturyTel provides and bills management services to subsidiaries and in certain

instances makes interest bearing advances to finance construction of plant and purchases of equipment. These

transactions are recorded by our telephone subsidiaries at their cost to the extent permitted by regulatory

authorities. Intercompany profit on transactions with regulated affiliates is limited to a reasonable return on

investment and has not been eliminated in connection with consolidating the results of operations of CenturyTel

and its subsidiaries. Intercompany profit on transactions with affiliates not subject to SFAS 71 has been

eliminated.

Income taxes - We tile a consolidated federal income tax return with our eligible subsidiaries. We use the asset

and liability method of accounting for income taxes under which deferred tax assets and liabilities are

established for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases.

Postretirement and pension plans- We adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Aceountiric Standards

No. 158. "Employers' Accounting for Defined Benefit Plans and Other Postretirement Plans" "SFAS 158" as

of December 31, 2006. SFAS 158 requires us to recognize the overfunded or underfunded status of our defined

benefit and postretirement plans as an asset or a liability on our balance sheet, with an adjustment to

stockholders' equity reflected as an increase or decrease in accumulated other comprehensive income or loss.

The incremental effect of applying SFAS 158 on individual line items of our balance sheet as of December 31.

2006 were as follows:

Before After

Application of Application of

SEAS 158 Adjustments SFAS 158

Dollars in thousands

Otherassets $ 675.215 64,738 610.477

Total assets $ 7,505,745 64,738 7,441,007

Accrued expenses and other

current liabilities $ 259.487 898 258,589

Deferred credits and other

liabilities excluding deferred

income taxes $ 447.066 99.5 I 2 546,578

Deferred income taxes $ 738.508 65,447 673,061

Total liabilities $ 4,216,889 33.167 4,250,056

Accumulated other comprehensive loss,

net of tax $ 7,037 97,905 104,942

Total stockholders' equity $ 3.288.856 97.905 3.190,951

Cumulative cube! adjustment- In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Stall'

Accounting Bulletin No. 108, "Considering the Effect of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying

Misstatements in Current Year Financial Results" "SAB 108". SAB 108 addresses how the effects of prior
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year uncorrected misstatements should be considered when quantifying misstatements in current year financial

statements. SAB 108 requires companies to quantify misstatements using both a balance sheet approach and

income statement approach and to evaluate whether either approach results in quantifying ati error that is

material in light of the relevant quantitative and qualitative factors.

As of December 31, 2006, we identified two misstatements that previously were deemed immaterial using

the income statement approach that are now deemed material upon application of the balance sheet approach.

Such misstatements relate to i the failure to capitalize interest in connection with the development of our

billing system, which began in the late 1990's and ii the failure to defer the revenues and costs associated

with installation activities related to our service offerings. Using the guidance of SAB 10%. we have recorded a

net cumulative effect adjustment to retained earnings as of January 1,2006, which increased retained earnings

approximately $9.7 million presented on an after-tax basis. Of the $9.7 million net increase to retained

earnings, approximately $14.0 million related to the capitalized interest adjustment, which was partially offset

by a reduction to retained earnings of approximately $4.3 million related to the installation activities

adjustment. We adjusted our results of operations for the first, second and third quarters of 2006 to reflect the

ongoing application of the above. Such adjustments were immaterial to each quarter.

Stock-based compensation - Effective January I, 2006, we adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial

Accounting Standards No. 123 Revised 2004. "Share-Based Payment", which requires us to measure our cost

of awarding employees with equity instruments based upon the fair value of the award on the grant date. Prior

to January I, 2006, we accounted for our stock compensation plans using the intrinsic value method in

accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25. See Note 14 for additional information.

Derivative financial instruments - We account for derivative instruments and hedging activities in accordance

with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133. "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and

Hedging Activities" "SFAS 133", as amended. SFAS 133. as amended, requires that all derivative

instruments, such as interest rate swaps, be recognized in the financial statements and measured at fair valuc

regardless of the purpose or intent of holding them. On the date a derivative contract is entered into, we

designate the derivative as either a fair value or cash flow hedge A hedge of the fair value of a recognized

asset or liability or of an unrecognized firm commitment is a fair value hedge. A hedge oVa Ibrecasted

transaction or the variability of cash tiuws to be received or paid related to a recogniied asset or liability is a

cash flow hedge. We also formally assess, both at the hedge's inception and on an ongoing basis, whether the

derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly efketive in offsetting changes in fair values or cash

flows of hedged items. If we determine that a derivative is not, or is no longer, highly effective as a hedge, we

would discontinue hedge accounting prospectively. We recognize all derivatives on the balance sheet at their

fair value. Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments are either recognized in income or

stockholders' equity as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income loss, depending on

whether the derivative is being used to hedge changes in the fair value or cash flows. We do not hold or issue

derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes. Management periodically reviews our
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exposure to interest rate fluctuations and implements strategies to manage the exposure. See Note 6 for

additional information.

Earnings per share - Basic earnings per share amounts are determined on the basis of the weighted average

number of common shares outstanding during the applicable accounting period. Diluted earnings per share

gives effect to all potential dilutive common shares that were outstanding during the period. See Note 13 for

additional information.

Cash equivalents - We consider short-term investments with a maturity at date of purchase of three months or

less tobe cash equivalents.

2 ACQUISITIONS

On April 30, 2007, we acquired all of the outstanding stock of Madison River Communications Corp.

"Madison River" iron' Madison River Telephone Company. LLC for an initial aggregate purchase price of

approximately $322 million cash. In connection with the acquisition, we also paid all of Madison River's existing

indebtedness including accrued interest, which approximated $522 million. At the time of this acquisition,

Madison River operated approximately 164,000 predominantly rural access lines in four states with more than 30%

high-speed Internet penetration and its network included ownership in a 2,400 route mile fiber network. We

believe this acquisition adds attractive markets with good demographics and growth prospects and its fiber network

is complementary to our existing operations.

We are accounting for the acquisition of Madison River as a purchase under the guidance of Statement of

Financial Accounting Standards No. 141, "Business Combinations" "SFAS 141" and Statement of Financial

Accounting Standards No. 71, "Accounting for the Effbcts of Certain Types of Regulation" "SFAS 71". SFAS

141 requires us to record the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at their respective fair values. In accordance

with SFAS 71, we recorded the fixed assets of Madison River's regulated telephone operations at historical book

value since those values are used to develop the rates we charge to our customers which are approved by

regulatory authorities.

We have reflected the results otoperations of he Madison River properties in our consolidated results of

operations beginning May 1.2007.

Thc total cost of the Madison River acquisition through December 31. 2007 is composed of the following

components amounts in thousands:

CashpaidI $ 321.5L6

Closing costs 2 5.268

Total purchase price S 326.784
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I Reflects the cash payment of $671,000 we received in third quarter 2007 in accordance with the

purchase agrecment upon finalization of the working capital portion of the purchase price.

2 Closing costs primarily consist of advisory and legal fees incurred in connection with the acquisition.

The purchase price has been allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed as follows amounts in

thousands:

CurrentassetsI $ 33.761

Net property, plant and equipment 208.3 17

Identifiable intangible assets

Customer list 156.800

Franchise 6.400

Goodwill 579.780

Other assets 21.998

Current liabilities 2 25.578

Long-term debt 2 520,000

Deferred income taxes 105.168

Other liabilities 29.526

Total purchase price S 326.784

I Includes approximately $20.0 million of acquired cash and cash equivalents.

2 We paid all the long-term debt and $2.2 million of related accrued interest included in "current

liabilities" in the above table immediately after closing.

On June 30, 2005, we acquired fiber assets in 16 metropolitan markets from KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.

"KMC" for approximately $75.5 million. The assets acquired and liabilities assumed have been reflected in our

consolidated balance sheet based on a purchase price allocation determined by independent third parties.. The vast

majority of the purchase price was allocated to property, plant and equipment. The results of operations of the

KMC properties are included in our results of operations beginning July I, 2005.
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3 GOODWILL AND OTHER ASSETS

Goodwill and other assets at December 31.2007 and 2006 were composed of the following:

December 31. 2007 2006

Dollars in thousands

Goodwill $ 4,010,916 3,431,136

Billing system development costs, less accumulated amortization

of 538.285 and $26,752 192,904 204,597

`ash surrender value of life insurance contracts 95.654 p4.788

Deferred costs associated with installation activities 81.908 73,256

Pension asset 28.536 16,187

Intangible assets not subject to amortization 42.750 36,690

Marketable securities 35.811 32.235

Investment in unconsolidated cellular partnership 33,714 29.364

Deferred interest rate hedge contracts 23.692 23.134

Investment in debt security 22.807 22.209

Intangible assets subject to amortization

Customer list, less accumulated amortization of$18.149 and $7,022 163,160 18,072

Contract rights, less accumulated amortization of $4,186 and $3,256 - 930

Other 51.926 59,015

- - S 4J83.778 4.041.613

Our goodwill was derived from numerous previous acquisitions whereby the purchase price exceeded the fair

value of the net assets acquired. Goodwill increased in 2007 as a result of our Madison River acquisition. We test

for goodwill impairment annually under SFAS 142 and, based on our analysis performed as of September 30,

2007, determined our goodwill was not impaired.

We accounted for the costs to develop an integrated billing and customer care system in accordance with

Statement of Position 98-I. "Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for

Internal Use." Aggregate capitalized costs before accumulated amortization totaled $231.2 million and are

being amortized over a twenty-year period.

In the third quarter of 2004, we entered into a three-year agreement with EehoStar Communications

Corporation "lichoStar" to provide co-branded DISH Network satellite television services to our customers.

As part of the transaction, we invested $25 million in an EchoStar convertible subordinated debt security, which

had a fair value at date of issuance of approximately $20.8 million and matures in 2011.

In connection with the acquisitions of properties from Verizon Communications, Inc. "Verizon" in 2002

and Madison River in 2007, we assigned an aggregate of $41.7 million of the respective purchase prices as an

intangible asset associated with franchise costs which includes amounts necessary to maintain eligibility to
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provide telecommunications services in its licensed service areas. Such assets have an indefinite life and

therefore are not subject to amortization currently.

In connection with various acquisitions we have made over the past several years. we have allocated

amounts to a customer list intangible asset, including $156.8 million from our Madison River acquisition in

2007 and $22.7 million from our acquisition of Verizon properties in 2002. Such assets are being amortized on

a straight-line basis over periods that range from 5-15 years. Total amortization expense for these customer

base and other intangible assets for 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $12.2 million, $3.1 million and $3.0 million.

respectively, and is expected to be $16.1 million annually from 2008 through 2011 and $15.7 million in 2012.

4 PROPERTY. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Net property, plant and equipment at December 31, 2007 and 2006 was composed of the following:

S

Depreciation expense was $524. I million, $520.4 million and $528.9

respectively.

million in 2007, 2006 and 2005,

Net property, plant and equipment increased $208.3 million in 2007 as a result of our Madison River

acquisition.

December 31. 2007 2006

Dollars in thousands

Cable and wire 8 4,570,930 4,224,453

Central office 2.775.479 2.522,940

General support 811,488 760,170

Fiber transport 289,392 222,595

Information origination/termination 78,981 62,060

Construction in progress 99,641 59.198

Other 40.195

8,666,106

42.344

7.893,760

Accumulated depreciation 5.557.730 4.784.483

Net nronertv. niant and etiuinment 3.108.376 3 109 277

S
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5 LONG-TERM DEBT

Our long-term debt as of December 3!. 2007 and 2006 was as follows:

December 31. 2007 2006

Dollars in thousands

`enturyTel

Senior notes and debentures:

7.20% Series D, due 2025 S 100.000 100,000

6.30% Series F. due 2008 240,000 240,000

6.875% Series 0, due 2028 425,000 425,000

8.375% Series II. due 2010 500,000 500,000

6.02% Series .1 - 100.908

4.75% Series K - 165.000

7.875% Series L, due 2012 500.000 500.000

5.0% Series M. due 2015 350,000 350.000

6.0% Series N, due 2017 500,000 -

5.5% Series 0. due 2013 250,000 -

Unamortized net discount 7,840 5,640

Net fair value of derivative instruments:

Series H senior notes 7,99! 10.853

- Series L senior notes 3,048 20,593

Total CenturyTel 2.868,199 2.365.528

Subsidiaries

First mortgage debt
5,35%* notes. payable to agencies of the U. S. government

and cooperative lending associations, due in

installments through 2028 120.788 133.738

7.98% notes - 4,420

Other debt

7.1% unsecured medium-term notes. due through 2008 25,000 61.499

lO.0%notes 100 971

7.3% capita! lease obligations, due through 2008 168 1.708

Total subsidiaries 146.056 202,336

Total long-term debt 3,014,255 2,567,864

Less current maturities 279,898 155,012

Lone-term debt. excluding current maturities -- S 2.734.357 24I2.852

* Weighted average interest rate at December31, 2007

The approximate annual debt maturities for the five years subsequent to December31, 2007 are as

follows: 2008- $279.9 million; 2009- $14.8 million; 2010- $513.3 million: 2011 - $1 1.3 million; and 2012-

$511.3 niil!ion.

Certain of our loan agreements contain various restrictions, among which are limitations regarding

issuance of additional debt, payment of cash dividends, reacquisition of capital stock and other matters. In

addition, the transfer of funds from certain consolidated subsidiaries to CenturyTel is restricted by various loan

agreements. Subsidiaries which have loans from government agencies and cooperative lending associations, or

have issued first mortgage bonds, generally may not loan or advance any funds to CenturyTel, but may pay

dividends if certain financial ratios are met. At December 31. 2007. restricted net assets of subsidiaries were

$131.8 million and subsidiaries' retained earnings in excess of amounts restricted by debt covenants totaled
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$1.3 billion. At December 31, 2007, approximately $2.3 billion of our consolidated retained earnings reflected

on the balance sheet was available under our loan agreements for the declaration of dividends.

The senior notes and debenturcs of CenturyTel referred to above were issued under an indenture dated

March 31, 1994. This indenture does not contain any financial covenants, but does include restrictions that

limit our ability to i incur, issue or create liens upon its property and ii consolidate with or merge into, or

transfer or lease all or substantially all of its assets to, any other party. The indenture does not contain any

provisions that are impacted by our credit ratings, or that restrict the issuance of new securities in the event of a

material adverse change to us.
S

S

Approximately 14% of our property, plant and equipment is pledged to secure the long-term debt of

__

subsidiaries. S

On March 29, 2007, we publicly issued $500 million of 6.0% Senior Notes, Series N, due 2017 and $250

million of 5.5% Senior Notes, Series 0, due 2013. Our $741.8 million of net proceeds from the sale of these

Senior Notes were used to pay a substantial portion of the approximately $844 million of cash that was needed

in order to i pay the initial purchase price for the acquisition of Madison River on April 30, 2007 $322

million and ii pay off Madison River's existing indebtedness including accrued interest at closing $522

million. We funded the remainder of these cash outflows from borrowings under our commercial paper

program and cash on hand. See Note 2 for additional information concerning the acquisition of Madison River.

In July 2007, we called for redemption on August 14, 2007 all of our $165 million aggregate principal

amount 4.75% convertible senior debentures, Series IC, due 2032 at a redemption price of SI .023.80 per $1,000

principal amount of debentures, plus accrued and unpaid interest through August 13, 2007. In accordance with the

indenture, holders could elect to convert their debentures into shares of CenturyTel common stock at a conversion

price of $40455 per share prior to August 10, 2007. In lieu of cash redemption, holders of approximately $149.6

million aggregate principal amount of the debentures elected to convert their holdings into approximately 3.7

million shares of Centurylel common stock. The remaining $15.4 million of outstanding debentures were retired

for cash including premium and accrued and unpaid interest. As a result, we no longer have any of the Series K

debentures outstanding. We recognized a pre-tax charge of approximately $366,000 in third quarter 2007 related

to the cash redemption portion of these transactions.

w

In May 2002, we issued and sold in an underwritten public offering $500 million of equity units, each of

which were priced at $25 and consisted initially of a beneficial interest in a CenturyTel senior unsecured note

Series J, due 2007 and remarketable in 2005 with a principal amount of $25 and a contract to purchase shares

of CenturyTel common stock no later than May 2005. Each purchase contract generally required the holder to

purchase between .6944 and .8741 of a share of CenturyTel common stock on May 16. 2005 in exchange for

$25. subject to certain adjustments and exceptions.
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In February 2005, we remarketed substantially all of our $500 million of outstanding Series J senior notes

due 2007 the notes described above, at an interest rate of 4.628%. We received no proceeds in connection

with the remarketing as all net proceeds were held iii trust to secure the equity unit holders' obligation to

purchase common stock from us on May 16, 2005. In connection with the remarketing. we purchased and

retired approximately $400 million of the notes, resulting in approximately $100 million of remaining

outstanding notes which were subsequently repaid in 2007. We incurred a pre-tax charge of approximately

$6.0 million in the first quarter of 2005 related to purchasing and retiring the notes. Proceeds to purchase such

notes came from the February 2005 issuance of 3Sf million of 5% senior notes, Series M, due 2015 and cash

on hand.

Between April 15, 2005 and May 4, 2005. we repurehased and cancelled an aggregate of approximately

4.1 million of our equity units in privately-negotiated transactions with six institutional holders at an average

price of $25.18 per unit. The remaining 15.9 million equity units outstanding on May 16, 2005 were settled in

stock in accordance with the terms and conditions of the purchase contract that formed a part of such unit.

Accordingly, on May 16. 2005, we received proceeds of approximately $398.2 million and issued

approximately 12.9 million common shares in the aggregate. See Note 9 for information on our accelerated

share repurchase program which mitigated the dilutive impact of issuing these 12.9 million shares.

As of December31. 2007. we had available a $750 million five-year revolving credit facility which

expires in December 2011. We also have a commercial paper program under which borrowings are effectively

limited to the total amount available under our credit facility. As of December 31, 2007, we had no amounts

outstanding under either our credit facility or commercial paper program.

6 DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

In 2003, we entered into four separate fair value interest rate hedges associated with the full $500 million

principal amount of our Series L senior notes, due 2012, that pay interest at a fixed rate of 7.875%. These

hedges are "fixed to variable" interest rate swaps that effectively convert our fixed rate interest payment

obligations under these notes into obligations to pay variable rates that range from the six-month London

InterBank Offered Rate "LIBOR" plus 3.229% to the six-month LIBOR plus 3.67%. with settlement and rate

reset dates occurring each six months through the expiration of the hedges in August 2012. During 2007, we

realized an average interest rate under these hedges of 8.7t and interest expense was greater than it would

have otherwise been by $4.1 million during 2007 as a result of these hedges. The aggregate fair value of such

hedges at December 31, 2007 was $3.0 million and is reflected on the accompanying balance sheet as both an

asset included in "Other Assets" and as an increase to our underlying long-term debt.

In third quarter 2007, we entered into a hedge transaction that effectively locked-in the interest rate for the

six-month period ended February 2008 related to the $500 million of Series L notes that previously were
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effectively converted to variable rate notes pursuant to the "fixed to variable" interest rate swaps described above.

This hedge did not quali1' for hedge accounting treatment and therefore is adjusted to its fair value each period

with a corresponding adjustment through the income statement. The impact of this transaction to 2007 results of

operations was not material.

In January 2008. we terminated all of our existing derivatives including those described above and

received a net cash settlement of approximately $20.7 million in connection therewith. See Note 20 for

additional information regarding the termination of our derivatives.

In anticipation of the issuance of Senior Notes in connection with the Madison River acquisition. we

entered into four cash flow hedges that effectively locked in the interest rate on an aggregate of $400 million of

debt. The issuance of these Senior Notes was completed in late March 2007 with the issuance of $500 million

of 6.0% Senior Notes, due 2017, and $250 million of 5.5% Senior Notes, due 2013. We locked in the interest

rate on i $200 million of 10-year debt at 5.0675% and ii $200 million of 10-year debt at 5.05%. In March

2007. upon settlement of the hedges, we received an aggregate of $765,000 cash, which is being amortized as a

reduction of interest expense over the 10-year term of the debt.

7 DEFERRED CREDITS AND OTHER LIABtLITIES

Dekrred credits and other liabilities at December 31, 2007 and 2006 were composed of the following:

December 3 I, 2007 2006

Dollars in thousands

Deferred federal and state income taxes $ 810.571 673,061

Accrued postretirement benefit costs 278,230 327,337

Deferred revenue 105,491 99,669

Accrued pension costs 37,296 36,784

Fair value of interest rate swap 834 20,593

Minority interest 7,818 9.226

Other 64,216 52,969

S 1.304.456 1219639

8 REDUCTIONS IN WORKFORCE

On March 1,2006 and August 30. 2006. we announced workforce reductions involving an aggregate of

approximately 400 jobs, or 6% of our workforec, primarily due to increased competitive pressures and the loss

of access lines over the last several years. For 2006, we incurred a net pre-tax charge of approximately $7.5

million consisting of a $9.4 million charge to operating expenses, net of a $1.9 million favorable revenue

impact related to such expenses as allowed through our rate-making process in connection with severance and

related costs. Of the $9.4 million charged to operating expenses. approximately $8.6 million was reflected in

cost of services and products and $845,000 was reflected in selling, general and administrative expenses.
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In September 2007, we announced a reduction of our workforce to be completed by mid-2008 of

approximately 200 jobs, primarily due to the progress made on our Madison River integration plan and the

elimination of certain customer service personnel due to reduced call volumes. We incurred a one-time net pre

tax charge of approximately $2.2 million in the third quarter of 2007 consisting ofa $2.7 million charge to

operating expenses, net of a $527,000 favorable revenue impact related to such expenses as allowed through our

rate-making process in connection with the severance and related costs. Of the 52.7 million charged to

operating expenses, approximately $2.0 million is reflected in cost of services and products and $774,000 is

reflected in selling, general and administrative expenses.

The bllowing table reflects additional information regarding the severance-related liability for 2007 and

2006 in thousands:

Balance at December 31, 2005 $ -

Amount accrued to expense 9,43 I

Adjustments to accrual amounts 529

Amount paid 8.445

Balance at December 3 I. 2006 S 457

Amount accrued to expense 2,741

Amount paid 1.363

Balance at December 31, 2007 S 1.835

9 STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Common stock - Unissued shares of CenturyTel common stock were reserved as follows:

December 31, 2007

In thousands

Incentive compensation programs 6,185

Acquisitions 4.064

Employee stock purchase plan 4,480

Dividend reinvestment plan 298

Conversion of convertible preferred stock 380

15.407

In accordance with stock repurchase programs described below, we repurchased 10.2 million shares lbr

$460.7 million. 21.4 million shares for $802.2 million and 16.4 million shares for $551.8 million in 2007,

2006 and 2005, respectively. The 2006 and 2005 repurchases included 14.36 million and 12.9 million shares.

respectively, repurchased for a total price of $528.4 and $437.5 million, respectively under accelerated share

repurchase agreements see below for additional information.

In August 2007. our board oldirectors authorized a $750 million share repurchase program which expires

on September 30. 2009, unless extended by the board. Through December 31,2007. we had repurehased

approximately 3.6 million shares for $158.5 million under this program.
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On February 2 I, 2006, our Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase program authorizing us to

repurchase up to $1.0 billion of our common stock and terminated the approximately $13 million remaining

balance of our existing $200 million share repurchase program approved in February 2005. In February 2006.

we repurchased the first $500 million of common stock through accelerated share repurchase agreements

entered into with various investment banks, rcpurchasing and retiring approximately 14.36 million shares of

common stock at an average initial price of $34.83 per share. We funded repurchases under these agreements

through short-term borrowings and cash on hand. As part of the accelerated share repurchase transactions, we

simultaneously entered into forward contracts with the investment banks whereby the investment banks

purchased an aggregate of 14.36 million shares of our common stock during the terms of the contracts. At the

end of the repurchase period in mid-July 2006. we paid an aggregate of approximately $28.4 million cash to the

investment banks to compensate them for the difference between their weighted average purchase price during

the repurchase period and the initial average price. We reflected such settlement amount as an adjustment to

retained earnings in our financial statements during 2006. We repurchased the remaining $500 million of

common stock of this program through open market transactions through June 2007.

In late May 2005, we entered into accelerated share repurchase agreements with three investment banks

whereby we repurchased and retired approximately 12.9 million shares of our common stock for an aggregate

of $416.5 million cash or an initial average price of $32.34 per share. We funded this purchase using the

proceeds received from the settlement of the equity units mentioned in Note 5 and from cash on hand. As part

of the accelerated share repurchase transactions, we simultaneously entered into forward contracts with the

investment banks whereby the investment banks purchased an aggregate of 12.9 million shares of our common

stock during the term of the contracts. At the end of the repurchase period, we paid an aggregate of

approximately $21.0 million cash to the investment banks to compensate them for the difference between their

weighted average purchase price during the repurchase period and the initial average price. We reflected such

settlement amount as an adjustment to paid-in capital.

During 2006, our stocldiolders' equity was reduced by approximately $97.9 million upon the adoption of

SFAS 158 and increased approximately $9.7 million upon the application of SAB 108. See Note t for

additional information.

Under CenturyTel's Articles of Incorporation each share of common stock beneficially owned

continuously by the same person since May 30, 1987 generally entitles the holder thereof to ten votes per share.

All other shares entitle the holder to one vote per share. At December 31, 2007, the holders of 3.6 million

shares of common stock or 26% of our total voting power were entitled to ten votes per share.

S

Preferred stock - As of December 31, 2007. we had 2.0 million shares of authorized preferred stock, $25 par

value per share. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, there were 279.000 and 298,000 shares, respectively, of

outstanding convertible preferred stock. Holders of outstanding CenturyTel preferred stock are entitled to
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receive cumulative dividends, receivc preferential distributions equal to $25 per share plus unpaid dividends

upon CentutyTel's liquidation and vote as a single class with the holders of common stock.

Shareholdcrs'Rights Plan - On November I. 2006. our 1996 rights agreement and each preference share

purchase right issued thereunder lapsed in accordance with its stated terms.

10 POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS

We sponsor health care plans which use a December 31 measurement date that provide postretirement

benefits to all qualified retired employees. Over the past few years. in connection with negotiating certain

union contracts, we amended certain retiree contribution and retirement eligibility provisions of our plan.

The following is a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances for the benefit obligation and the

plan assets.

December 3 I, 2007 2006 2005

Dollars in thousands

Change in benefit obligation

Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 357.417 353,942 305.720

Service cost 6,923 6,982 6,289

Interest cost 20,133 18,980 16,718

Participant contributions 2.016 1,583 1,637

Plan amendments 4.552 7,978 23,289

Acquisition 2.277 - -

Direct subsidy receipts 1,299 717 -

Actuarial gain loss 60,312 319 16.391

Benefitspaid 18.568 17.128 16,102

Benefit obligation at end of year S 306.633 357.417 353.942

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year S 30,080 29,545 29.570

Return on plan assets 1,916 3,280 1,440

Employer contributions 12,880 12,800 13,000

Participant contributions 2,016 1,583 1,637

Benefits paid 18.568 17.128 16.102

Fair value of nlan assets at end of year S 28.324 - 30.080 29.545

Nct periodic postretiremcnt benefit cost tör 2007, 2006 and 2005 included the following componenis;

Year ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005

Dollars in thousands

Service cost $ 6,923 6,982 6,289

Interest cost 20,133 18,980 16,718

Ixpected return on plan assets 2.482 2,437 2.440

Amortization of unrecognized actuarial loss 3,595 3.719 2,916

Amortization of unrecognized prior service credit 2,020 855 1.876

Nstperiodic postretirement benefit cost S 26.149 26.389 21.607

91



The following table sets forth the amounts recognized as liabilities for postretirement benefits at

December 31. 2007. 2006 and 2005.

December 31. 2007 2006 2105

Dollars in thousands

Benefit obligation S 306,633 357,417 353,942

Fair value of plan assets 28,324 30,080 29,545

Unamortized prior service credit - - 1.726

Unrcconized net actuarial loss - - 82.660

Accrued benefit cost $ 278.309 327.337 243.463

S

In accordance with SFAS 158, the unamortized prior service credit $11.4 million as of December31,

2007 and unrecognized net actuarial loss $15.1 million as of December 31, 2007 components have been

reflected as a $2.8 million after-tax increase to accumulated othcr comprehensive loss within stockholders'

equity. The estimated amount of amortization expense income of the above unrecognized items that will be

amortized from accumulated other comprehensive loss and reflected as a component of net periodic pension

cost during 2008 is $2.6 million for the prior service credit.

Assumptions used in accounting for postretirement benefits as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 were:

2007 2006

Determination of benefit obligation

Discount rate 6.50% 5.75

Healthcare cost increase trend rates Medical/Prescription Drug

Following year 7.0%l0.0% 8.0/11.0

Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed to decline the

ultimate cost trend rate 5.0%/5.0% 5.0/5.0

Year that the rate reaches the ultimate cost trend rate 2010/2013 20 10/2013

Determination of benefit cost

Discount rate 5.75% 5.50

Expected return on plan assets 8.25% 8.25

We employ a total return investment approach whereby a mix of equities and fixed income investments

are used to maximize the long-term return of plan assets for a prudent level of risk. The intent of this strategy is

to minimize plan expenses by outperforming plan liabilities over the long term. Risk tolerance is established

through careful consideration of plan liabilities, plan funded status and corporate financial condition. We

measure and monitor investment risk on an ongoing basis through annual liability measurements, periodic asset

studies and periodic portfolio reviews.

Our postretirement benefit plan weighted-average asset allocations at December31, 2007 and 2006 by

asset category are as follows:

2007 2006

Equity securities 55.8% 60.1

Debt securities 268 27.9

Other 17.4 12.0

Total -- 1000% -- UMLO

S

S

S

S

S

S

S
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In determining the expected return on plan assets, we study historical markets and apply the widely

accepted capital market principle that assets with higher volatility and risk generate a greater return over the

long term. We evaluate current market factors such as inflation and interest rates before determining long-term

capital market assumptions. We also review peer data and historical returns to check for reasonableness.

Assumed health care cost trends have a significant effect on the amounts reported for postretirement

benefit plans. A one-percentage-point change in assumed health care cost rates would have the following

effects:

I-Percentage I-Percentage

Point lncreise Point Decrease

Dollars in thousands

Effect on annual total of service and interest cost components S 279 339

Effect on postrctiremcnt benefit obligation 5 3,943 4.791

We expect to contribute approximately $16.7 million to our postretircmcnt benefit plan in 200%.

Our estimated future projected benefit payments under our postretirement benefit plan are as follows:

Year

Before Medicare

Subsidy

Medicare

Subsidy

Dollars in thousands

Net of

Medicare Subsidy

2008 $ 18.163 1,419 16,744

2009 5 19,973 1,624 18,349

2010 $ 22,043 1,833 20,210

2011 5 23,916 2,059 21,857

2012 S 24,968 2,300 22.668

2013-2017 5 136,357 8,236 12S,121
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II DEFINED BENEFIT AND OTHER RETIREMENT PLANS

S

We sponsor defined benefit pension plans for substantially all employees. At December 31, 2007, we also

sponsored a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan to provide certain officers with supplemental retirement. -

death and disability benefits. We use a December 31 measurement date for all our plans.

The following is a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances for the aggregate benefit obligation

and the plan assets for our above-referenced defined benefit plans.

December 31, 2007 2006 2005

Dollars in thousands

Change in benefit obligation

Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 474,302 460,599 418,630

Service cost 16,43! 17,679 15,332

Interest Cost 28,180 25,935 23,992

Plan amendments 61 3.827 31

Acquisition 15,266 - -

Actuarial gain loss 16,153 6.789 28,016

Settlements 410 13.232 -

Benefitspaid 48.240 19,641 25.402

Benefit ob1iation at end of year S 469.437 474.302 460.599-

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 452,293 407,367 363,981

Return on plan assets 41.537 46,297 25,453

Acquisition 12.502 - -

Employercontributions 1.516 31,502 43,335

Benefits paid 48,6501 32.8731 25.402

Fair value of nlan assets at end of year -- S 459.198 452.293 407 367-- -

Net periodic pension expense for 2007, 2006 and 2005 included the following components:

Year ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005

Dollars in thousands

Service cost S 16.431 17,679 15,332

Interest cost 28,180 25,935 23,992

Expected retum on plan assets 36.780 32,706 t29,225

Settlements 410 3,344 -

Recognized net losses 7.367 9,670 6.328

Net amortization and deferral 131 19 289

Neiriodiejensiomexnse S 15.477 23.941 16.716

e

w

`S
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The following table sets forth the combined plans' fimded status and amounts recognized in our

consolidated balance sheet at December 31,2007, 2006 and 2005.

DecembeF 31. 2007 2006 2005

Doliars in thousands

Benefit obligation $ 469,437 474.302 460,599

Fair value of plan assets 459,198 452,293 407.367

Unrecognized transition asset - - 396

Unamortized prior service cost - - 3.109

Unrecognized net actuarial loss - - 123.879

Net amount recognized -- S 10.239 22.009L 73.360

In accordance with SFAS 158, thc unamortized prior service credit $941,000 as of December31, 2007

and unrecognized net actuarial loss $75.4 million as of December 31, 2007 components have been reflected as

a $74.4 million net reduction $45.9 million after-tax to accumulated other comprehensive loss within

stockholders' equity. The estimated amount of amortization expense income of the above unrecognized

amounts that will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive loss and reflected as a component of net

periodic pension cost for 2008 are i $65,000 for the prior service cost and ii $3.3 million for the net actuarial

loss.

Amounts recognized on the balance sheet consist of

December 3 I. 2007 2006

Dollars in thousands

Pension asset reflected in Other Assets* $ 28,536 16.187

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities* 1,479 1.412

Other deferred credits* 37.2961 36,784

Ne amount recognized S 10.2391 122.009
* In accordance with SFAS 158, those plans that are overfunded are reflected as assets: those plans that are

underfunded are reflected as liabilities.

Our aggregate accumulated benefit obligation as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 was $410.6 million and

$407.2 million, respectively.
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Assumptions used in accounting for pension plans as of December 31. 2007 and 2006 were:

2007 2006

Determination of benetit obligation

Discount rate 6.30% 5.80

Wcighted average rate of compensation increase 4.0% 4.0

Determination of benefit cost

Discount rate 5,80% 5.50

Weighted average rate of compensation increase 4.0% 4.0

Expected return on plan assets 8.25% 8.25

We employ a total return investment approach whereby a mix of equities and fixed income investments

arc used to maximize the long-term return of plan assets for a prudent level of risk. The intent of this strategy is

to minimize plan expenses by outperforming plan liabilities over the long term. Risk tolerance is established

through careful consideration of plan liabilities, plan funded status and corporate financial condition. We

measure and monitor investment risk on an ongoing basis through annual liability measurements, periodic asset

studies and periodic portfolio reviews.

S

Our pension plans weighted-average asset allocations at December 31, 2007 and 2006 by asset category

are as follows:

2007 2006

Equity securities 70.8% 72.2

Debt securities 27.2 25.8

Other 2.0 2.0

Tntaj - 100.0% 100.0

In determining the expected return on plan assets, we study historical markets and apply the widely-

accepted capital market principle that assets with higher volatility and risk generate a greater return over the

long term. We evaluate current market factors such as inflation and intercst rates before determining long-term

capital market assumptions. We also review peer data and historical returns to check for reasonableness.

The amount of the 2008 contribution will be determined based on a number of factors, including the

results of the 2008 actuarial valuation report. At this time, the amount of the 2008 contribution is not known.

Our estimated future projected benefit payments under our defined benefit pension plans are as follows:

2008 -$32.5 million; 2009 -$33.4 million: 2010 -$34.9 million: 2011 -$36.0 million; 2012 -$37.7 million;

and 2013-2017 -$207.8 million.

Through December 31, 2006, we also sponsored an Employee Stock Ownership Plan `ESOP" which covers

most employees with one year of service and is funded by our contributions determined annually by the Board of'

Directors. Our expense related to the ESOP during 2006 and 2005 was $7.9 million and $7.3 million, respectively.

Our contribution to the ESOP was discontinued after 2006.
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We also sponsor qualified profit sharing plans pursuant to Section 40 1k of the internal Revenue Code

the "40 1k Plans" which are available to substantially all employees. Our matching contributions to the

401k Plans were $10.6 million in 2007, $8.6 million in 2006 and $8.5 million in 2005.

12 INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense included in the Consolidated Statements of income for thc years ended December 31,

2007. 2006 and 2005 was as follows:

Year endcd December 31. 2007 2006 2005

Dollars in thousands

Federal

Current $ 192,424 146,201 139,836

Deferred 2.220 37,687 35,499

State

Current 7,130 25,236 6.075

Deferred 1.202 11.998 34.01!

22J÷ fl29 I

Income tax expense was allocated as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005

Dollars in thousands

Income tax expense in the consolidated statements of income $ 200.572 221,122 203,29!

Stockholders' equity:

Compensation expense for tax purposes

in excess of amounts recognized for

financial reporting purposes 6,427 12,034 6.261

Tax effect of the change in accumulated other

comprehensive income loss 14.985 63.837 801

The following is a reconciliation from the statutory federal income tax rate to our effective income tax

rate:

Year ended December 31. 2007 2006 2005

Percentage of pre-tax income

Statutory federal income tax rate 3S0' 35.0 35.0

State income taxes, net of federal income tax benefit 2.8 4.! 3.4

Release of previous!y unrecognized tax benefits 5.3 - -

Other, net 0.1 1.7 .6

Effective income tax rate 32.4% 37.4 17.8
a

In 2007. we recognized a net after-tax benefit of approximately $32.7 million which includes related

interest and is net of federal benefit related to the re!easc of previously unrecognized tax benefits. See below

for additional information. Income tax expense was reduced by approximately $6.4 million in 2006 due to the

resolution of various income tax audit issues.
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The tax effects of temporary differences that gave rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and

deferred tax liabilities at December 31. 2007 and 2006 were as follows:

December 31, 2007 2006

Dollars in thousands

Deferred tax assets

Postretirement and pension benefit costs $ 109,182 131.890

Net state operating loss earryforwards 31,646 61,875

Other employee benefits 32,166 24.907

Other 49,841 45,628

Gross deferred tax assets 222,835 264,300

Less valuation allowance 30,907 61.049

203,251Net deferred tax assets

-

19 .928

Deferred tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipment, primarily due to

depreciation differences 373.181 334.52 I

Goodwill and other intangible assets 604,809 503,126

Other 12,900 27,010

Gross deferred tax liabilities 990.890 8M,657

661.406Net deferred tax liabiliw S 798.962

Of the $799.0 million net deferred tax liability as of December 31, 2007, approximately $8 10.6 million is

reflected as a net long-term liability in "Other deferred credits" and approximately $11.6 million is reflected

as a net current deferred tax asset in "Other current assets".

We establish valuation allowances when necessary to reduce the deferred tax assets to amounts we expect

to realize. As of December 3!. 2007, we had available tax benefits associated with net state operating loss

carryforwards, which expire through 2027. of $31.6 million. The ultimate realization of the benefits of the

earrylbrwards is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those

temporary differences become deductible. We consider our scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities,

projected future taxable income, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. As a result of such

assessment, we reserved $30.9 million through the valuation allowance as of December 31, 2007 as it is more

likely than not that this amount of net operating loss carryforwards will not be utilized prior to expiration.

In June 2006. the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Interpretation No. 48, "Accounting for

Uncertainty in Income Taxes" "FLN 48", which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes

recognized in financial statements. FIN 48 required us, effective January I. 2007, to recognize and measure tax

benefits taken or expected to be taken in a tax return and disclose uncertainties in income tax positions.

Upon the initial adoption of FIN 48, we recorded a cumulative effect adjustment to retained earnings as of

January 1,2007 which increased retained earnings by approximately $478,000 as of such date related to certain

previously unrecognized tax benefits that did not meet the criteria for liability recognition upon the adoption of FIN

48.

S
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During 2007. primarily as a result of certain issues being effectively settled through examination and the

lapse of statute of limitations, our tax expense was reduced approximately $32.7 million including related interest

and net of federal benefit upon the release of amounts that were previously reflected as a liability for unrecognized

tax benefits.

The following table reflects the activity of our gross unrecognized tax benefits excluding both interest and

any related federal benefit during 2007 amounts expressed in thousands.

Unrecognized tax benefits at January 1.2007 $ 55,905

Increase in tax positions taken in the current year 500

Decrease due to the reversal of tax positions taken in a prior year 19,617

Decrease from the lapse of statute of limitations 2.353

Decrease from settlements paid 8.653

Increase from unrecognized tax benefits of acquired company 8.047

tJnrccounized tax benefits at December 31 20Sf] _ _1_ _3S22

Of the above ending balance of $33.8 million, approximately $21.5 million is included as a component of

"Deferred credits and other liabilities" and the remainder is included in "Accrued income taxes". If we were to

prevail on all unrecognized tax benefits recorded on our balance sheet, approximately $26.! million including

interest and net of federal benefit would benefit the effective tax rate.

Our policy is to reflect accrued interest associated with unrecognized tax benefits as income tax. We had

accrued interest presented before related tax benefits of approximately $20.7 million as of January 1.2007 and

$12.9 million as of December 31,2007.

We file income tax returns, including returns for our subsidiaries, with federal, state and local jurisdictions.

Our uncertain income tax positions are related to tax years that are currently under or remain subject to

examination by the relevant taxing authorities. Our open income tax years by majorjurisdiction are as follows.

Jurisdiction Open tax years

Federal 1998-current

State

Georgia 2002-current

Louisiana 2003-current

Oregon 2001-current

Wisconsin 2001-current

Other states 2002-current

Additionally, it is possible that certain jurisdictions in which we do not believe we have an income tax tiling

responsibility, and accordingly did not file a return, may attempt to assess a liability. Since the period for assessing

additional liability typically begins upon the filing ofa return, it is possible that certain jurisdictions could assess

tax for years prior to the open tax years disclosed above.
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Based on i the potential outcomes of these ongoing examinations, ii the expiration of statute of limitations

for specific jurisdictions, iii the negotiated settlement of certain disputed issues, or iv a jurisdiction's

administrative practices, it is reasonably possible that the related unrecognized tax benefits for tax positions

previously taken may decrease by up to $14 million within the next 12 months. The actual amount of such

decrease, if any, will depend on several future developments and events, many of which are outside our control.

13 EARNINGS PER SHARE

In July 2007, we called for redemption on August 14. 2007 all of our $165 million aggregate principal

amount 4,75% convertible senior debentures. Series K, due 2132. In accordance with the indenture, holders could

elect to convert their debentures into shares of CenturyTel common stock at a conversion pricc of $40,455 per

share prior to August 10, 2007. In lieu of cash redemption, holders of approximately $149.6 million aggregate

principal amount of the debentures elected to convert their holdings into approximately 3.7 million shares of

CenturyTel common stock.

In connection with calculating our diluted earnings per share for our accelerated share repurchase program

discussed in Note 9, we assumed the accelerated share repurchase market price adjustment would be settled

The following is a reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted earnings per

share computations:

e

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

Year ended December 3 I, 2007 2006 2005

Dollars, except per share

amounts, and shares in thousands

Income Numerator:

Net income S 418,370 370,027 334,479

Dividends applicable to preferred stock 368 380 396

Net income applicable to common stock for

computing basic eamings per share 418,002 369,647 334,083

Interest on convertible debentures, net of tax 2,832 4,828 4,875

Dividends applicable to preferred stock 368 380 396

Net income as adjusted for purposes of computing

diluted eamin2s ocr share S 4I.202 374.855 - 339.354

Shares Denominator:

Weighted average number of shares:

Outstanding during period 110.1 83 117,363 131,044

Nonvested restricted stock 823 692 203

Weighted average number of shares outstanding during

period for computing basic eamings per share 109,360 116,671 130,841

Incremental common shares attributable to

dilutive securities:

Shares issuable under convertible securities 2,951 4,493 4,511

Shares issuable upon settlement of accelerated share

repurchase agreemenis - 365 378

Shares issuable under incentive compensation plans 783 700 357

Number of shares as adjusted for purposes of

comnutine diluted earnints ocr share 113.094 122.229 136.087

Basic earnines ncr share -

flilutcthearninns ncr share

S 3.82 3 17

S 3.72 3.07

-

2.49
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through our issuance of additional shares of common stock, which was allowed at our discretion in the

agreement. Accordingly, the estimated shares issuable based on the fair value of the forward contract was

included in the weighted average shares outstanding for the computation of diluted earnings per share.

The weighted average number of shares of common stock subject to issuance under outstanding options

that were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share because the exercise price of the option

was greater than the average market price of the common stock was 792,000 for 2007, 1.0 million for 2006 and

1.8 million for 2005.

14 STOCK COMPENSATION PROGRAMS

Effective January 1,2006, we adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.

123 Revised 2004, "Share-Based Payment" "SFAS I 23R", SFAS 123R requires us to measure our cost of

awarding employees with equity instruments based upon the fair value of the award on the grant date. Such cost

will be recognized as compensation expense over the period during which the employee is required to provide

service in exchange for the award. Compensation cost is also recognized over the applicable remaining vesting

period for any outstanding options that were not fully vested as of January 1, 2006. We did not have any unvested

outstanding options as of January 1, 2006 since our Board of Directors accelerated the vesting of all unvested

options effective as of December 31, 2005, as described below. We elected the modified prospective transition

method as permitted by SFAS 123R accordingly, we did not restate prior period results.

We currently maintain programs which allow the Board of Directors, through its Compensation Committee,

to grant incentives to certain employees and our outside directors in any one or a combination of several forms,

including incentive and non-qualified stock options; stock appreciation rights: restricted stock: and performance

shares. As of December 3!, 2007, we had reserved approximately 6.2 million shares of common stock which may

be issued in connection with awards under our current incentive programs. We also offer an Employee Stock

Purchase Plan whereby employees can purchase our common stock at a 15% discount based on the lower of the

beginning or ending stock price during recurring six-month periods stipulated in such program.

As of December 31. 2005. we had approximately 6.0 million options outstanding from prior grants, all of

which were issued with exercise prices either equal to or exceeding the then-current niarket price. All of these

options were exercisable as a result of actions taken by our Board of Directors in December 2005 to accelerate the

vesting of all unvested options outstanding, effective as of December 31, 2005. in order to eliminate tIle

recognition of compensation expense which otherwise would have been required upon the effectiveness of SFAS

123R.

During 2007 we granted 983,920 stock options with exercise prices at market value. All of these options

expire ten years after the date of grant and have a three-year vesting period. The weighted average fair value of

each option was estimated as of the date of grant to be $14.57 using a Black-Scholes option pricing model using
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the following assumptions: dividend yield - .6%; expected volatility - 28% executive officers and 25% all

other employees; weighted average risk free interest rate - 4.6% rates ranged from 3.5% to 5.1%: and

expected term - 6.5 years executive officers and 4.5 years all other employees.

During 2006 we granted 1,007,175 stock options with exercise prices at market value. The weighted

average fair value of each of the 2006 options was estimated as of the date of grant to be $12.75 using an

option-pricing model with the following assumptions: dividend yield - .7%; expected volatility - 30%; weighted

average risk-free interest rate - 4.65% rates ranged from 4.28% to 5.22%; and expected option life - 7 years

executive officers and 5 years all other employees.

During 2005 we granted 1.015.025 stock options with exercise prices at market value. The weighted

average fair value of each of the 2005 options was estimated as of the date of grant to be $12.68 using an

option-pricing model with the following assumptions: dividend yield - .7%; expected volatility - 30%; weighted

average risk-free interest rate -4.2%; and expected option life - seven years.

The expected volatility was based on the historical volatility of our common stock over the 6.5- and 4.5-

year terms mentioned above. The expected term was determined based on the historical exercise and forfeiture

rates for similar grants.

Stock option transactions during 2007. 2006 and 2005 were as follows:

Remaining Aggregate

Number Average contractual intrinsic

of options price term tin years value

Outstanding December31, 2004 6,713,558 $ 28.79

Granted 1,015,025 25.04

Exercised 1,664,625 33.69

Forfeited/Cancelled 68.500 31.40

Outstanding December 31, 2005 5.995,458 $ 30.63

Granted 1.007.175 35.98

Exercised 3.047.918 29.15

Forfeited/Cancelled 58,916 32.54

Outstanding December 31. 2006 3,895,799 $ 33.14

Granted 983.920 45.76

Exercised 1.204.164 32.15

Forfeited/Cancelled 43,350 40.72

Outstanding December 31, 2007 3.632205 $ 36.80 6.8 $16,926,000

Exercisable December 31, 2007 $ 32.98 5.3 $17,752,000

In addition, during 2007, we issued 288,896 shares of restricted stock to certain employees and our outside -

directors at a weighted-average price of $45.89 per share. During 2006, we issued 293,943 shares of restricted

stock to certain employees and our outside directors at a weighted-average price of $36.02 per share. During 2005,

we issued 286,123 shares of restricted stock at a weighted-average price of $33.47 per share. Such restricted stock

vests over a five-year period for employees and a three-year period for outside directors. Nonvested restricted

stock transactions during 2007 were as follows:

`S

`S
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Number Average grant

of shares date fair value

Nonvested at January 1,2007 712,088 $ 32.84

Granted 288,896 45.89

Vested 142,821 3513

Forfeited 11.283 37.10

Nonvested at December 31.2007 $ 36.85

The total compensation cost for share-based payment arrangements in 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $20.0

million. $11.9 million and $4.7 million, respectively. We recognized a tax benefit related to such arrangements of

approximalely $7.5 million in 2007, $4.5 million in 2006 and SI .8 million in 2005. As of December 31.2007,

there was $29.9 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to the share-based payment arrangements,

which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.8 years.

We received net cash proceeds of $38.7 million during 2007 in connection with option exercises. The total

intrinsic value of options exercised the amount by which the market price of the stock on the date of exercise

exceeded the market price of the stock on the date of grant was $17.2 million during 2007, $31.0 million during

2006 and $16.3 million during 2005. The excess tax benefit realized from stock options exercised and restricted

stock released during 2007 was $6.4 million. The total fair value of restricted stock that vested during 2007, 2006,

and 2005 was $6.4 million, $2.6 million, and $208,000, respectively.

Prior to January 1,2006, we accounted for stock compensation plans using the intrinsic value method in

accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25. "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees." as

allowed by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123. "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation"

"SFAS 123". Options havc been granted at a price either equal to or exceeding the then-current market price.

Accordingly, we did not recognize compensation cost in connection with issuing stock options prior to January I.

2006. If compensation cost for our options had been determined consistent with SFAS 123R, we would have

recognized stock-based compensation expense for 2005 of approximately $12.5 million after-tax and our net

income, basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share for 2005 would have been $322.0 million, $2.46

and $2.40, respectively, all presented on a pro forma basis, as compared to actual net income, basic eamings per

share and diluted earnings per share of $334.5 million, $2.55 and $2.49, respectively.
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IS GAIN ON ASSET DISPOSITIONS

In the third quarter of 2007, we recorded a pre-tax gain of approximately $10.4 million related to the sale

of our interest in a real estate partnership. In April 2006, upon dissolution of the Rural Telephone Bank

"RIB", we received $122.8 million in cash for redemption of our investment in stock of the RIB and

recorded a pre-tax gain of approximately $117.8 million in the second quarter of 2006 related to this

transaction. Upon final distribution of all finds related to the RIB dissolution in November 2007. we received

an additional $5.2 million cash and recorded a pre-tax gain of such amount. Such gains are included in "Other

income expense" on our Consolidated Statements of Income.

16 SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW AND OTHER DISCLOSURES

The amount of interest actually paid, net of amounts capitalized of $1.3 million, $1.9 million, and $2.8

million during 2007, 2006 and 2005. respectively, was $205.2 million, $191.9 million, and $194.8 million

during 2007, 2006 and 2005. respectively. Income taxes paid were $185.3 million in 2007, $212.4 million in

2006, and $88.8 million in 2005. Income tax refunds totaled S 1.1 million in 2007. 53.0 million in 2006, and

$4.9 million in 2005.

We have consummated the acquisitions of various operations, along with certain other assets, during the -

three years ended December 31, 2007. In connection with these acquisitions, the following assets were e

acquired and liabilities assumed:

See Note 2 for additional inlbrmation related to our acquisition of Madison River in 2007.

In June 2006. the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued EIIF 06-3, "How Taxes Collected From

Customers and Remitted to Governmental Authorities Should be Presented in the Income Statement" "EIIF

06-3", which requires disclosure of the accounting policy for any tax assessed by a governmental authority that

is directly imposed on a revenue-producing transaction. We adopted the disclosure requirements of EIIF 06-3

effective January I, 2007.

Year ended December 31. 2007 2006 2005

Dollars in thousands

Property, plant and equipment, net S 208,317 - 66.450

Goodwill 579.780 - -

Long-term debt, deferred credits and other liabilities 654,694 - -

Other assets and liabilities, excluding

cash and cash equivaLents 173.402 5.222 9,003
Decrease in cash due to acquisitions -- S 306.805 5.222 75.453
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We collect various taxes from our customers and subsequently remit such funds to governmental

authorities. Substantially all of these taxes are recorded through the balance sheet. We are required to

contribute to several universal service fund programs and generally include a surcharge amount on our

customers' bills which is designed to recover our contribution costs. Such amounts are reflected on a gross

basis in our statement of income included in both operating revenues and expenses and aggregated

approximately $41 million for 2007, $40 million for 2006 and $37 million for 2005.

17 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair

value

thousandsi

I Fair value was estimated by discounting the scheduled payment streams to present value based upon

rates currentLy available to us for similar debt.

2 Fair value was estimated by us to approximate carrying value or is based on current market information.

We believe the carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable. short-temi debt.

accounts payable and accrued expenses approximales the fair value due to the short maturity of these

instruments and have not been reflected in the above table.

The following table presents the carrying amounts and estimated fair values of certain of our financial

instruments at December31, 2007 and 2006.

Carrying

Amount

Dollars in

December 31, 2007

Financial assets

Interest rate swaps $ 3.048 3.048 2

Other $ 106,099 110.235 2

Financial liabilities

Long-term debt including current maturities $ 3.014,255 2,975,707 1

Interest rate swaps $ 834 834 2

Other $ 57,637 57,637 2

December 3 I. 2006

$ 110.134 Ll0,134 2Financialassets

Financial liabilities

Long-term debt including current maturities $ 2.567.864 2,522.347 1

Interest rate swaps $ 20,593 20,593 2

Other S 51,614 51,614 2
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18 BUSINESS SEGMENTS

We are an integrated communications company engaged primarily in providing an array of

communications services to our customers, including local exchange, long distance, Internet access and

broadband services. Wc strive to maintain our customer relationships by, among other things, bundling our

service offerings to provide our customers with a complete offering of integrated communications services. As

a rcsult of increased bundling of our local exchange and long distance service offerings, beginning in 2006, we

have combined the revenues of such offerings into a category entitled "Voice". Beginning in 2007, revenues

from voice mail services previously retlected in "Other" revenues were reclassified to "Voice" revenues. Prior

periods have been restated to insure comparability.

Our operating revenues for our products and services include the following components:

Year ended December 31, 2007 2006 2005

Dollars in thousands

Voice $ 889,960 871,767 902,510

Network access 941,506 878,702 959,838

Data 460.755 351,495 318,770

Fiber transport and CLEC 159,317 149,088 115,454

Other 204.703 196,678 182,680

Total oneratine revenues S 2.656.241 2.447.730 2.479.252
S

For a description of each of the sources of revenues, see "Managements Discussion and Analysis of 5

Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Operating Revenues" elsewhere in this report.

lnterexchange carriers and other accounts receivable on the balance sheets arc primarily amounts due from

various long distance carriers, principally AT&T, and several large local exchange operating companies.

S

19 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Construction expenditures and investments in vehicles, buildings and equipment during 2008 arc

estimaled to be $300 million. We generally do not enter into firm, committed contracts for such activities.

In Barbrasue Beattie and James Sovis, on behalf of themselves and all others similarly situated. v.

CenturvTel. Inc., tiled on October 28. 2002. in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Michigan

Case No. 02-10277. the plaintiffs allege that we unjustly and unreasonably billed customers for inside wire

maintenance services, and seek unspecified monetary damages and injunctive relief under various legal theories on

behalf of a purported class of over two million customers in our telephone markets. On March 10. 2006, the Court

certified a class of plaintiffi and issued a ruling that the billing descriptions we used for these services during an

approximately 18-month period between October 2000 and May 2002 were legally insufficient. Our appeal of this

class certification decision was denied. Our preliminary analysis indicates that we billed less than $10 million for

inside wire maintenance services under the billing descriptions and time periods specified in the District Court
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ruling described above. Should other billing descriptions be determined to be inadequate or if claims are allowed

for additional time periods, the amount of our potential exposure could increase significantly. The Court's order

does not specify the award of damages, the scope and amounts of which, if any, remain subject to additional fact-

finding and resolution of what we believe are valid defenses to plaintiff's claims. Accordingly, we cannot

reasonably estimate the amount or range of possible loss at this time. However, considering the one-time nature of

any adverse result, we do not believe that the ultimate outcome of this litigation will have a material adverse effect

on our financial position or on-going results of operations.

From time to time, we are involved in other proceedings incidental to our business, including

administrative hearings of state public utility commissions relating primarily to rate making, actions relating to

employec claims, occasional grievance hearings before labor regulatory agencies and miscellaneous third party

tort actions. The outcome of these other proceedings is not predictable. However, we do not believe that the

ultimate resolution of these other proceedings. after considering available insurance coverage, will have a

material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

20 SUBSEQUENT EVENT

In January 2008. we terminated all of our existing "fixed to variable" interest rate swaps associated with the

full S500 million principal amount of our Series L senior notes, due 2012. In connection with the termination of

these derivatives, we received an aggregate of approximately $25.6 million, which will he amortized as a reduction

of interest expense through 2012.

In addition, in January 2008 we also terminated certain othcr derivatives that were not deemed to be

effective hedges. Upon the termination of these derivatives, we paid an aggregate of approximately S4.9 million.

We expect to record a 53.4 million pre-tax charge in the first quarter of 2008 related to the settlement of these

dcrivaiives.
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CENTURYTEL, NC.

Consolidated Quarterly Income Statement Information

Unaudited

in

Second Third

Quarter Quarter

thousands, except per share

unaudited

Operating revenues $ 595.282 606.413 657,085 620,472

Operating income $ 176.860 185,882 201,242 172,419

Netincome 8 79,616 85,118 91,411 78,334

Basic earnings per share 8 .60 .65 .70 .60

Diluted earnings per share $ .59 .64 .68 .59

The results of operations of the Madison River properties are retleeted in the above table subsequent to the

April 30, 2007 acquisition date. In second quarter 2007, we recorded $49 million of revenues upon the

settlement of a dispute with a carrier. In third quarter 2007, we recognized $42.2 million of revenues upon the

expiration of a regulatory monitoring period. In fourth quarter 2007, we recognized a net benefit of

approximately $32.7 million after-tax related to the release of previously unrecognized tax benefits. In fourth

quarter 2007, we recorded a pre-tax charge of approximately $16.6 million related to the impairment of certain

of our CLEC assets.

The first, second and third quarters of 2006 have been adjusted to reflect the application of SAB 108 see

Note I for additional information.

The fourth quarter of 2006 included an $11.7 million pre-tax charge related to the impairment of certain

non-operaling investments. The second quarter of 2006 included a $117.8 million pre-tax gain recorded upon

the redemption of Rural Telephone Bank stock and a $6.4 million net tax benefit due to the resolution of various

income tax audit issues.

First

quarter

Dollars

Fourth

Quarter

amounts

2007

Operating revenues

Operating income

Net income

Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

$ 600.855

$ 168,083

$ 77,870

$ .70

$ .68

689.991

231.836

112,265

I .03

1.00

708,833

224,185

113,202

1.04

1.01

656.562

168.974

115.033

1.05

1.04

2006

Operating revenues

Operating income

Net income

Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

$ 611.291

$ 157.924

$ 69.260

$ .57

$ .55

608,907

164,993

152,210

1.32

1.26

619,837

168,942

76,324

.66

.64

607,695

173.679

72.233

.63

.62

2005

S

`a

S

S

S

S

S

S

S
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The fourth quarter of 2005 included a $6.3 million pre-tax charge related to the impairment of a non-

operating investment. the third quarter of 2005 included the following amounts presented on a pre-tax basis:

i the recognition of $35.9 million of revenue as the settlement period related to the 200112002 monitoring

period lapsed; ii $5.8 million of expenses related to Iturricanes Katrina and Rita; iii a $9.9 million charge

related to the impairment of a non-operating investment; and iv a $3.5 million gain on the sale of a separate

non-operating investment.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting

and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Lsaluat,on ofDisclosure ControLs and Procedures. We maintain disclosure controls and procedures designed to

provide reasonable assurances that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports we file under the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is timely recorded, processed, summarized and reported as required. Our Chief

Executive Officer. Glen F. Post, Ill, and our Chief Financial Officer, R. Stewart Ewing, Jr.. have evaluated our

disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2007. Based on the evaluation, Messrs. Post and Ewing

concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures have been effective in providing reasonable assurance that

they have been timely alerted of material information required to be filed in this annual report. Since the date of

Messrs. Post's and Ewings most recent evaluation, there have been no significant changes in our internal controls

or in other factors that could significantly affect these controls. The design of any system of controls is based in

part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events and contingencies, and there can he no

assurance that any design will succeed in achieving our stated goals. Because of the inherent limitations in any

control system, you should be aware that misstatements due to error or fraud could occur and not be detected.

Reports on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. We incorporate by reference into this Item 9A the reports

appearing at the forefront of Item 8. "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data,

Item 9B. Other Information

In late February 2008, the Compensation Committee of the Board granted equity awards and took other

related actions, including establishing for senior management annual bonus targets for 2008 based upon attaining

certain specified levels of operating cash flow and end-user revenues.

In late February 2008. our board of directors approved certain actions related to our Supplemental Executive

Retirement Plan, including i the freezing of future benefit accruals effective February 29, 2008, ii amending the
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plan to permit participants to receive in 2009 a lump sum distribution of the present value of their accrued plan

benefits and iii crediting each active plan participant with three additional years of age and service and each

inactive plan participani with three additional years of age.
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PART m

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The name, age and offices held by each of our executive officers are shown below. Each of the executive

officers listed below serves at the pleasure of the Board of Directors.

Name Offices held with CenturyTel

Glen F. Post, Ill Chairman of the Board of Directors

and ChieF Executive Officer

Karen A. Puckett 47 President and Chief Operating Officer

It. Stewart Ewing. Jr. 56 Executive Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer

David D. Cole 50 Senior Vice President -

Operations Support

Stacey W. Goff 42 Senior Vice President, General Counsel

and Secretary

Michael Maslowski 60 Senior Vice President and

Chief Information Officer

Each of our executive officers has served as an officer of CenturyTel and one or more of its subsidiaries in

varying capacities for more than the past five years.

in August 2003, Mr. Goff was promoted to Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary. He

previously served as Vice President and Assistant General Counsel from 2000 to July 2003 and as Director

Corporate Legal from 1998 to 2000.

The balance of the information required by Item 10 is incorporated by reference to our definitive proxy

statement relating to our 2008 annual meeting of stockholders the "Proxy Statement", which Proxy Statement

will be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A within the first 120 days of 2008.

111



Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by Item II is incorporated by reference to the Proxy Statement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The following table provides information about shares of CenturyTel common stock authorized for

issuance under our existing equity compensation plans as of December 31, 2007.

c

N umber of securities

remaining available for

future issuance under

plans excluding

securities reflected in

column a

S

Equity compensation

plans approved by

security holders

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

approved by shareholders

Equity compensation

plans not approved by

security holders

Thc balance of the information required by Item 12 is incorporated by reference to the Proxy Statement.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by Item 13 is incorporated by rcfercncc to the rroxy Statement.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by Item [4 is incorporated by reference to the Proxy Statement.

Plan category

a

Number of securities to

be issued upon conversion

of outstanding options

b

Weighted-average

exercise price of

outstandimt options

3,632,205 536.80 2.552,618

- 4,479,612

Totals 3.632 205 S36.80 7.032.230
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K

a. Documents filed as a part of this report

1 The following Consolidated Financial Statements are included in Part II, Item 8:

Report of Management, including its assessment of the etiectiveness of its

internal control over financial reporting

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Consolidated

Financial Statements, Financial Statement Schedule and Effectiveness of the

Company's Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended

December 31. 2007, 2006 and 2005

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended

December 31. 2007, 2006 and 2005

Consolidated Balance Sheets - December 31, 2007 and 2006

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years

ended December 31. 2007, 2006 and 2005

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity for the

years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Quarterly Income Statement Information unaudited

2 The attached Schedule II, Valuation and Qualifying Accounts, is the only applicable

schedule that we are required to file.
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3 Exhibits:

3.! Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation, dated as of May 6. 1999

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3i to our Quarterly Report on Form lO-Q

for the quarter ended June 30. 1999.

3.2 Bylaws, as amended through August 26, 2003 incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 3.! of our Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 29. 2003 and filed

on September 2. 2003.

3.3 Corporate Governance Guidelines, as amended through August 21. 2007

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3 of our Quarterly Report on Form I 0-Q

for the quarter ended September 30, 2007.

3.4 Charters of Committees of Board of Directors

a Charter of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, as amended

through November 15. 2006 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4a of

our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31. 2006.

b Charter of the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors. as

amended through February 27, 2007 incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 3.4 of our Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q for the quarter ended

March 31, 2007.

e Charter of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee of the

Board of Directors. as amended through February 25. 2004 incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 3.3 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year

ended leccmber 31, 2003.

d Charter of the Risk Evaluation Committee of the Board of Directors, as -

amended through February 26, 2008. included elsewhere herein.

S

4.! Form of common stock certificate incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 of

our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000.
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4.2 Instruments relating to our public senior debt

a Indenture dated as of March 31, 1994 between Tenturylel and Regions

Bank formerly First American Bank & Trust of Louisiana. as Trustee

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of our Registration Statement on

Form S-3, Registration No.33-52915.

b Resolutions designating the terms and conditions of `enturyTel's 7.2'

Senior Notes, Series D, due 2025 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.27

to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,

1995.

c Resolutions designating the terms and conditions of CenturyTel's 6.30%

Senior Notes. Series F, due 2008: and 6.875', Debentures. Series G. due

2028. incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.9 to our Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1997.

d Form of 8.375% Senior Notes, Series I-I, Due 2010. issued October 19,

2000 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of our Quarterly Report on

Form lO-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2000.

e Board resolutions designating the terms and conditions of CenturyTcl's

7.875% Senior Notes. Series L, due 2012 incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 4.2 of our Registration Statement on Form S-4. File No. 333-

100480.

I' Form of 7.875% Senior Notes, Series L, due 2012 included in Exhibit

4.2e.

g Third Supplemental Indenture dated as of February 14,2005 between

CenturyTel and Regions Bank successor-in-interest to First American

Bank & Trust of Louisiana and Regions Bank of Louisiana. as Trustee.

designating and outlining the terms and conditions of CenturyTel's 5

Senior Notes. Series M. due 2015 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1

of our Current Report on Form 8-K dated February IS, 2005.

h Form of 5% Senior Notes, Series M, due 2015 included in Exhibit 4.2g.
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I Fourth Supplemental Indenture dated as of March 26. 2007 between

CenturyTel and Regions Bank, as Trustee, designating and outlining the

terms and conditions of CenturyTel's 6.0% Senior Notes, Series N, due

2017 and 5.5% Senior Notes, Series 0, due 2013 incorporated by reference

to Exhibit 4.1 of our Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 29,2007.

,j Form of 6.0% Senior Notes, Series N, due 2017 and 5.5% Senior Notes,

Series 0. due 2013 included in Exhibit 4.2i.

4.3 $750 Million Five-Year Revolving Credit Facility, dated December 14, 2006,

between CenturyTel and the lenders named therein incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 4.3 of our Annual Report on Form L 0-K for the year ended December 31,

2006.

4.4 First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of November 2, 1998, to Indenture

between CenturyTel of the Northwest, Inc. and The First National Bank of

Chicago incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to our Quarterly Report on

Form lO-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 199$.

10.1 Qualified Employee Benefit Plans excluding several narrow-based qualified

plans that cover union employees or other limited groups of employees

a CenturyTel Dollars & Sense 40 1k Plan and Trust, as amended and

restated as of December 31, 2006 incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.1a of our Annual Report on Form L 0-K for the year ended December

31, 2006 and amendments thereto dated December 31. 2007. included

elsewhere herein. -

b CenturyTel Union 40 1k Plan and Trust, as amended and restated through -

December31, 2006 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1b of our

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 3!, 2006 and

amendment thereto dated December 31, 2007, included elsewhere herein.

S

c Amended and Restated Retirement Plan, effective as of December 3!. 2006

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1c of our Annual Report on Form
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10-K for the year ended December 31,2006 and amendment thereto dated

December 31, 2007, included elsewhere herein.

10.2 Stock-based Incentive Plans

a 1983 Restricted Stock Plan, dated February 21, 1984, as amended and

restated as of November 16, 1995 incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.1e to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December

31, 1995 and amendment thereto dated November21, 1996. incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 10.1e to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the

year ended December 31. 1996, and amendment thereto dated Februaiy 25,

1997 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to our Quarterly Report on

Form l0-Q for the quarter ended March 3!, 1997, and amendment thereto

dated April 25. 2001 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of our

Quarterly Report on Form lO-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2001, and

amendment thereto dated April 17, 2000 incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.2a to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 3!, 2001.

b 1995 Incentive Compensation Plan approved by CcnturyTel's shareholders

on May II, 1995 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Registration

No. 33-60061 and amendment thereto dated November 21 1996

incorporated by Reference to Exhibit 10.1 I to our Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the year ended December 31. 1996. and amendment thereto

dated February 25, 1997 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our

Quarterly Report on Form lO-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 1997 and

amendment thereto dated May 29. 2003 incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to our Quarterly Report on Form lO-Q for the quarter ended

June 30. 2003.

i Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant to 1995 Incentive

Compensation Plan and dated as of February 24, 1997. entered into by

CenturyTel and its officers incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4

to our Quarterly Report on Form I0-Q for the quarter ended June 30.

1997.
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ii Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant to 1995 Incentive

Compensation Plan and dated as of February 21, 2000, entered into by

CenturyTel and its officers incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1

It to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December

31, 1999.
S

e Amended and Restated 2000 Incentive Compensation Plan, as amended

through May 23. 2000 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to our

Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q for the quarter ended June 30. 2000 and

amendment thereto dated May 29, 2003 incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.2 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-0 for the quarter ended

June 30. 2003.

S

i Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant to the 2000 Incentive

Compensation Plan and dated as of May 21, 2001, entered into by

CenturyTel and its officers incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.2e to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31, 2001.

S

ii Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant to the 2000 Incentive

Compensation Plan and dated as of February 25, 2002, entered into by

CenturyTel and its officers incorporated by reference to Exhibit

l02Wii of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31. 2002.
S

d Amended and Restated 2002 Directors Stock Option Plan, dated as of

February 25, 2004 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2e of our

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31.2003.

i Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant to the foregoing plan,

entered into by Centurylel in connection with options granted to the

outside directors as of May 10, 2002 incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.2 of Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q for the

period ended September 30, 2002.

ii Form of Stock Option Agreement. pursuant to the foregoing plan,

entered into by CenturyTel in connection with options granted to the

S
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outside directors as of May 9,2003 incorporated by reference to

Fxhibit lO.2eii of our Annual Report on Form to-K for the year

ended December 3!. 2003.

iii Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant to the foregoing plan,

entered into by Centurylel in connection with options granted to the

outside directors as of May 7,2004 incorporated by reference to

Exhibit I0.2diii of our Annual Report on Form tO-K for the year

ended December 3 I. 2005.

c Amended and Restated 2002 Management Incentive Compensation Plan,

dated as of February 25. 2004 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2f

of our Annual Report on Form I 0-K for the year ended December 3 I,

2003.

i Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant to the foregoing plan,

entered into between CenturyTel and certain of its officers and key

employees at various dates since May 9, 2002 incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.4 of our Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q for

the period ended September 30. 2002.

ii Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant to the foregoing plan and

dated as of February 24. 2003. entered into by CenturyTel and its

officers incorporated by reference to Exhibit l0.2fH of our

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December31,

2002.

iii Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant to the foregoing plan and

dated as of February 25. 2004. entered into by CenturyTel and its

officers incorporated by reference to Exhibit l0.2tiii of our

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,

2003.

iv Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant to the foregoing ptan

and dated as of February 24. 2003. entered into by CentutyTel and

its executive officers incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of
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our Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q for the period ended March 31,

2003.

v Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant to the foregoing plan

and dated as of February 25, 2004, entered into by Centurylel and its

executive officers incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2flv of

our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31,

2004.

vi Form of Stock Option Agreement. pursuant to the foregoing plan

and dated as of February 17, 2005. entered into by CenturyTel and

its executive officers incorporated by reference to Exhibit

I 02ev of our Annual Report on From 10-K for the year ended

December31. 2004.

vii Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant to the foregoing plan

and dated as of February 17. 2005, entered into by CenturyTel and

its executive officers incorporated by reference to Exhibit

lO.2evi of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 3 I, 2004.

f 2005 Directors Stock Option Plan incorporated by reference to

our 2005 Proxy Statement filed April t5, 2005.

i Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant to the foregoing

plan, entered into between CcnturyTel and each of its outside

directors as of May 13, 2005 incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.4 of our Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 13,

2005.

ii Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant to the foregoing

plan, entered into between CenturyTel and each of its outside

directors as of May 12, 2006.

g 2005 Management Incentive Compensation Plan incorporated by

reference to our 2005 Proxy Statement filed April IS. 2005.
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I Form of Stock Option Agreement. pursuant to the foregoing

plan, entered into between CenturyTel and certain ofticers and

key employees at various dates since May 12, 2005

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of our Quarterly

Report on Form l0-Q for the period ended September 30.

2005.

ii Form of Restricted Stock Agreement. pursuant to the foregoing

plan. entcred into between CenturyTel and certain officers and

key employees at various dates since May 12, 2005

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of our Quarterly

Report on Form I 0-Q for the period ended September 30,

2005.

iii Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant to the foregoing

plan and dated as of February 21, 2006, entered into between

Centurylel and its executive officers incorporated by reference to

Exhibit I0.2giii of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year

ended December 31. 2005.

iv Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant to the foregoing plan

and dated as of February 2!, 2006, entered into between

CenturyTel and its executive officers incorporated by reference to

Exhibit I0.2giv of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year

ended December31, 2005.

v Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant to the foregoing plan

and dated as of February 26, 2007. entered into between CenturyTel

and its executive offices incorporated by retrence to Lhibit to.!

of our Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q for the quarter ended March

31, 2007.

vi Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant to the foregoing plan

and dated as of February 26. 2007. entered into between CenturyTel

and its executive officers incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2

of our Quarterly Report on Form I0-Q for the quarter ended March

3!, 2007.
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10.3 Other Non-Qualified Employee Benefit Plans

a Key lmployee Incentive Compensation Plan, dated January I. 1984, as

amended and restated as of November 16, 1995 incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.1W to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the

year ended December31, 1995 and amendment thereto dated November

2 I. 1996 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 f to our Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31. 1996,

amendment thereto dated February 25. 1997 incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.2 to our Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q for the quarter ended

March 31, 1997. amendment thereto dated April 25, 2001 incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 102 of our Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q for

the quarter ended March 3!, 2001, amendment thereto dated April 17,

2000 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3a to our Annual Report

on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 200! and amendment

thereto dated February 27, 2007 incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.1 of our Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q for the quarter ended June 30,

2007.

b Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan. 2008 Restatement, effective

January 1,2008, included elsewhere herein.
S

c Supplemental Dollars & Sense Plan, 2008 Restatement, effective

January I, 2008, included elsewhere herein.

S

d Supplemental Defined Benefit Plan, 2008 Restatement, effective as of

January I, 2008. included elsewhere herein.

e Amended and Restated Salary Continuation Disability

Plan for Officers, dated November 26. 1991 incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.16 of our Annual Report on Form 10-

K for the year ended December31, 1991.

f 2005 Executive Officer Short-Term incentive Program

incorporated by reference to our 2005 Proxy Statement

filed April 5.2005.
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g 2001 Employee Stock Purchase Plan incorporated by

reference to our 2001 Proxy Statement.

10.4 Employment, Severance and Related Agreements

a Amended and Restated Change of Control Agreement, effective January 1,

2008. by and between Glen F. Post, III and CenturyTcl, included

elsewhere herein.

b Form of Amended and Restated Change of Control Agreement, effective

January 1,2008, by and between CenturyTel and each of its other

executive officers, included elsewhere herein.

c Form of Indemnification Agreement for Officers and Directors

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4e of our Annual Report on Form

10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005

d CenturyTel. Inc. Bonus Life Insurance Plan for Executive Officers.

effective January I. 2006. included elsewhere herein.

14 Corporate Compliance Program incorporated by refcrence to Exhibit 14 of our

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003.

21 Subsidiaries of CenturyleL included elsewhere herein.

23 Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Consent, included

elsewhere herein.

31.1 `hief Executive Officer certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarhanes

Oxicy Act of 2012, included elsewhere herein.

3 1.2 Chief Financial Oflicer certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes

Oxley Act of 2002, included elsewhere herein.

32 Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer certification pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, included elsewhere herein.
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b Repors on Form 8-K.

The following Form 8-Ks were filed on the dales indicated during the fourth quarter of 2007. -

November I. 2007

Items 2.02 and 9.01. Results of Operations and Financial Condition - News release announcing

third quarter 2007 operating results.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act oC 1934, the

Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

CentuiyTel, Inc.,

Date: February 29. 2008 By: Isi Glen F. Post. Ill

Glen F. Post, Ill

Chairman of the Board and

Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below

by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.

RI Glen F. Post. Ill

Glen F. Post. Ill

s1 R. Stewart Ewine, Jr.

R. Stewart Ewing, Jr.

/s/ Neil A. Sweasv

Neil A. Sweasy

/s/ William R. Boles. Jr.

William R. Boles. Jr.

Chairman of the Board and

Chief Executive Officer

Executive Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer

Vice President and Controller

Director

February 29, 2008

February 29, 2008

February 29, 2008

February 29. 2008

is! Virginia Boulet

Virginia Boulet

Director

February 29. 2008

Calvin Czeseliin

Calvin Czeschin

Director

February 29. 2008

s/ James B. Gardner

James B. Gardner

Director

February 29. 2008
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S

/s/ W. Bruce Hanks Director

W. Bruce Hanks February 29. 2008

Is! Greiwrv J. McCray Director

Gregory J. McCray February 29. 2008

:5/ C. G. Melville, Jr. Director

C'. G. Melville, Jr. February 29. 2008

S

Is! Fred R. Nichols Director

Fred R. Nichols February 29, 2008

/st Harvey P. Perry Director

Harvey P. Perry February 29. 2008

_________________________________________

Director

Jim D. Reppond February , 2008

Is! Joseph R. Zimmel Director

Joseph R. Zimmel February 29, 2008
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SCHEDULE H- VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

CENTURYTEL, INC.

For the years ended December 31. 2007. 2006 and 2005

Additions

Balance at charged to Deductions Balance

beginning costs and from Other at end

Description of period expenses allowance changes of period

Dollars in thousands

Year ended December 31, 2007

Allowance for doubtful accounts S 20,905 14,466 16.617 1 1.607 2 20,361

Valuation allowance for

deferred tax assets $ 61,049 3.744 33.886 - 30,907

Year ended December31, 2006

Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 21,721 20.199 21.009 1 6 2 20,905

Valuation allowance for

deferred tax assets $ 54,412 6,637 - - 61,049

Year ended December 31. 2005

Allowance fordoubtful accounts $ 21,187 30,945 30.880 I 469 2 21.721

Valuation allowance for

deferred tax assets $ 27,112 27,300 - - 54,412

I Customers' accounts written-off net of recoveries.

2 Allowance for doubtful accounts at the date of acquisition of purchased subsidiaries, net oF

allowance for doubtful accounts at the date of disposition of subsidiaries sold.
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